
Coral Springs 

Improvement District 

 

Agenda 

 

September 21, 2015 

 

Revised 9/17/15 

Agenda Page 1



District Office and Meeting Location: csidfl.org   
10300 NW 11th Manor  
Coral Springs, Florida   
   

 Coral Springs Improvement District 

Board of Supervisors  
Martin Shank, President  Kenneth Cassel, District Manager 

Duane Holland, Vice President  William Capko, District Counsel 

Nick St. Cavish, Secretary Dan Daly, Director of Operations 
 

Meeting Agenda 
Monday, September 21, 2015 4:00 p.m. 

 

⃰Added Item 

 

1.    Roll Call 

2.    Approval of the Minutes of the August 17, 2015 Meeting 

3.    Audience Comments 

4.    Consideration of Analytical Laboratory Services from Florida Spectrum Environmental 

Services, Inc., Piggybacking Off of a Collier County Contract 

5.    Consideration of GIS Contract with Florida Technical Consultants Piggybacking Off of a 

Cooper City Contract   

6.    Consideration of LMK Contract Piggybacking Off of North Miami Beach  ⃰

7.    Consideration of Aquatic Chemical Bids 

8.    Public Hearing to Adopt the Water and Sewer Budget – Resolution 2015-11 ⃰ 

9.    Staff Reports  

A. Manager – Ken Cassel 

 Consideration of Resolution 2015-12, Adopting a Records Retention Policy 

B. Engineer – Troy Lyn (Report Included) 

C. Department Reports  

 Operations – Dan Daly 

 Utility Billing Work Orders 

 Water – Ed Stover (Report Included) 

 Wastewater – Tim Martin (Report Included) 

 Stormwater – Randy Frederick (Report Included) 

 Field – Curt Dwiggins (Report Included) 

 Human Resources – Jan Zilmer  

 Motion to Accept Department Reports 

D. Attorney  

 Consideration of Resolution 2015-2, Providing for the Provision of Certain Insurance 

Benefits to Board Members and their Spouses  ⃰

10. Approval of Financial Statements for August 2015 

11. Supervisors’ Requests  

12. Adjournment 

 

NOTE: The next regular meeting is scheduled for Monday, October 19, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. 

Agenda Page 2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES  

Agenda Page 3



   

Unapproved Minutes 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

 A regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Coral Springs Improvement District 

was held on Monday, August 17, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. at the District Office, 10300 NW 11th Manor, 

Coral Springs, Florida.   

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 

  

 Martin Shank President  

 Duane Holland  Vice President  

 Nick St. Cavish Secretary 

     

 Also present were: 

  

 Kenneth Cassel District Manager  

 Andrew Bauman  District Counsel 

 Dan Daly  Director of Operations 

 Troy Lyn District Engineer 

 Kay Holmes District Accountant 

 Jan Zilmer  Human Resources  

 David McIntosh Director of Utilities 

 Ed Stover  Water Department 

 Tim Martin  Wastewater Department 

 Randy Frederick   Drainage 

 Shawn Frankenhauser Drainage 

 John McKune  Consultant  

 Several Residents 

          

 The following is a summary of the minutes and actions taken during the August 17, 2015 

CSID Board of Supervisors Meeting.  

    

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. Cassel called the meeting to order and called the roll. 

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Minutes of the July 14, 

2015 Special Meeting and July 20, 2015 

Regular Meeting 

Mr. Shank stated each Board member received a copy of the above referenced minutes 

and requested any corrections, additions or deletions. 

 The Board made a couple of changes, which will be included in the amended copy of the 

minutes. 

 

Agenda Page 4



August 17, 2015  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 2 

On MOTION by Mr. Holland seconded by Mr. St. Cavish with all 

in favor the minutes of the July 14 and July 20, 2015 meetings 

were approved as amended. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Award of Bid for Culvert Inspection 

Project 

 Mr. Cassel reviewed the bid tabulation and staff’s recommendation is to award the bid to 

Industrial Divers, Inc. for the sum of $16,500. 

  

On MOTION by Mr. Holland seconded by Mr. St. Cavish with all 

in favor the culvert inspection bid was awarded to Industrial 

Divers, Inc. at a total cost of $16,500.  

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Award of Bid for High Service Pump 

 The Board reviewed the bid tabulation.  The lowest bidder was Barney’s Pumps, Inc. at 

$18,054. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Mr. Holland with all 

in favor the high service pump bid was awarded to Barney’s 

Pumps, Inc. at a total cost of $18,054. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Change Order with Trio 

Development for Phase II to Lift Station 

#15 at a Cost Not to Exceed $37,763.90 

 Mr. McIntosh explained additional work needs to be done to Lift Station #15.  This 

would be a piggyback of the same Broward County contract.  

 Mr. Daly explained part of the work quoted may not be needed, but they will not know 

until they start.  The total cost may be less. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Holland seconded by Mr. St. Cavish with all 

in favor the Change Order with Trio Development at a cost not to 

exceed $37,763.90 was ratified. 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 5



August 17, 2015  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 3 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Amendment #1 to Work Authorization 

#103 for Modifications to Sand Strainer 

Drains 

 Mr. Lyn explained this is a reconciliation of the work authorization.  They did not use all 

of the allowance; therefore, there is a $2,000 decrease to the total job cost. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Mr. Holland with all 

in favor Amendment #1 to Work Authorization #103, for a 

decrease of $2,000, was approved. 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Resolution 2015-9 Changing the Date of 

the Water and Sewer Budget Public 

Hearing  

  

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Mr. Holland with all 

in favor Resolution 2015-9, changing the date of the water and 

sewer budget public hearing to September 21, 2015, was adopted. 

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 

A. Manager – Ken Cassel 

 Meeting Schedule for Fiscal Year 2016 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Holland seconded by Mr. St. Cavish with all 

in favor the meeting schedule for Fiscal Year 2016 was approved 

as presented. 

 

 B. Engineer – Troy Lyn (Report Included) 

 Mr. Lyn reviewed the Project Status Report, a copy of which is attached hereto and made 

a part of the public record.   

 

C. Department Reports 

 Operations – Dan Daly 

 Utility Billing Work Orders 

 This item is for informational purposes only. 

 Mr. Daly reported the following: 

o The District had a parcel at Lakeview Park that was deeded to the City a long time 

ago, with the provision a structure not be built on it.  The Coral Springs Fire Chief 

contacted him because they want to use a portion of the parcel to build a new fire 

station.  

o They are working on a solution to deal with the iguanas. 

Agenda Page 6



August 17, 2015  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 4 

o There was discussion regarding the success of the new meter system. 

  

 Water – Ed Stover (Report Included) 

 A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto as part of 

the public record. 

  

 Wastewater – Tim Martin (Report Included) 

 A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto as part of 

the public record. 

 

 Stormwater – Randy Frederick (Report Included) 
 A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto as part of 

the public record. 

 

 Field – Curt Dwiggins (Report Included) 

 A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto as part of 

the public record. 

   

 Human Resources – Jan Zilmer 

 Mr. Zilmer stated the annual barbeque for staff is scheduled for September 18, 2015. 

  

 Motion to Accept Department Reports 
   

On MOTION by Mr. Holland seconded by Mr. St. Cavish with all 

in favor the department reports were accepted.   

 

D. Attorney  

 Resolution 2015-10, Enforcement of Grease Traps 

 Mr. Bauman reviewed the revised version of Resolution 2015-10 and explained the 

District does not have much power to enforce.  The District is entitled to cost recovery for 

damages.  Options for enforcement include: 

 Enter into an agreement with the City to be able to enforce on their behalf. 

 Report violations to the City for them to enforce. 

 Legislative changes to the Special Act. 

 There was discussion of possibly including costs in the rate structure.  Mr. Bauman will 

work on this further. 

 The following was also discussed: 

Agenda Page 7



August 17, 2015  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 5 

 Mr. Bauman reported on the legal dispute between the Hospital District and the City 

of Coral Springs.  The City requested the District Court of Appeal uphold the Circuit 

Court’s decision, a re-hearing and that the 4th District certify the question of being of 

great public importance to send it to the Supreme Court.  The District Court declined 

all requests and the time to appeal to the Supreme Court expired.  The case appears to 

be final. 

 The Board directed District Counsel to write a letter to the City Attorney stating the 

District does not intend to pay the assessment for 2016 and requests reimbursement 

for assessments paid from 2009 to present. 

 Mr. Bauman reported the Attorney General’s opinion is that Officers of the District, 

and there dependents, are eligible for the health insurance provided to District 

employees.  He will draft a resolution for the next meeting. 

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Financial Statements for July 

2015 

 Ms. Holmes reviewed the financials. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Mr. Holland with all 

in favor the financials were approved. 

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Supervisors’ Request 

 The following was discussed: 

 Mr. Shank requested an update on the GIS software.  Mr. Cassel has not received the 

finalized proposal from Mr. Barton.   

 Mr. Shank commended Mr. Daly and the Field Department for saving money on the 

asphalt. 

 Mr. Holland thanked staff for their work. 

 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 
 There being no further business, 

  

On MOTION by Mr. Holland seconded by Mr. St. Cavish with all 

in favor the meeting was adjourned. 

 

     

Kenneth Cassel   Martin Shank 

Assistant Secretary    President  

Agenda Page 8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fourth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 9



 
 
 

 
 

 

THE EXTENSION OF CONTRACT TERMS & PRICING 
UNDER THE 

COLLIER COUNTY CONTRACT 
 

RFP Solicitation #13-6148,  
Analytical Laboratory Services 

 

TO THE CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Florida-Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc. 
1460 W. McNab Road 

Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33309 
PH:  954.978.6400 

FAX:  954.978.2233 
www.flenviro.com 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 10

http://www.flenviro.com/


 

 

 

 

 

 

www.flenviro.com 
1460 West McNab Road Ft Lauderdale, Fl 33309 

Phone 954.978.6400  Fax 954.978.2233 

 

2 

August 20, 2015 
 
Coral Spring Improvement District 
David McIntosh 
10300 N.W. 11th Manor 
Coral Springs, FL 33071 

RE: THE EXTENSION OF CONTRACT TERMS & PRICING UNDER THE COLLIER COUNTY 
CONTRACT; RFP 13-6148 TO THE CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  

 
Dear Mr. David McIntosh and Members of the Selection Committee: 
 
On behalf of Florida – Spectrum Environmental Services Inc., I am pleased to offer the extension of 
contract terms and pricing under the Collier County Contract RFP 13-6148 to the Coral Springs 
Improvement District.   Florida-Spectrum is confident that we will continue to exceed all the specified 
requirements to provide analytical support services to the Coral Springs Improvement District, as well 
as ensure adequate cost comparison and value. 
     
Florida – Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc. is committed to providing all of the specified 
requirements in accordance with the requested turnaround time and all required contract specifications.  
I am confident that upon review of our qualifications, you will deem Florida – Spectrum Environmental 

Services, Inc. an asset to this contract. 
 
Thank you for your time and consideration.  I look forward to the opportunity to work with you.  
 
Sincerely, 
 

Katharine A. Kutil 
 
Katharine A. Kutil 
Director of Sales & Marketing 
Florida – Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 11



 

 

 

 

 

 

www.flenviro.com 
1460 West McNab Road Ft Lauderdale, Fl 33309 

Phone 954.978.6400  Fax 954.978.2233 

 

3 

Services 
 

Laboratory analysis of water samples collected from Coral Springs Improvement District Water 
Treatment Plant and the Coral Springs Improvement District Wastewater Treatment Plant for compliance 
or monitoring purposes on a daily, monthly and annual basis, as well as, quarterly monitoring well 
sampling and analyses. 

 
A. Florida-Spectrum will analyze samples of drinking water, waste water, source water (surface or 
ground water) or any other samples as needed from CSID’s Water Treatment Plant (WTP) as well as from 
the CSIDs Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP). 
 
B. Based on CSID’s needs, Florida-Spectrum will collect samples from specified sites.  Florida-Spectrum 
will be responsible for all sampling equipment, shipping containers and any other sampling needs based 
on project and/or method and/or regulatory agency requirements. 
 
C. Florida-Spectrum will supply Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) approved sample shipping 
containers adequate for sample integrity and preservation, at no additional cost to the CSID.  CSID 
personnel will collect and pack the samples in the sample containers. Florida-Spectrum will pick up the 
samples for analysis at the specified location preferably on the same day but no later than the following 
business day or per the schedule event of sampling.  Standard weekly and during normal business hours, 
pickup fees are included in the unit cost.  Any samples required to be sampled and/or picked up outside 
our normal business hours will be described in the table below “Pricing Structure for After Hours and 
Emergencies Only”. 
 
D. Florida-Spectrum shall analyze samples according to project, permit, regulatory agency or CSID’s 
specified requirements using EPA approved methods for the specific matrix. Florida-Spectrum shall 
ensure analysis of samples within prescribed EPA, DOH, FDEP or method holding time limits. 
 
E. Florida-Spectrum will supply a detailed report meeting NELAP requirements for each parameter result 
with units in electronic format including (if applicable); quality control results, data qualifiers with 
descriptions, method detection limits, practical quantitation limits, method description, dilutions, sample 
preparer, preparation date, preparation time, sample analyst, analysis date, analysis time, collector, 
collection date, collection time, sample location, reporter, reporting date, and unique identification for 
each sample along with the sample chain-of-custody to CSID’s personnel within five to seven (5 to 7) 
business days from the date of sample receipt. If a test requires more time for analysis the Florida-
Spectrum will inform the CSID personnel at the time of sample receipt. 
 
F. Florida-Spectrum will notify the CSID personnel within 24 hours when a sample result indicates 
violation of the Safe Water Drinking Act, the Clean Water Act, FDEP Drinking water rules or other 
applicable permits and or consent decrees. Examples include but are not limited to:  MCL violation of 
Total Coliform rule or RDL (Regulatory Detection Limit) or MCL (Maximum Contaminant Limit) 
exceedance for drinking water samples.   

 

Agenda Page 12



 

 

 

 

 

 

www.flenviro.com 
1460 West McNab Road Ft Lauderdale, Fl 33309 

Phone 954.978.6400  Fax 954.978.2233 

 

4 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
                                     

PRICING STRUCTURE FOR AFTER HOURS, EMERGENCIES ONLY 
 
 “Florida-Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc. will arrange for sample retrieval at Department specified facilities 
during the event of a Department determined emergency or crisis, service shall be provided within the hours of the 
Department’s request. This emergency provision includes After Hours, Weekends and Holidays.  Should this 
emergency occur, due to the cost of operation, overtime, materials and employees that will be provided during these 
emergencies, Florida-Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc. will charge the following outlined below.” 
 

After Hours (Monday through Friday) 

Analytical Sampling Fees Pickup Fees Laboratory Fees 

Same as Contract Price $112.50 per/hr $150.00 $150.00 

Weekends (Saturday and Sunday) 

Analytical Sampling Fees Pickup Fees  
(Saturday & 
Sunday) 

Laboratory Fees 

Same as Contract Price $112.50 per/hr $150.00 $150.00 (Saturday All 
other Departments)                                                                                             
$75.00 (Saturday Micro 
Only) 

   $300.00 (Sunday) 

Any samples dropped off, picked up or sampled on a Friday or day before a Holiday that have a 
short hold that require immediate prep to be analyzed will be subject to a weekend Charge.             
** Special Staffing is required. 

Weekend Lab Fee (Analysis for Micro Samples and Other Short Hold Analyses)                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
( Sunday) (Special Staffing required for Sundays)  
 

Holidays 

Analytical Sampling Fees Pickup Fees Laboratory Fees 

Same as Contract Price $150.00 per/hr $150.00 $400.00 

 
*PLEASE NOTE:  Florida-Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc. has submitted this separate pricing, 
because we wanted to be fair and not charge the Department emergency/crisis fees during normal 
hours of operation. 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 13



Agenda Page 14



Fax:    (954) 978-2233

www. flenviro.com

1460 West McNab Road

Fort Lauderdale, Fl 33309

Florida-Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc.

Florida-Spectrum Environmental
Laboratory

Pricing Schedule

Collier County Government

Phone: (954) 978-6400

Solicitation #13-6148; Analytical Laboratory Services

Includes:

Pricing & Test Method Reference

Holding Time & Preservative Reference Chart

Big Lake Laboratories

610 North Parrot Ave.

Okeechobee, Fl 34972

 Pembroke Laboratories

528th Gooch Road

Fort Meade, Fl 33841

Spectrum Laboratories

630 Indian Street 

Savannah, Ga 31401

Agenda Page 15



Please call 1-2 days in advance to schedule your sample pick-up 

and get added to the route.

Other Regions $55 per hour portal to portal

Note: Free Sample Pick-up

Projects over $1000 (or shipping depending on region)

Broward County $55 service fee

Dade County $55 service fee

Palm Beach County $55 service fee

Phone (954) 978-6400

Fax (954) 978-2233

Sample Pick-Up Fees

Pick-Up Region Sample Pick-Up Charge

Hours of Operation

Client Service Managers are available 8:00am-5:00pm Monday-Friday

Location

Sample Custody Department is open 8:00am-6:00pm Monday-Friday and 8:00am-3:00pm Saturdays

1460 West McNab Road

Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33309

Page 1

Agenda Page 16



Research (method development, literature search, forensic) $175.00 per Hr

Expert Witness Testimony $225.00 per Hr

Technical Support Price

Technician (software support, test selection, archive retrieval, etc.) $80.00 per Hr

Methodologies, QC Physical File Numbers… 15% Surcharge

Quality Assurance Data Request after report 20% Surcharge

QA/QC Summary Report including…

Blank, LCS Recovery, MSPK-DUP, % Recovery & RPD-Precision,

Surrogates, Completeness, Acceptance Criteria as per published EPA 

Electronic Deliverables Quoted

ADaPT Deliverables 20% Surcharge

Call your personal Client Service Manager ahead of time to reserve 

your expedited work with a RUSH RESERVATION NUMBER

Special Reports Price

Customer Report Format Quoted

2 Days (48 Hours) (75% Surcharge) 1.75

3 Days (72 Hours) (50% Surcharge) 1.50

5 - 7 Days Standard TAT 1.00

4 Days (96 Hours) (25% Surcharge) 1.25

EXPEDITED SERVICES & SPECIAL DELIVERABLES

Expedited Analytical Service Factor x Price

Same Day, <10 Hrs (200% Surcharge) 3.00

1 Day (24 Hours) (100% Surcharge) 2.00

Organic Vapor Analyzer Rental per 24 hr day $375.00

Bailers $15.00

Compositer Rental per 24 hr day $275.00

Price includes all labor for setup and next day sample pickup

Mileage (When applicable by special quote) $0.55

SAMPLING RATES

Sampling Rates Rates

Sampling Labor Rate (per hour) $75.00

Page 2

Agenda Page 17



Need to check on Sample Results, request a RUSH Reservation Number, ask for technical 

Call your Client Service Manager.

Florida Environmental's Turnaround Time for standard in-house analysis and reporting is five to 

seven (5-7) business days.

Bobby Supan

(954) 978-6400 Ext. 304

s.supan@flenviro.com

Okeechobee, Hendry, Glades Cell# (561) 715-4426

kkutil@flenviro.com

TURNAROUND TIME 

Katharine Kutil

Bobby Supan

(954) 978-6400 Ext. 304

Maria Castellanos

(954) 978-6400 Ext. 303

m.castellanos@flenviro.com

Miami-Dade, Monroe, Lee, Katharine A. Kutil

Charlotte, Manatee, Pinellas Cell# (561) 715-4426

Counties kkutil@flenviro.com

Latin America

Caribbean Islands

Region Sales Contact

your account. This team works in tandem to coordinate and handle your service needs.

Need to discuss special pricing for an upcoming sampling event? 

Call your Sales contact.

Client Service Mgr

SALES & CLIENT SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION

As part of our reorganization, we focused on improving our Client Services & Sales Structure

As a client you now have a personalized "Sales & Services Manager" team assigned to handle 

assistance, order a Sample Kit?

With few exceptions, these Teams have been structured based on a Geographical distribution.

The Sales/Client Services Manager Teams are as follows…

Broward County

kkutil@flenviro.com

kkutil@flenviro.com

Highland Counties

Katharine A. Kutil

Cell# (561) 715-4426

Hillsborough, Polk and

Otherwise payments terms are C.O.D.

Note: Work subcontracted to outside labs have a turnaround of 2-3 weeks.

Payment Terms
Terms are based on negotiated contractual conditions, or approved credit.

s.suppan@flenviro.com

Enrique Ochoa

St. Lucie and Indian River

Palm Beach, Martin, 

Counties

Cell# (561) 715-4426

Katharine Kutil

(954) 978-6400 Ext. 325

e.ochoa@flenviro.com

Page 3

Agenda Page 18



COST COST

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $34.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$50.00 $65.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$23.00 $26.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$50.00 $65.00

$50.00 $65.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$13.00 $19.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$40.00 $60.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 NC

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$27.00 $75.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

6010

Chromium (Cr)

Cobalt (Co)

Copper (Cu)

Gold (Au)

Iron (Fe)

Lead (Pb)

Magnesium (Mg)

Manganese (Mn)

Mercury (Hg)

Metals

METAL WATER MATRIX

SOIL, SOLIDS, OILS,

& WASTES

Beryllium (Be)

Bismuth (Bi)

Cadmium (Cd)

Calcium  (Ca)

Boron (B)

Aluminum (Al)

Antimony (Sb)

Arsenic (As)

Barium (Ba)

Molybdenum (Mo)

Nickel ( Ni)

Potassium (K)

Selenium (Se)

Palladium (Pd)

Platinum (Pt)

Silicon (Si)

Silver (Ag)

Sodium (Na)

Uranium (U)

Strontium (Sr)

Thallium (Tl)

Tin (Sn)

Titanium (Ti)

Sulfur (Total)

200.7/ 200.8

FSE-ICP/ICP-AES

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

245.1

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7

200.7/ 200.8

200.7

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

7471

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

200.8 6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8Zinc (Zn)

Vanadium (V)

Lithium (Li) 200.7 6010

Please Note:  Items highlighted in "Yellow" we are not certified for or certification is not regulated and still can be performed by 

FSES.  In the event it is regulated, FSES can subcontract the work to a certified laboratory.

Thorium (Th) 200.8 -

Ask your Sales representative and or Client Service Manager for assistance with Special Request metals not listed above.

All prices include digestion/ extraction except for seawater ($65 surcharge) & TCLP ($50 Extraction).

*Appropriate test methods will be selected to satisfy NELAC and meet your regulatory requirements.

Page 4

Agenda Page 19



Water 

Matrix Cost Cost

305.1 $22.00 -

Combined $45.00 $60.00

310.1 $10.00 -

15-550.310TEM $275.00 $100.00

405.1 $24.00 -

300 $10.00 $36.00

300.1 $50.00 -

ASTM $157.00 $225.00

SM5310C $16.00 $68.00

SM5210B $24.00 -

310.1 $20.00 -

410.4 $12.00 $42.00

300 & SM4500 $10.00 $36.00

$75.00

330.4 $21.00 -

SM 2350B $215.00 -

SM10200 $35.00

SM 3500-Cr B 

(20th/21st Ed.)/UV-

VIS $25.00 $73.00

SM9222D $20.00 -

SM9222B $20.00 -

SM2120B $12.00 $28.00

120.1 $6.00 -

- $18.00 $18.00

SM 4500CN-E  $27.00 $84.00

EPA 1010 $20.00 $20.00

300 $10.00 $18.00

900.1 $105.00 -

900.1 $165.00 -

900 $105.00 -

325.3 (MOD) $80.00 $32.00

325.3 (MOD) $80.00 $32.00

200.7 $10.00 -

200.7 $10.00 -

1664A $38.00 $40.00

376.2 $40.00 $52.00

- $180.00

- $10.00 -

SM2330B $68.00 -

425.1/ SM5540C $26.00 -

300 & SM4500 $10.00 $16.00

300 & SM4500 $10.00 $16.00

350.1 $12.00 $15.00

351.2 $14.00 $14.00

351.2 $22.00 -

300 +351 Combined $26.00 $26.00

SM2150B $10.00 -

1664A $38.00 $40.00

360.1 $21.00 -

- - $52.00

S160.3 $10.00 $10.00

- - $12.00

- - $180.00

150.1 $6.00 $8.00

420.2/420.4 $20.00 $26.00

-

9056

Nitrite (NO2)

-

350.1

351.2

9056

TKN minus AMMONIA

9071

-

5050/9056

-

-

9095

S160.3

TKN + Total nitrate-nitrite 

D6304

FSE-OG-TRPH/GRAV

9030

-

EPA 1010

9056

-

-

-

 FSE-TOX/TITR

-

9056

-

-

N/A

9012

-

-

Combined

-

Bulk

-

-

Oil & Grease, HEM

Odor

Percent Solids

9056

ASTM

Nitrate (NO3)

9060 (Sub)

Hardness, Total (calc.)

Hardness, Calcium

Gross Alpha (High Solids){sub}

Langalier Index

MBAS (SURFACTANTS)

Karl Fisher Water

Paint Filter Liquids Test

Percent Liquids

Oxygen Dissolved

Nitrogen (Ammonia)(NH3)

Nitrogen (Kjedahl)(TKN)

Nitrogen (Total) 

Nitrogen(Total Organic)

Halogens, Organic (TOX)

Cyanide, Total

Flashpoint (PMCC) (Ignitablitiy)

Fluoride

Gross Alpha {sub}

Hydrogen Sulfide

Gross Beta {sub}

Halogens, Total

Hydrocarbons, SGT-HEM (TRPH)

CBOD

Chemical Oxygen Demand

Chloride

Chlorine, Residual

Carbon Dioxide (CO2)

Chloride in concrete

Acidity

Acids, % and Type

Alkalinity (CaCO3)

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD-5)

Asbestos (Sub)

Bromate, Chlorate, Chlorite

Karl FischerPercent Water

INORGANIC CONSTITUENTS AND PROPERTIES

Inorganic Constituent

Soils, Solids, Oils, 

Waste Matrix

Bromide

BTU (Parr Bomb.) (Sub)

Carbon, Total Organic (TOC)

SM2540G

Phenols

9040

9066

pH

Coliform Fecal

Corrosivity (RCRA)

7196 (Sub)

-

-

N/A

9050

9040

Chlorine Demand -

Lab Filtration -

Coliform,Total

Color

Conductivity

Chlorophyll A

Chromium Hexavalent (Savannah Lab)

Page 5

Agenda Page 20



Water 

Matrix Cost Cost

300/365.1/365.2 $10.00 -

365.4 $15.00 -

365.1 $20.00

903 $160.00 -

904 $160.00 -

40 CFR 261.23 $140.00 $157.00

160.1/ SM2540C $10.00 -

160.2/ SM2540D $10.00 -

160.3 $10.00 $21.00

SM2540E/G $18.00 -

SM210B $21.00 -

370.1 $12.00 -

SM213E $9.00 $10.00

300 & SM4500 $10.00 $25.00

376.1/376.2/                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

SM4500-S F $18.00 $130.00

170.1 $7.00 -

180.1 $9.00 -

SM5910B $60.00 -

ASTM D88 $73.50 $78.00

Temperature -

Sulfate (SO4) 9056

Sulfide 9030

Turbidity -

Please Note:  Items highlighted in "Yellow" we are not certified for or certification is not regulated and still can be 

performed by FSES.  In the event it is regulated, FSES can subcontract the work to a certified laboratory.

All prices include digestion/extraction except for seawaters ($65 Surcharge) & TCLP ($50 Extraction + individual 

metals in soil matrix price). Ask your Sales representative and or Client Service Manager for assistance with special 

request Methods not listed.

Viscosity (Single Temperature) ASTM D88

*Appropriate test methods will be selected to satisfy NELAC and meet your regulatory requirements.

Residue, Total SM2540G

Specific Gravity (Density) SM213E

Residue, Volatile -

Salinity -

Silica -

Reactivity (SW846) 40 CFR 261.23

Residue, Total Filterable (TDS) -

Residue, Non-Filterable (TSS) -

365.4

Radium 226 {sub} -

Radium 228 {sub} -

Phosphorus, Total (low level) -

UV254 -

INORGANIC CONSTITUENTS AND PROPERTIES

Soils, Solids, Oils, 

Inorganic Constituent Waste Matrix

Phosphorus, O- 9056

Phosphorus, Total

Page 6

Agenda Page 21



Drinking Non-Potable

Water Cost Water Cost Cost

- - 8260 VOH $46.00 $48.00

- - 8260 VOA $40.00 $45.00

524.2 $45.00 - $45.00 -

- - 8260LS $100.00 $100.00

504.1 $42.00 8011 $42.00 $94.00

508 $90.00 608 $90.00 $95.00

508A $45.00 608 $45.00 $50.00

507 $178.00 619 $178.00

- 614 (8270) $95.00 $100.00

515.1 $110.00 615 $110.00 $120.00

531.1 $105.00 - - $315.00

547 $90.00 - - -

548 $110.00 - - -

549 $157.00 - - -

8316 $300.00 300.00$        

8260 $100.00 100.00$        

551.1 $95.00

552.2 $105.00 - - -

- - 604** (8270) $70.00 $80.00

- - 605** (8270) $70.00 $80.00

- - 606** (8270) $70.00 $80.00

- - 607** (8270) $70.00 $80.00

- - 609** (8270) $70.00 $80.00

- - 611** (8270) $70.00 $80.00

- - 8270LS $100.00 $100.00

Drinking Non-Potable 

Water Cost Water Cost

$220.00 $220.00

PRO & Volatile Organic Compound Data

8015H-Modified

Endothall

Diquat/Paraquat

8260LS

8011

-

-

-

- 612** (8270)

525

$220.00

Speciation of Hydrocarbons - $441.00 $472.00
C5-C40 Specification derived from PAH, 

Petroleum Fingerprint

Chlorinated 

Hydrocarbons (PAH)

Haloethers

Polynuclear Aromatic

Nitrosamines

Methodology

Hydrocarbons

Semi-Volatile Extractable 

Nitroaromatics & Isophorone

$65.00

8040** (8270)

- - 610** (8270) $70.00

$60.00

Organochlorine Pesticides

Chlorophenoxy Herbicides

Haloacetic Nitriles (HAN's)

Glyphosate

FL-PRO

Phthalate Esters

Haloacetic Acids (HAA's)

THMs Only

Library Search

- - FL-PRO

Purgeable Aromatics + MTBE

8090** (8270)

Acrylamide 8316

Epichlorohydrin 8260

Phenols

Benzidines

Florida-Petroleum

Residual Organics

Purgeable Organics + MTBE

by GC/MS

EDB, DBCP

- $70.00 8120** (8270)

Carbamate Pesticides

Nitrogen, Phosphorus & Triazine Pesticides

Organophosporus Pesticides

PCBs (Only)

Organic Analysis (GC-GC/MS)

Methodology

Soils, Solids, Oils,

& Waste Matrix

Purgeable Halocarbons

$90.00

8081

8151

8318

8141 (8270)

8082

8260 Full

-

$80.00

-

$195.00

$80.008310** (8270)

8050** (8270)

8060** (8270)

8070** (8270)

8110** (8270)

8270 Full

Special Research Developed Method

8260 VOH

8260 VOA

524.2 $85.00 624/8260 Full $85.00

$175.00 625/8270 Full $175.00

matrix price). Ask you Sales Rep. and/or Client Services Manager for assistance with special request Methods not listed above.

$315.00 $315.00

*Appropriate test methods will be selected to satisfy NELAC and meet your regulatory requirements.

**Florida Environmental normally uses EPA 625/8270 method to analyze for rare "600 & 8000 series" methods.

$315.00

All prices include digestion/extraction except for…Seawaters ($65 Surcharge) & TCLP ($50 Extraction + individual metal in soil

Caffeine in Surface & 

Groundwater (NEW)

SOP 2004-0-125

Library Search 8270LS

Compounds

& Waste Matrix Cost

Soils, Solids, Oils,

Page 7

Agenda Page 22



Water Soil
$93.00 $131.00

$143.00 $206.00

$350.00 $380.00

$245.00 _

 Color, Specific Gravity

Aromatics + Halocarbons

TCLP (Cd, Pb, As, Cr, Hg, Se, Ba, Ni, Ag)

Analysis Description of Analysis Cost of Analysis

TO-14 (MOD) $263.00

pH, %Solids, Flashpoint, FL-PRO, Odor, SM213E, PRO

Basic Fingerprint

%Solids, PRO, Halogens, BTU

Flashpoint, pH, %Solids, Specific Gravity

TCLP Purgeable Halocarbons & Aromatics PRO, 5050/9253, PARR

TCLP Purgeable Halocarbons & Aromatics 

TO-18
Aromatics only

$116.00

*In the case of Used Oils, profile will need to include PCB's at an additional charge of $50.00 per 

sample.

AIR MONITORING (TEDLARBAG)

Standard Incineration Profile*

Standard Landfill Profile

$487.00

Total (Cd, Pb, As, Cr,  Hg, Se, Ba, Ni, Ag) 6010, 7471, 8260, S1160.3

BASIC FLORIDA DISPOSAL PACKAGES

EPA/Standard Test 

Methods

Cost of 

Analysis

Disposal Package Name

$126.00

Distribution of Package

1010, 9045, S160.3, 

oil & Grease, Color, Odor SM213E, 9071, 140.1

40 CFR 258 Appendix II 

Organics
$555.00 $600.00

EPA 8081, 8141, 8151

EPA 8260 w/ extended list, EPA 8270 w/extended list, 

THM Formation Potential Includes THMs

$184.00

40 CFR 258 Appendix II 

Metals/ Inorganics
$250.00 $410.00

As, Be, Cd, Cr, Pb, Hg, Ni, Se, Zn, Ag, Sb, Cu, Tl, Ba,

40 CFR 258 Appendix I 

Volatiles

Co, Sn, V, CN-, S

Water Potability Profile

Dade Non-Community 

Drinking Water Profile
$805.00 _

V.A./F.H.A/H.U.D. pH, TDS, Hardness, Turbidity, Cu, Pb, Fe, As

NO3, FL-, Coliform, NO2, Cl, Br, ophosphate, sulfate

Odor, Ba, Fe, Mn, Na, Zn, CN-, Fl-, SO4, Phenols, MBAS,

$84.00 _

Sb, As, Be, Cd, Cr, Cu, Pb, Hg, Ni, Se, Ag, Tl, Zn

Chloride, Total Hardness, pH, Conductivity, Nitrate

Color, Ca, Fe, TDS

$165.00 _

Ni, k, Se, Na, Tl, V, Zn, CN-, Ag, Sn, S, % Solids

COMMONLY REQUESTED PROFILES
Designate profile name on chain of custody for best pricing and convenience.

Package Name Description of Package
Cost of Analysis

Priority Pollutant Metals

ECR II Profile

Sb, As, Ba, Be, Cd, Cr, Co, Cu, Pb, Ni, Se, Ag, Tl, V, Zn

RCRA 8 Metals Ag, As, Ba, Cd, Cr, Hg, Pb, Se

$150.00

EPA 8260 w/ Extended List, 8011
$127.00

Color, pH,  As, Cd, Cu, Pb, Hg, Se, Ag, Hex-Cr, TDS,

NO3, Turbidity, CL-, EPA 504, 508, 515, 524.2

Al, Sb, As, Ba, Be, Cd,Ca, Cr, Co, Cu, Fe, Mg, Mn, Hg,

140.1, 9045, S160.3, 1010

1311/(6010/7471/8260).

$618.00

TAL List-Inorganics/Metals
$320.00

TCL List Organics

40 CFR 258 Appendix I Metals 
$225.00

$310.00

EPA 8260, 8270, 8081/8082

Page 8

Agenda Page 23



Cost

$215.00

$505.00

$460.00

TCLP RCRA 4 Metals

$510.00

$381.00

DERM

Clean Backfill Criteria

*In the case of Used Oils, profile will need to include PCBs at an additional charge of $50.00 per sample.

Pre-burn Parameters

1311/6010/7471, 8260LL, 

8270, PRO, 9071

$331.00
6010, 7471, 8260, FL-PRO, 

8082

$499.00

$235.00

CFR 266.40 Waste Oil, 

Energy Recovery Profile

Pb, Hg, Mo, Ni, K, Se, Zn, pH

160.3, 6010, 7471, 9045

expressed as dry weight

%Solids, Nitrogen, Phosphorus, As, Cd, Cr, Cu

$156.00

$521.00

$260.00

$521.00

Petroleum 376.301 Group

%Solids

Petroleum Contaminated 

TABLE D

POST Treatment

62-713

Non-Petroleum Contaminated

Petroleum Contaminated 

Non-Petroleum Contaminated

$183.00

$540.00

$706.00

62-770:*

$268.00

$200.00
S: 8260 VOA, 

8270 PAH, FL-PRO. Tsolids

8260 VOH, FL-PRO, 6010B,

62-770:*

Gas & Kerosene Group

5050/9056

8260, 8270, 8081, 6010B

62-713

TOX (added when oil is of concern) + $32.00

Volatile Organics, Semi-Volatile Organics, 

Pesticides, As, Ba, Cd, Cr, Pb, Se, Ag, Hg

%Solids

UST, REMEDIATION, DISPOSAL, & SLUDGE PACKAGES
Designate profile name on chain of custody for best pricing and convenience

Package Name Description of Package Test Methods

POST Treatment

TABLE B

TABLE C

Used Oil Group

Volatile Halocarbons, As, Cd, Cr, Pb, 

FLPRO, %Solids, 

PRE Treatment

62-713

PRE Treatment

62-713

$288.00

$308.00
%Solids

W: 8260, 8270, 8011, 200

series, FL-PRO, 300, 160.1

S: 8260, 8270, 7000 or 

6010 series, FL-PRO

FL-PRO, CL- SO4, TDS

SOIL: VOA, VOH, PAH, FL-PRO, As, Cd, Cr, Pb

Statue 503

Sludge Analysis

RINKER (CEMEX)

62-770.*

% Solids

Volatile Organics, Semi-Volatile Organics, 

Pesticides, As, Ba, Cd, Cr, Pb, Se, Ag, Hg

WATER: VOA, VOH, PAH, EDB, As,Cd, Cr, Pb, 

CFR 122, App. D

Priority Pollutants

(with Florida extras)

Volatile Aromatic, FL-PRO, As, Cd

Cr, Pb, Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons,

As, Cd, Cr, Pb, Priority Pollutant Volatiles, Priority 

Pollutant Semi-Volatiles, PCB's, FL-PRO, Non-Priority 

Pollutant Organics > 10.00 (waters only), %Solids 

(soils only)
FL-PRO, 

%solids

WATER: Pb, FL-PRO, EDB, Volatile Aromatics

and Halocarbons, MTBE, PAH

SOIL: FL-PRO, Volatile Aromatics, PAHs, 

S: 6010, 8260, 8270, 8082, 

Semi-Volatile Organics, Pesticides & PCBs,

% Solids

pH, % Solids

Sb, As, Be, Cd, Cr, Cu, Pb, Hg, Ni, Se, Ag, Tl, 

Zn, Cyanide, Phenols, Volatile Organics, 

As, Cd, Cr, Pb, Hg, Flashpoint, Halogens, 

S: 6010, 9012, 9065, 8260, 

8260, 8270, 8081

6010B, 7471

W: Lead, FL-PRO, 504.1

8260 VOA/VOH, 8270 PAH

(if needed per table C)

W: 200.7, 8260, 8270, 8082,

FL-PRO, Library search.

8270, 8081/8082

6010,7471, 1010, 

5050/9056, 9045

VOA, VOH, PAH's, PRO, Oil & Grease, % Solids

TCLP (As, Ba, Cd, Cr, Pb, Hg, Se, Ag, Ni, Cu,)

As, Cd, Cr, Pb, Hg, Se, Ag, Ba, VOA, VOH

FL-PRO, Total Organic Halogens, %Solids

For "Non-Virgin" add PCB

5050/9056

8260, 8270, 8081, 

7471

W: 200 Series, 335.3, 420.2

8260 VOA, FL-PRO, 

8270 PAH, 6010B

Page 9

Agenda Page 24



Herbicides(8151) $120.00 Pesticides (8081) $95.00

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

5.0

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-82700.5

400.0

1311/1312-8151/8270

2.0

10.0

1.0 1311/1312-8151/8270

100.0

88-06-02

94-75-7

3.0

0.4

10.0

2.0

67-72-1

58-89-9

72-43-5

98-95-3

2,4,6,-trichlorophenol

2,4-D

2,4,5-TP(silvex) 93-72-1

87-86-5

110-86-1

8001-35-2

95-95-4

Hexachloroethane

Lindane

Methoxychlor

Nitrobenzene

Pentachlorophenol

Pyridine

Toxaphene

2,4,5-trichlorophenol

Metals(8-RCRA) $131.00  Volatiles(8260) $90.00  Semi-volatiles(8270) $195.00 

INDIVIDUAL PRICING:  TCLP or SPLP Extraction (one-time Charge Only) $50.00

D038

D015

D041

D042

D016

D017

D033

D034

D013

D014

D036

D037

Hexachlorobutadiene

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-82700.02

0.008

0.13

0.5

Endrin

1311/1312-8260

1311/1312-8260

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8260

1311/1312-8260

1311/1312-8260

1311/1312-8260

1311/1312-8260

1311/1312-6010

1311/1312-6010

1311/1312-8260

1311/1312-8260

1311/1312-8260

1311/1312-8260

0.03

200.0

200.0

200.0

200.0

0.13

0.5

0.7

200.0

0.7

0.5

0.2

5.0

0.5

0.5

100.0

6.0

7.5

D030

D012

D031

D032

5.0

100.0

1.0

5.0

0.2

1.0

D040

D043

D020

D023

D024

D025

Heptachlor

Hexachlorobenzene

D022

D022

D027

D028

D029

D035

D039

m-Cresol

p-Cresol

Cresol

2,4-Dintrotulene

Trichloroethylene

Vinyl Chloride

Chlordane

0-Cresol

118-74-1

87-68-3

Carbon Tetrachloride

Chlorobenzene

Chloroform

1,4-Dichlorobenzene

1,2-Dicholoroethane

1,1-Dichloroethylene

Methyl Ethyl Ketone

Tetrachlorethylene

108-39-4

106-44-5

121-14-2

72-20-8

76-44-8

78-9393

127-18-4

79-01-6

75-01-4

57-75-9

95-48-7

56-23-5

109-90-7

67-66-3

106-46-7

107-06-2

75-35-4

Benzene

7440-39-3

7440-43-9

7440-47-3

7439-97-6

7782-49-2

7440-22-4

71-43-2

7439-92-1

Barium

D018

D019

D021

7440-38-2

Cadmium

Chromium

Mercury

Selenium

Silver

D007

D010

D011

D004 Arsenic

D006

D008 Lead

D005

Level (MG/L)

Method of

Analysis

D009

1311/1312-6010

1311/1312-6010

1311/1312-6010

1311/1312-7471

1311/1312-6010

TCLP/SPLP ANALYSIS AND PRICING

5.0 1311/1312-6010

FULL TCLP or SPLP: $681.00

EPA Hazardous

Waste No. Contaminant Service Number

Chemical Abstracts Regulatory 

Page 10

Agenda Page 25



Cost

$170.00

$145.00

$200.00

$315.00

$85.00

$879.00

.

Method Cost

SM9211 $110.00

SM9211 $157.00

SM9223B $20.00

SM9222B $20.00

SM9222D $20.00

EPA 1103.1 $68.00

SM9221F $48.00

SM9230C $20.00

EPA1600 $25.00

SM9213E $65.00

SM9213B $65.00

SM9260B $65.00

SM9610 $80.00

SM9222D $70.00

SM9020 $325.00

SM9020 $325.00

SM9211D $85.00

SM9240 $55.00

SM9240 $55.00

SM9211 $80.00

SM9215 $30.00

SM9610 $80.00

Method Cost

SM9020 $325.00
200.7 $115.00

Fecal Streptococci

MPN Fecal & Sludge

Bacteriological Quality DI Water

Student's T

A. Water Suitability Test

Total Plate Count* (Heterotrophic)

Mold

Analysis

Coliphage Virus

Iron Reducing Bacteria

Sulfur Reducing Bacteria

Microscopic Examination (Micro ID)

Yeast & Mold

B. Trace Metals

Microbiologicals

Enterococci

Pseudomonas

Staphylococci

Salmonella

Total Coliform 

Fecal Coliform

E.coli P/A

Laboratory Pure Water

DRINKING WATER 62-550 PRICING
(based on DEP Reporting Format 62-550.730 Revised January 2004)

Regulation Description

62-550.310 (1)

62-550.320

Inorganic Contaminants*

Secondary Contaminants

potential dioxin source. If required for facility, Dioxin by EPA Method 1613 (TCDD Only)..........$550.00 {subcontracted}

Florida DEP SAFE DW

Total Coliform/ E.Coli 

E.coli (sludge)

Microbial Identification (speciation)

Biofilm Organisms

MICROBIOLOGICAL & LAB PURE WATER TESTING

*A statewide waiver explains only those systems with known asbestos containing pipes or components are required 

Analysis

Any Microbiological samples dropped off, picked up or sampled on a Friday

or day before a Holiday will be subject to a Weekend Charge of $75.00.

62-550.310 (4)(a)
62-550.310 (4)(b)

Complete 62-550
Reporting Format #62-550.730(rev. 1/04)

$1,794.00

Volatile Organics
Synthetic Organics**

to monitor ASBESTOS. If required for your facility, Asbestos by TEM………………..……………….$275.00{subcontract}

** A Statewide waiver explains DIOXIN only needs to tested in the public water systems whose source 

is "under direct influence of surface water" or ground water wells located within 1.6 km (1.0 mile) of a 

PACKAGE-waivers

Disinfection By-Products

Radionuclides

62.550.310 (3)

62.550.310 (6)

Page 11

Agenda Page 26



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

COLLIER COUNTY  
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
 
 

Solicitation #13-6148, Analytical Laboratory Services 
 
 
 
 
 

Evelyn Colón, Procurement Strategist 

239-252-2667 (Telephone) 

239-252-2810 (Fax) 

evelyncolon@colliergov.net (Email) 

 

 

This proposal solicitation document is prepared in a Microsoft Word format.  Any alterations to this document 
made by the Vendor may be grounds for rejection of proposal, cancellation of any subsequent award, or any 
other legal remedies available to the Collier County Government. 

 

Agenda Page 27



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

2 

 

Table of Contents 
 
 

LEGAL NOTICE .................................................................................................................................................................. 3 

EXHIBIT I: SCOPE OF WORK, SPECIFICATIONS AND RESPONSE FORMAT ........................................................................... 4 

EXHIBIT II: GENERAL RFP INSTRUCTIONS .........................................................................................................................52 

EXHIBIT III: COLLIER COUNTY PURCHASE ORDER TERMS AND CONDITIONS ....................................................................56 

EXHIBIT IV: ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR RFP...........................................................................................60 

ATTACHMENT 1: VENDOR’S NON-RESPONSE STATEMENT ...............................................................................................68 

ATTACHMENT 2: VENDOR CHECK LIST .............................................................................................................................69 

ATTACHMENT 3: CONFLICT OF INTEREST AFFIDAVIT ........................................................................................................70 

ATTACHMENT 4: VENDOR DECLARATION STATEMENT ....................................................................................................71 

ATTACHMENT 5: AFFIDAVIT FOR CLAIMING STATUS AS A LOCAL BUSINESS ....................................................................73 

ATTACHMENT 6: IMMIGRATION AFFIDAVIT CERTIFICATION ...........................................................................................74 

ATTACHMENT 7: VENDOR SUBSTITUTE W – 9 .................................................................................................................75 

ATTACHMENT 8: INSURANCE AND BONDING REQUIREMENTS ........................................................................................76 

ATTACHMENT 9: REFERENCE QUESTIONNAIRE ................................................................................................................78 

Agenda Page 28



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

3 

 

 
 

Legal Notice 
 
Sealed Proposals to provide Analytical Laboratory Services will be received until 3:00 P.M. Naples 
local time, on November 7th, 2013 at the Collier County Government, Purchasing Department, 3327 
Tamiami Trail E, Naples, FL 34112. 
 
 

Solicitation  
 

#13-6148, Analytical Laboratory Services 
 
 
Services to be provided may include, but not be limited to the following: Analytical Laboratory Services. 
 
All statements shall be made upon the official proposal form which may be obtained on the Collier 
County Purchasing Department Online Bidding System website: www.colliergov.net/bid.  
 
Collier County does not discriminate based on age, race, color, sex, religion, national origin, disability 
or marital status. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
      COLLIER COUNTY, FLORIDA,  
 
 
      BY:  /S/   Joanne Markiewicz      
          Interim Purchasing & General Services Director  
 
This Public Notice was posted on the Collier County Purchasing Department website: 
www.colliergov.net/purchasing and in the Lobby of Purchasing Building "G", Collier County 
Government Center on October 9th, 2013. 
 
 

Agenda Page 29

http://www.colliergov.net/bid
http://www.colliergov.net/purchasing


13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

4 

 

Exhibit I: Scope of Work, Specifications and Response Format 
 

 
As requested by the Collier County Public Utilities Department (hereinafter, the Department”), the 
Collier County Board of County Commissioners Purchasing Department (hereinafter, “County”) has 
issued this Request for Proposal (hereinafter, “RFP”) with the intent of obtaining proposals from 
interested and qualified Consultants in accordance with the terms, conditions and specifications 
stated or attached.  The Consultant, at a minimum, must achieve the requirements of the 
Specifications or Scope of Work stated.    
 
The results of this solicitation may be used by other County departments once awarded according to 
the Board of County Commissioners Purchasing Policy. 
 
Brief Description of Purchase 
 
The Contractor, at a minimum, must achieve the requirements of the Specifications or Scope of Work 
stated herein. Additionally, Proposers may also propose alternate solutions to achieve the 
requirements of the Scope of Work.  Historically, County departments have spent approximately 
$160,000.00 annually. 
 
Background 
 
Collier County, Florida requires Analytical Laboratory Services for its Public Utilities Division which 
includes the following Departments: Pollution Control and Prevention (PC&P), Public Utilities Division 
including Water (WAT), Wastewater (WW) and Solid Waste (SW) as well Pelican Bay (PB) Services. 
Representative lists of the services to be provided are included (see tables). The services required by 
this contract shall include but not be limited to the items on these exhibits. The County shall order 
analytical services as required but makes no guarantee as to the quantity, number, type or 
distribution of tests that will be ordered. Laboratory Services shall be requested as needed 
throughout the year.  

 
Detailed Scope of Work 
 
It should be understood by proposers that they do not have to be certified for every parameter on the 
list to submit a proposal.  Proposals will be accepted for specific and/or for all certifications. 
 
It shall be understood and agreed that any and all services, materials and equipment shall comply 
fully with all Local, State and Federal laws and regulations. 
 
Contractor responsibilities include the following scope of work items: 
 
Laboratory Requirements  
 
Laboratories should prepare unit costs for specified parameters for the life of the Contract.  The 
actual numbers of samples to be analyzed for any given parameter may vary from the estimated 
number.   

 
1. Laboratories must be certified by DOH and NELAC, and demonstrate participation in the NELAC 

Quality Assurance and Quality Control Program for all parameters for which there is DOH and 
NELAC certification.  These certifications must be maintained for the life of the contract.  

 

Agenda Page 30



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

5 

 

2. Results sent to the appropriate Collier County Department must be signed by the QA/QC officer 
or designee of the company verifying the authenticity of the analyses. 

 
3. For all parameters, the analytical method used (including quality controls) must provide for 

minimum detection limits, be specified and approved by the Department of Environmental 
Protection (FDEP). All Drinking Water analysis must be per F.A.C 62-550. 

 
4. The laboratory must complete all Chain of Custody forms as appropriate and return the original 

completed forms to appropriate Collier County Department. 

 
5. Properly pre cleaned sample containers and preservatives for samples that require them will be 

provided by contracted lab. 
 
6. Laboratories may subcontract a portion of the analysis to "other facilities". The "other facilities" 

are subject to the same requirements listed herein. 
 
7. The contracted lab must be responsible for the cost of all packing and shipping of samples and 

containers that will be sent to other laboratories for subsequent analysis. All results must include 
the contract laboratories name, address and state certification. 

 
8. The contracted lab must supply, in good condition, the properly pre cleaned sample containers 

(tightly sealed), and coolers, for the samples to be shipped back to the contracted laboratory.  All 
sample tags or labels must be provided by the contracted lab. The contracted lab will be 
responsible for all shipping/handling charges for this only. 

 
9. All results reported to the appropriate Collier County Department must include the 

program/project name, the County's ID number, Station, Name of the Parameter, the EPA Store#, 
Detection Limits, Preservative(s) used, the date collected/received, date analysis performed and 
analyst performing analyses and method used. 

 
10. Laboratory must notify appropriate Collier County Department immediately if analysis cannot be 

performed, i.e., loss of certification, broken bottles, samples received beyond acceptable holding 
times, malfunctioning instrumentation/equipment, etc. 

 

11. For chemical analysis, "Greater Than", will not be accepted. 
 

12. Results of the laboratory analyses must be available within ten (10) working days after receipt of 
the samples by the lab and the written report must be postmarked within fifteen (15) days.  A 
mechanism must also be available for electronic transmission of data via a modem using a 
database or spreadsheet program compatible with Collier County's system (e.g., electronic mail 
or fax machine). 

 

13. A telephone number of the lab director or responsible person will be provided so that the County 
can make arrangements for special circumstances (i.e. after normal working hours, weekends, 
etc). 

 

14. The contracted laboratory will submit invoices which provide a summary of the number of specific 
parameters analyzed by name of Program/Projects, by the County's sample ID number, the 
assigned Purchase Order number and date collected for each billing period. Important: Since 
this contract will be utilized by multiple County departments, samples from different sites 
must be invoiced separately. 

 

Agenda Page 31



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

6 

 

15. In the event samples are lost by the Contractor or not properly analyzed (e.g. incorrect 
parameters analyzed, samples analyzed beyond approved holding times without County lab 
authorization, etc.), the Contractor will be liable for costs incurred by the County in collecting 
additional samples.  These costs will include human resources, transportation and any supplies 
associated with sampling the parameter(s) in question.  Any other associated cost incurred by 
Collier County as a consequence of improper/incorrect analysis of samples shall be Contractor's 
responsibility and liability. 

 

16. All Drinking Water Analytical results must be on, or accompanied by, signed "Public Drinking 
Water Analysis Reporting Forms".  All reporting forms shall be current. 

 

17. A DOH analytic sheet for all certified parameters must accompany each proposal submitted. 
 

18. Results for samples that have multiple parameters shall be listed on one report sheet. Results for 
samples with a single parameter can be combined in table form. Samples will be identified by the 
Departmental I.D. Number, Program/Project Name, Station, Name of the Parameter, and the date 
collected and analyzed. 

 

19. Contractor(s) shall be responsible for providing appropriate shipping and sampling containers at 
no charge to the County.  Contractors shall also be responsible for the expense of shipping said 
containers as well as samples, to and from County locations at no charge, as well as arranging 
the appropriate shipping method. 

 

20. Data shall be submitted to the Pollution Control and Prevention Laboratory in a specific digital 
format.  Laboratory Receipt and Result Electronic Data Deliverables (LRD and EDD) shall be 
required to be Automatic Data Processing Tool (ADaPT) format as specified in Appendix A.  The 
Pollution Control and Prevention Laboratory require laboratories to utilize the ADaPT software to 
perform its own automated data review soon after analysis is complete.  The laboratory version 
reads the EDD, checks it against the EDD specifications and against an electronic Quality 
Assurance Project Plan library for errors using the CLP protocol.  If any error is found it allows 
and facilitates its correction.  Data submitted to the Pollution Control and Prevention Laboratory in 
the ADaPT format must include all applicable NELAC required quality control and parent 
samples.  After all errors are corrected, the EDD, EDD Error Log and LRD are to be exported as 
.txt files and delivered to the Pollution Control and Prevention QA/Project Manager.  

 

21. All metals data submitted to the Pollution Control and Prevention Laboratory shall be in ug/L. 
 

22. All laboratory analytical reports prepared for an industrial user or a control authority must comply 
with Rule 62-160.670, F.A.C.  Wastewater samples should be analyzed using the approved 
methods listed in 40 CFR 136.  Also, in accordance with Rule 62-4.246, F.A.C., the control 
authority must ensure approved analytical methods that are used to achieve appropriate method 
detection limit (MDL) and practical quantization limit (PQL) for determining compliance with 
parameter limits.  Accordingly, industrial users and control authorities should refer to the table 
located at ftp://ftp.dep.state.fl.us/pub/labs/assessment/guidance/mdlpql.pdf to determine the 
correct analytical method, and appropriate MDL and PQL, for each pollutant.  To ensure that the 
contracted laboratory can meet the necessary MDLs and PQLs, the control authority should 
consider requesting the documentation to support their claims for MDLs and PQLs. 

 

23. The flow of work stated on the following pages is for proposers informational purposes only and 
no guarantee is given or implied that this is an exact schedule of required services during the 
contract period. It should be understood by proposers that they do not have to be certified for 

Agenda Page 32



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

7 

 

every parameter or matrix on the list to submit a proposal.  Proposals will be accepted for specific 
and/or for all certifications. 

 

Matrix Analyte 

Drinking Water   1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane  

Drinking Water   1,1,1-Trichloro-2-propanone  

Drinking Water   1,1,1-Trichloroethane  

Drinking Water   1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane  

Drinking Water   1,1,2-Trichloroethane  

Drinking Water   1,1-Dichloro-2-propanone  

Drinking Water   1,1-Dichloroethane  

Drinking Water   1,1-Dichloroethene 

Drinking Water   1,1-Dichloroethylene  

Drinking Water   1,1-Dichloropropene  

Drinking Water   1,2 Dichlorobenzene 

Drinking Water   1,2 Dichloroethane 

Drinking Water   1,2 Dichloropropane 

Drinking Water   1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene  

Drinking Water   1,2,3-Trichloropropane  

Drinking Water   1,2,4,5-Tetrachlorobenzene  

Drinking Water   1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene  

Drinking Water   1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene  

Drinking Water   1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP)  

Drinking Water   1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) 

Drinking Water   1,2-Dichlorobenzene  

Drinking Water   1,2-Dichloroethane  

Drinking Water   1,2-Dichloropropane 

Drinking Water   1,2-Dinitrobenzene  

Drinking Water   1,2-Diphenylhydrazine  

Drinking Water   1,3 Dichlorobenzene 

Drinking Water   1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene  

Drinking Water   1,3,5-Trinitrobenzene (1 3 5-TNB)  

Drinking Water   1,3-Dichlorobenzene  

Drinking Water   1,3-Dichloropropane  

Drinking Water   1,3-Dinitrobenzene 

Drinking Water   1,3-Dinitrobenzene (1 3-DNB)  

Drinking Water   1,4 Dichlorobenzene 

Drinking Water   1,4-Dioxane (1 4-Diethyleneoxide)  

Drinking Water   1,4-Naphthoquinone  

Drinking Water   1,4-Phenylenediamine  

Drinking Water   1-CHLOROBUTANE 

Drinking Water   1-Chloronaphthalene  

Drinking Water   1-Methylnaphthalene  

Drinking Water   1-Naphthylamine  

Drinking Water   2,2', 3,3', 4,4',6-HEPTACHLOROBIPHENYL 

Drinking Water   2,2', 3,3', 4,5', 6,6'-OCTACHLOROBIPHENYL 

Agenda Page 33



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

8 

 

Drinking Water   2,2', 4,4', 5,6'-HEXACHLOROBIPHENYL 

Drinking Water   2,2', 4,4'-TETRACHLOROBYPHENYL 

Drinking Water   2,2` 3,3` 4,5` 6,6`-Octachlorobiphenyl (BZ 201)  

Drinking Water   
2,2` 3` 4,6-Pentachlorobiphenyl (525.2 typo for 2 2` 
3 4` 6`-Pentachlorobiphenyl)  

Drinking Water   2,2` 4,4`-Tetrachlorobiphenyl (BZ 47)  

Drinking Water   2,2-Dichloropropane  

Drinking Water   2,3,4,6-Tetrachlorophenol  

Drinking Water   2,3,7,8-Tetrachloro-dibenzodioxin 

Drinking Water   2,3-Dichloroaniline  

Drinking Water   2,3-Dichlorobiphenyl 

Drinking Water   2,4,5-T 

Drinking Water   2,4,5-TP (Silvex) 

Drinking Water   2,4,5-TRICHLOROBIPHENYL 

Drinking Water   2,4,5-Trichlorophenol 

Drinking Water   2,4,6-Trichlorophenol  

Drinking Water   2,4,6-Trinitrotoluene 

Drinking Water   2,4-D  

Drinking Water   2,4-DB  

Drinking Water   2,4-Dichlorophenol  

Drinking Water   2,4-Dimethylphenol 

Drinking Water   2,4-Dinitrophenol  

Drinking Water   2,4-Dinitrotoluene (2 4-DNT)  

Drinking Water   2,6-Dichlorophenol  

Drinking Water   2,6-Dinitrotoluene (2 6-DNT)  

Drinking Water   2-Acetylaminofluorene  

Drinking Water   2-Amino-4,6-dinitrotoluene 

Drinking Water   2-Butanone (Methyl ethyl ketone MEK)  

Drinking Water   2-Chlorobiphenyl (BZ 1)  

Drinking Water   2-Chloroethyl vinyl ether  

Drinking Water   2-Chloronaphthalene  

Drinking Water   2-Chlorophenol  

Drinking Water   2-Chlorotoluene  

Drinking Water   2-Hexanone  

Drinking Water   2-Methyl-4 6-dinitrophenol  

Drinking Water   2-Methylnaphthalene  

Drinking Water   2-Methylphenol (o-Cresol)  

Drinking Water   2-Nitroaniline  

Drinking Water   2-Nitrophenol  

Drinking Water   2-Nitropropane  

Drinking Water   2-Nitrotoluene 

Drinking Water   2-Picoline (2-Methylpyridine)  

Drinking Water   3,3`-Dichlorobenzidine  

Drinking Water   3,3`-Dimethylbenzidine  

Drinking Water   3,3'-Dichlorobenzidine 

Drinking Water   3,5-Dichlorobenzoic acid  

Agenda Page 34



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

9 

 

Drinking Water   3/4-Methylphenols (m/p-Cresols)  

Drinking Water   3-Hydroxycarbofuran  

Drinking Water   3-Methylphenol (m-Cresol)  

Drinking Water   3-Nitroaniline  

Drinking Water   3-Nitrotoluene 

Drinking Water   4,4'-DDD 

Drinking Water   4,4'-DDE 

Drinking Water   4,4'-DDT 

Drinking Water   4-Amino-2,6-dinitrotoluene 

Drinking Water   4-Aminobiphenyl  

Drinking Water   4-Bromophenyl phenyl ether  

Drinking Water   4-Chloro-3-methylphenol  

Drinking Water   4-Chloroaniline  

Drinking Water   4-Chlorophenyl phenylether  

Drinking Water   4-Chlorotoluene  

Drinking Water   4-Dimethyl aminoazobenzene  

Drinking Water   4-Isopropyltoluene  

Drinking Water   4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK)  

Drinking Water   4-Methylphenol (p-Cresol)  

Drinking Water   4-Nitroaniline  

Drinking Water   4-Nitrotoluene 

Drinking Water   5-Nitro-o-toluidine  

Drinking Water   7 12-Dimethylbenz(a) anthracene  

Drinking Water   a-a-Dimethylphenethylamine  

Drinking Water   Acenaphthene 

Drinking Water   Acenaphthylene  

Drinking Water   ACEPHATE 

Drinking Water   Acetochlor  

Drinking Water   Acetone  

Drinking Water   Acetonitrile  

Drinking Water   Acetophenone  

Drinking Water   A-CHLORDANE 

Drinking Water   Acifluorfen  

Drinking Water   Acrolein (Propenal)  

Drinking Water   Acrylonitrile  

Drinking Water   Alachlor  

Drinking Water   Aldicarb (Temik)  

Drinking Water   Aldicarb sulfone  

Drinking Water   Aldicarb sulfoxide  

Drinking Water   Aldrin  

Drinking Water   Alkalinity as CaCO3 

Drinking Water   ALLYL CHLORIDE 

Drinking Water   alpha-BHC (alpha-Hexachlorocyclohexane)  

Drinking Water   Aluminum  

Drinking Water   Amenable cyanide  

Drinking Water   Ametryn  

Agenda Page 35



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

10 

 

Drinking Water   Ammonia as N  

Drinking Water   ANILAZINE 

Drinking Water   Aniline  

Drinking Water   Anthracene  

Drinking Water   Antimony  

Drinking Water   Aramite  

Drinking Water   Aroclor-1016 (PCB-1016)  

Drinking Water   Aroclor-1221 (PCB-1221)  

Drinking Water   Aroclor-1232 (PCB-1232)  

Drinking Water   Aroclor-1242 (PCB-1242)  

Drinking Water   Aroclor-1248 (PCB-1248)  

Drinking Water   Aroclor-1254 (PCB-1254)  

Drinking Water   Aroclor-1260 (PCB-1260)  

Drinking Water   Arsenic  

Drinking Water   Asbestos  

Drinking Water   Aspon  

Drinking Water   Atraton  

Drinking Water   Atrazine  

Drinking Water   Azinphos-methyl (Guthion)  

Drinking Water   Barium  

Drinking Water   Barium-133 

Drinking Water   Baygon 

Drinking Water   Bentazon  

Drinking Water   Bentazon  

Drinking Water   Benzene  

Drinking Water   Benzidine  

Drinking Water   Benzo (g,h,i)perylene 

Drinking Water   Benzo(a)anthracene  

Drinking Water   Benzo(a)pyrene  

Drinking Water   Benzo(b)fluoranthene  

Drinking Water   Benzo(g h i)perylene  

Drinking Water   Benzo(k)fluoranthene  

Drinking Water   Benzoic acid  

Drinking Water   Benzyl alcohol  

Drinking Water   Benzyl butyl phthalate 

Drinking Water   Beryllium  

Drinking Water   beta-BHC (beta-Hexachlorocyclohexane)  

Drinking Water   beta-Naphthylamine  

Drinking Water   BIFENTHRIN 

Drinking Water   bis(2-Chloroethoxy)methane  

Drinking Water   bis(2-Chloroethyl) ether  

Drinking Water   
bis(2-Chloroisopropyl) ether (2 2`-Oxybis(1-
chloropropane))  

Drinking Water   bis(2-Ethylhexyl) phthalate (DEHP)  

Drinking Water   Boron 

Drinking Water   Bromacil  

Agenda Page 36



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

11 

 

Drinking Water   Bromate  

Drinking Water   Bromide  

Drinking Water   Bromoacetic acid  

Drinking Water   Bromobenzene  

Drinking Water   Bromochloroacetic Acid 

Drinking Water   Bromochloroacetonitrile  

Drinking Water   Bromochloromethane  

Drinking Water   Bromodichloromethane  

Drinking Water   Bromoform 

Drinking Water   Bromomethane 

Drinking Water   Butachlor 

Drinking Water   Butachlor  

Drinking Water   Butyl benzyl phthalate  

Drinking Water   Butylate  

Drinking Water   Butylbenzylphthalate 

Drinking Water   C/T-1,3-DICHLOROPROPENE  

Drinking Water   C-1,2-DICHLOROETHYLENE  

Drinking Water   C-1,3-DICHLOROPROPYLENE  

Drinking Water   Ca Hardness as CaCO3 

Drinking Water   Cadmium  

Drinking Water   Calcium  

Drinking Water   Carbaryl (Sevin)  

Drinking Water   Carbazole  

Drinking Water   Carbofuran (Furaden)  

Drinking Water   Carbon disulfide  

Drinking Water   Carbon tetrachloride  

Drinking Water   Carboxin  

Drinking Water   Cesium-1347 

Drinking Water   Cesium-1377 

Drinking Water   Chloral hydrate  

Drinking Water   Chloramben  

Drinking Water   Chlorate  

Drinking Water   Chlordane (tech.)  

Drinking Water   Chlorfenvinphos  

Drinking Water   Chloride  

Drinking Water   Chlorine dioxide res. disinfectant  

Drinking Water   Chlorine  

Drinking Water   Chlorite  

Drinking Water   Chloroacetic acid  

Drinking Water   Chloroacetonitrile  

Drinking Water   Chlorobenzene  

Drinking Water   CHLOROBENZILATE  

Drinking Water   Chlorodibromomethane 

Drinking Water   Chloroethane  

Drinking Water   Chloroform  

Drinking Water   Chloromethane 

Agenda Page 37



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

12 

 

Drinking Water   CHLORONEB  

Drinking Water   Chloropicrin  

Drinking Water   Chloroprene  

Drinking Water   Chlorothalonil  

Drinking Water   Chlorpropham  

Drinking Water   CHLORPYRIPHOS (DURSBAN)  

Drinking Water   Chromium VI  

Drinking Water   Chromium  

Drinking Water   Chrysene  

Drinking Water   cis-1,2-Dichloroethene 

Drinking Water   Cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene 

Drinking Water   Cis-1,3-Dichloropropene 

Drinking Water   cis-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene  

Drinking Water   CIS-PERMETHRIN  

Drinking Water   Cobalt  

Drinking Water   Cobalt-60 

Drinking Water   Color  

Drinking Water   Conductivity  

Drinking Water   Copper  

Drinking Water   Corrosivity (langlier index)  

Drinking Water   Coumaphos  

Drinking Water   Crotoxyphos  

Drinking Water   Cryptosporidium  

Drinking Water   CYANAZINE 

Drinking Water   Cyanide  

Drinking Water   Cycloate  

Drinking Water   CYFLUTHRIN 

Drinking Water   Dacthal (DCPA)  

Drinking Water   Dalapon  

Drinking Water   DCPA di acid degradate  

Drinking Water   DCPA mono-acid  

Drinking Water   delta-BHC  

Drinking Water   Demeton-o  

Drinking Water   Demeton-s  

Drinking Water   Di(2-Ethylhexyl) Adipate 

Drinking Water   Di(2-Ethylhexyl) Phthalate 

Drinking Water   Di(2-ethylhexyl)adipate  

Drinking Water   DI(2-ETHYLHEXYL)PHTHALATE  

Drinking Water   Diallate  

Drinking Water   Diazinon  

Drinking Water   Dibenz(a h) anthracene  

Drinking Water   Dibenz(a j) acridine  

Drinking Water   Dibenzofuran  

Drinking Water   Dibromoacetic acid  

Drinking Water   Dibromoacetonitrile  

Drinking Water   Dibromochloromethane  

Agenda Page 38



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

13 

 

Drinking Water   DIBROMOCHLOROPROPANE  

Drinking Water   Dibromomethane  

Drinking Water   Dicamba  

Drinking Water   Dichloroacetic acid  

Drinking Water   Dichloroacetonitrile  

Drinking Water   Dichlorodifluoromethane  

Drinking Water   Dichlorofenthion  

Drinking Water   Dichloromethane (DCM Methylene chloride)  

Drinking Water   Dichloroprop (Dichlorprop)  

Drinking Water   Dichlorovos (DDVP Dichlorvos)  

Drinking Water   Dicrotophos  

Drinking Water   Dieldrin  

Drinking Water   Diesel Range Organics (DRO) 

Drinking Water   Diethyl ether  

Drinking Water   Diethylphthalate  

Drinking Water   Di-isopropylether (DIPE) 

Drinking Water   Dimethoate  

Drinking Water   Dimethylphthalate 

Drinking Water   Di-n-butylphthalate 

Drinking Water   Di-n-octylphthalate 

Drinking Water   Dinoseb (2-sec-butyl-4 6-dinitrophenol DNBP)  

Drinking Water   Dioxathion  

Drinking Water   Diphenamid  

Drinking Water   Diphenylamine  

Drinking Water   Diquat  

Drinking Water   DIRUON 

Drinking Water   Dissolved organic carbon (DOC)  

Drinking Water   DISULFOTON 

Drinking Water   DISULFOTON SULFONE 

Drinking Water   DISULFOTON SULFOXIDE 

Drinking Water   Endosulfan I  

Drinking Water   Endosulfan II  

Drinking Water   Endosulfan sulfate  

Drinking Water   Endothall  

Drinking Water   Endrin aldehyde  

Drinking Water   Endrin ketone  

Drinking Water   Endrin  

Drinking Water   EPN  

Drinking Water   EPTC (Eptam s-ethyl-dipropyl thio carbamate)  

Drinking Water   Ethanol  

Drinking Water   Ethion  

Drinking Water   Ethoprop  

Drinking Water   Ethyl acetate  

Drinking Water   Ethyl methacrylate  

Drinking Water   Ethyl methanesulfonate  

Drinking Water   Ethylbenzene  

Agenda Page 39



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

14 

 

Drinking Water   Ethylene Dibromide (EDB) 

Drinking Water   Ethylene glycol  

Drinking Water   ETHYLMETHACRYLATE  

Drinking Water   Ethyl-t-butylether (ETBE) 

Drinking Water   ETRIDIAZOLE  

Drinking Water   Fecal Coliform/E.Coli 

Drinking Water   Fecal coliforms  

Drinking Water   Fenamiphos  

Drinking Water   Fenarimol  

Drinking Water   Fenitrothion  

Drinking Water   Fensulfothion  

Drinking Water   Fenthion  

Drinking Water   FIPRONIL 

Drinking Water   Fluoranthene 

Drinking Water   Fluorene  

Drinking Water   Fluoride  

Drinking Water   Fluridone  

Drinking Water   Fonophos  

Drinking Water   
gamma-BHC (Lindane gamma-
Hexachlorocyclohexane)  

Drinking Water   G-CHLORDANE  

Drinking Water   Giardia  

Drinking Water   Glyphosate  

Drinking Water   Gross Alpha 

Drinking Water   Gross Beta 

Drinking Water   HALOACETIC ACIDS (TOTAL)  

Drinking Water   Hardness (calc.)  

Drinking Water   Hardness  

Drinking Water   Heptachlor epoxide  

Drinking Water   Heptachlor  

Drinking Water   Heterotrophic plate count  

Drinking Water   Hexachlorobenzene  

Drinking Water   Hexachlorobutadiene  

Drinking Water   Hexachlorocyclopentadiene  

Drinking Water   Hexachloroethane  

Drinking Water   Hexachlorophene  

Drinking Water   Hexachloropropene  

Drinking Water   Hexavalent Chromium (VI) 

Drinking Water   Hexazinone (Velpar)  

Drinking Water   Hexazinone  

Drinking Water   
HMX (Octahydro-1,3,5,7-tetranitro-1,3,5,7-
tetrazocine) 

Drinking Water   Hydrogen sulfide un-ionized (calculation)  

Drinking Water   Indeno(1 2 3-cd)pyrene  

Drinking Water   Iodine-131 

Drinking Water   Iodomethane (Methyl iodide)  

Agenda Page 40



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

15 

 

Drinking Water   Iron  

Drinking Water   Isobutyl alcohol (2-Methyl-1-propanol)  

Drinking Water   Isobutyraldehyde  

Drinking Water   Isodrin  

Drinking Water   Isophorone  

Drinking Water   Isopropanol  

Drinking Water   Isopropyl acetate  

Drinking Water   Isopropyl alcohol (2-Propanol)  

Drinking Water   Isopropyl ether  

Drinking Water   Isopropylbenzene  

Drinking Water   Isosafrole  

Drinking Water   Kepone  

Drinking Water   Kjeldahl nitrogen - total  

Drinking Water   Lead  

Drinking Water   Leptophos  

Drinking Water   Lindane 

Drinking Water   Lithium  

Drinking Water   Magnesium  

Drinking Water   MALATHION 

Drinking Water   MANCOZEB 

Drinking Water   Manganese  

Drinking Water   MCPA  

Drinking Water   MCPP  

Drinking Water   M-DICHLOROBENZENE  

Drinking Water   Mercury  

Drinking Water   Merphos  

Drinking Water   METHACRYLONITRILE  

Drinking Water   Methanol  

Drinking Water   Methapyrilene  

Drinking Water   Methiocarb (Mesurol)  

Drinking Water   Methomyl (Lannate)  

Drinking Water   Methoxychlor  

Drinking Water   METHYL ACRYLATE  

Drinking Water   Methyl bromide (Bromomethane)  

Drinking Water   Methyl chloride (Chloromethane)  

Drinking Water   Methyl formate  

Drinking Water   Methyl methacrylate  

Drinking Water   Methyl methanesulfonate  

Drinking Water   Methyl paraoxon  

Drinking Water   Methyl parathion (Parathion methyl)  

Drinking Water   Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE)  

Drinking Water   Methylene chloride  

Drinking Water   METHYLMETHACRYLATE  

Drinking Water   Metolachlor  

Drinking Water   Metribuzin  

Drinking Water   Mevinphos  

Agenda Page 41



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

16 

 

Drinking Water   MGK-264  

Drinking Water   Mirex  

Drinking Water   Molinate  

Drinking Water   Molybdenum 

Drinking Water   Monobromoacetic Acid 

Drinking Water   Monochloroacetic Acid 

Drinking Water   MONOCHLOROBENZENE  

Drinking Water   Monocrotophos  

Drinking Water   MONOSODIUMMETHANEARSONATE (MSMA) 

Drinking Water   Naled  

Drinking Water   n-Amyl acetate  

Drinking Water   Naphthalene  

Drinking Water   Napropamide  

Drinking Water   Natural Uranium 

Drinking Water   n-Butyl alcohol  

Drinking Water   n-Butylbenzene  

Drinking Water   n-Decane  

Drinking Water   n-Heptane  

Drinking Water   n-Hexane  

Drinking Water   Nickel  

Drinking Water   Nitrate as N  

Drinking Water   Nitrate  

Drinking Water   Nitrate-nitrite  

Drinking Water   Nitrite as N  

Drinking Water   Nitrite  

Drinking Water   Nitrobenzene  

Drinking Water   Nitroquinoline-1-oxide  

Drinking Water   n-Nitrosodiethylamine  

Drinking Water   n-Nitrosodimethylamine  

Drinking Water   n-Nitroso-di-n-butylamine  

Drinking Water   N-Nitroso-di-n-propylamine 

Drinking Water   n-Nitrosodiphenylamine  

Drinking Water   n-Nitrosomethylethylamine  

Drinking Water   n-Nitrosomorpholine  

Drinking Water   n-Nitrosopiperidine  

Drinking Water   n-Nitrosopyrrolidine  

Drinking Water   n-Octadecane  

Drinking Water   Norflurazon  

Drinking Water   Norflurazon  

Drinking Water   n-Propanol  

Drinking Water   n-Propylbenzene  

Drinking Water   o o o-Triethyl phosphorothioate  

Drinking Water   O-CHLOROTOLUENE  

Drinking Water   O-DICHLOROBENZENE  

Drinking Water   Odor  

Drinking Water   Organic nitrogen  

Agenda Page 42



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

17 

 

Drinking Water   Orthophosphate as P  

Drinking Water   o-Toluidine  

Drinking Water   OXADIAZON 

Drinking Water   Oxamyl  

Drinking Water   Paraquat 

Drinking Water   Parathion methyl 

Drinking Water   PCB Aroclor Identification 

Drinking Water   PCBs as decachlorobiphenyl 

Drinking Water   PCBs  

Drinking Water   P-CHLOROTOLUENE  

Drinking Water   P-DICHLOROBENZENE  

Drinking Water   p-Dioxane  

Drinking Water   Pebulate  

Drinking Water   Pentachlorobenzene  

Drinking Water   Pentachloroethane  

Drinking Water   PENTACHLORONITROBENZENE (PCNB) 

Drinking Water   Pentachlorophenol  

Drinking Water   Perchlorate  

Drinking Water   pH  

Drinking Water   Phenacetin  

Drinking Water   Phenanthrene  

Drinking Water   Phenol  

Drinking Water   Phosmet (Imidan)  

Drinking Water   Phosphamidon  

Drinking Water   Phosphorus total  

Drinking Water   Picloram  

Drinking Water   p-Isopropyltoluene  

Drinking Water   Potassium  

Drinking Water   PRODIAMINE 

Drinking Water   Prometon  

Drinking Water   Prometryn  

Drinking Water   Pronamide (Kerb)  

Drinking Water   Propachlor (Ramrod)  

Drinking Water   Propazine  

Drinking Water   Propionitrile (Ethyl cyanide)  

Drinking Water   Propoxur (Baygon)  

Drinking Water   Pyrene  

Drinking Water   Pyridine  

Drinking Water   Quinclorac  

Drinking Water   Radium-226  

Drinking Water   Radium-228  

Drinking Water   RDX (hexahydro-1,3,5-trinitro-1,3,5-triazine) 

Drinking Water   Residual Free Chlorine  

Drinking Water   Residue-filterable (TDS)  

Drinking Water   Residue-nonfilterable (TSS)  

Drinking Water   Residue-total  

Agenda Page 43



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

18 

 

Drinking Water   Residue-volatile  

Drinking Water   Ronnel  

Drinking Water   Safrole  

Drinking Water   sec-Butylbenzene  

Drinking Water   Selenium  

Drinking Water   Silica as SiO2  

Drinking Water   Silica-dissolved  

Drinking Water   Silicon  

Drinking Water   Silver  

Drinking Water   Silvex (2 4 5-TP)  

Drinking Water   Simazine  

Drinking Water   Simetryn  

Drinking Water   Sodium  

Drinking Water   Specific Conductance 

Drinking Water   Stirofos  

Drinking Water   Strontium-89 

Drinking Water   Strontium-90 

Drinking Water   Styrene  

Drinking Water   Sulfate  

Drinking Water   Sulfide  

Drinking Water   Sulfotepp  

Drinking Water   Surfactants - MBAS  

Drinking Water   T-1,2-DICHLOROETHYLENE  

Drinking Water   T-1,3-DICHLOROPROPYLENE  

Drinking Water   T-amylmethylether (TAME) 

Drinking Water   Tebuthiuron  

Drinking Water   Terbacil  

Drinking Water   Terbufos  

Drinking Water   Terbutryn  

Drinking Water   Tert-Butyl Alcohol 

Drinking Water   tert-Butylbenzene  

Drinking Water   Tetrachloroethene 

Drinking Water   Tetrachloroethylene (Perchloroethylene)  

Drinking Water   Tetraethyl pyrophosphate (TEPP)  

Drinking Water   TETRAHYDROFURAN  

Drinking Water   Tetryl (methyl-2,4,6-trinitrophenylnitramine) 

Drinking Water   Thallium  

Drinking Water   Thionazin (Zinophos)  

Drinking Water   THIOPHANATE-METHYL 

Drinking Water   Tin  

Drinking Water   Titanium  

Drinking Water   TOC 

Drinking Water   Tokuthion (Prothiophos)  

Drinking Water   Toluene  

Drinking Water   Total  Phosphorus 

Drinking Water   Total coliforms & E. coli  

Agenda Page 44



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

19 

 

Drinking Water   Total coliforms  

Drinking Water   Total cyanide  

Drinking Water   Total dissolved solids  

Drinking Water   Total Filterable Residue 

Drinking Water   Total haloacetic acids  

Drinking Water   Total Hardness as CaCO3 

Drinking Water   Total Kjeldahl-Nitrogen 

Drinking Water   Total nitrate-nitrite  

Drinking Water   Total organic carbon  

Drinking Water   Total Organic Halides (TOX) 

Drinking Water   TOTAL PCBS  

Drinking Water   Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons 

Drinking Water   Total phenolics  

Drinking Water   Total Residual Chlorine 

Drinking Water   Total trihalomethanes  

Drinking Water   Total Xylenes 

Drinking Water   Toxaphene (Chlorinated camphene)  

Drinking Water   trans-1,2-Dichloroethene 

Drinking Water   trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene  

Drinking Water   trans-1,3-Dichloropropylene  

Drinking Water   trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene  

Drinking Water   TRANS-PERMETHRIN  

Drinking Water   TRIADEMEFON  

Drinking Water   Trichlorfon  

Drinking Water   Trichloroacetic acid  

Drinking Water   Trichloroacetic acid  

Drinking Water   Trichloroacetonitrile  

Drinking Water   Trichloroethene (Trichloroethylene)  

Drinking Water   Trichloroethylene 

Drinking Water   Trichlorofluoromethane  

Drinking Water   Trichloronate  

Drinking Water   Trichlorotrifluoroethane (Freon 113) 

Drinking Water   Tricyclazole  

Drinking Water   Trifluralin (Treflan)  

Drinking Water   Tritium 

Drinking Water   Tungsten  

Drinking Water   Turbidity  

Drinking Water   Uranium  

Drinking Water   Use Test (Student's t) 

Drinking Water   UV 254  

Drinking Water   Vanadium  

Drinking Water   Vernolate  

Drinking Water   Vinyl acetate  

Drinking Water   Vinyl chloride  

Drinking Water   Xylene (total)  

Drinking Water   Zinc  

Agenda Page 45



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

20 

 

Drinking Water   Zinc-65 

Non-Potable Water   1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane 

Non-Potable Water   1,1,1-Trichloro-2-propanone  

Non-Potable Water   1,1,1-Trichloroethane  

Non-Potable Water   1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane  

Non-Potable Water   1,1,2-Trichloroethane 

Non-Potable Water   1,1-Dichloro-2-propanone  

Non-Potable Water   1,1-Dichloroethane  

Non-Potable Water   1,1-Dichloroethene 

Non-Potable Water   1,1-Dichloroethylene  

Non-Potable Water   1,1-Dichloropropene  

Non-Potable Water   1,2 Dichlorobenzene 

Non-Potable Water   1,2 Dichloroethane 

Non-Potable Water   1,2 Dichloropropane 

Non-Potable Water   1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene  

Non-Potable Water   1,2,3-Trichloropropane 

Non-Potable Water   1,2,3-Trichloropropane7 

Non-Potable Water   1,2,4,5-Tetrachlorobenzene  

Non-Potable Water   1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene  

Non-Potable Water   1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene  

Non-Potable Water   1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP)  

Non-Potable Water   1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB Ethylene dibromide)  

Non-Potable Water   1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) 

Non-Potable Water   1,2-Dichlorobenzene  

Non-Potable Water   1,2-Dichloroethane  

Non-Potable Water   1,2-Dichloropropane  

Non-Potable Water   1,2-Dinitrobenzene  

Non-Potable Water   1,2-Diphenylhydrazine  

Non-Potable Water   1,3 Dichlorobenzene 

Non-Potable Water   1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene  

Non-Potable Water   1,3,5-Trinitrobenzene (1 3 5-TNB)  

Non-Potable Water   1,3-Dichlorobenzene  

Non-Potable Water   1,3-Dichloropropane  

Non-Potable Water   1,3-Dinitrobenzene (1 3-DNB)  

Non-Potable Water   1,4 Dichlorobenzene 

Non-Potable Water   1,4-Dioxane (1 4-Diethyleneoxide)  

Non-Potable Water   1,4-Naphthoquinone  

Non-Potable Water   1,4-Phenylenediamine  

Non-Potable Water   1-CHLOROBUTANE 

Non-Potable Water   1-Chloronaphthalene  

Non-Potable Water   1-Methylnaphthalene  

Non-Potable Water   1-Naphthylamine  

Non-Potable Water   2,2', 3', 4,6'-PENTACHLOROBIPHENYL 

Non-Potable Water   2,2', 3,3', 4,4',6-HEPTACHLOROBIPHENYL 

Non-Potable Water   2,2', 3,3', 4,5', 6,6'-OCTACHLOROBIPHENYL 

Non-Potable Water   2,2', 4,4', 5,6'-HEXACHLOROBIPHENYL 

Agenda Page 46



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

21 

 

Non-Potable Water   2,2', 4,4'-TETRACHLOROBYPHENYL 

Non-Potable Water   2,2` 3,3` 4,5` 6,6`-Octachlorobiphenyl (BZ 201)  

Non-Potable Water   2,2` 4,4`-Tetrachlorobiphenyl (BZ 47)  

Non-Potable Water   2,2-Dichloropropane  

Non-Potable Water   2,3,4,6-Tetrachlorophenol  

Non-Potable Water   2,3,7,8-Tetrachloro-dibenzodioxin 

Non-Potable Water   2,3-Dichloroaniline  

Non-Potable Water   2,3-Dichlorobiphenyl 

Non-Potable Water   2,4,5-T 

Non-Potable Water   2,4,5-TP (Silvex) 

Non-Potable Water   2,4,5-TRICHLOROBIPHENYL 

Non-Potable Water   2,4,5-Trichlorophenol 

Non-Potable Water   2,4,6-Trichlorophenol  

Non-Potable Water   2,4,6-Trinitrotoluene 

Non-Potable Water   2,4-D  

Non-Potable Water   2,4-DB  

Non-Potable Water   2,4-Dichlorophenol  

Non-Potable Water   2,4-Dimethylphenol 

Non-Potable Water   2,4-Dinitrophenol  

Non-Potable Water   2,4-Dinitrotoluene (2 4-DNT)  

Non-Potable Water   2,6-Dichlorophenol  

Non-Potable Water   2,6-Dinitrotoluene (2 6-DNT)  

Non-Potable Water   2-Acetylaminofluorene  

Non-Potable Water   2-Amino-4,6-dinitrotoluene 

Non-Potable Water   2-Butanone (Methyl ethyl ketone MEK)  

Non-Potable Water   2-CHLOROBIPHENYL 

Non-Potable Water   2-Chloroethyl vinyl ether  

Non-Potable Water   2-Chloronaphthalene  

Non-Potable Water   2-Chlorophenol  

Non-Potable Water   2-Chlorotoluene  

Non-Potable Water   2-Hexanone  

Non-Potable Water   2-Methyl-4 6-dinitrophenol  

Non-Potable Water   2-Methylnaphthalene  

Non-Potable Water   2-Methylphenol (o-Cresol)  

Non-Potable Water   2-Nitroaniline  

Non-Potable Water   2-Nitrophenol  

Non-Potable Water   2-Nitropropane  

Non-Potable Water   2-Nitrotoluene 

Non-Potable Water   2-Picoline (2-Methylpyridine)  

Non-Potable Water   3,3`-Dichlorobenzidine  

Non-Potable Water   3,3`-Dimethylbenzidine  

Non-Potable Water   3,3'-Dichlorobenzidine 

Non-Potable Water   3,5-Dichlorobenzoic acid  

Non-Potable Water   3/4-Methylphenols (m/p-Cresols)  

Non-Potable Water   3-Hydroxycarbofuran  

Non-Potable Water   3-Methylcholanthrene  

Agenda Page 47



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

22 

 

Non-Potable Water   3-Methylcholanthrene  

Non-Potable Water   3-Methylphenol (m-Cresol)  

Non-Potable Water   3-Nitroaniline  

Non-Potable Water   3-Nitrotoluene 

Non-Potable Water   4,4'-DDD 

Non-Potable Water   4,4'-DDE 

Non-Potable Water   4,4'-DDT 

Non-Potable Water   4-Amino-2,6-dinitrotoluene 

Non-Potable Water   4-Aminobiphenyl  

Non-Potable Water   4-Bromophenyl phenyl ether  

Non-Potable Water   4-Chloro-3-methylphenol  

Non-Potable Water   4-Chloroaniline  

Non-Potable Water   4-Chlorophenyl phenylether  

Non-Potable Water   4-Chlorotoluene  

Non-Potable Water   4-Dimethyl aminoazobenzene  

Non-Potable Water   4-Isopropyltoluene  

Non-Potable Water   4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK)  

Non-Potable Water   4-Methylphenol (p-Cresol)  

Non-Potable Water   4-Nitroaniline  

Drinking Water   4-Nitrophenol  

Non-Potable Water   4-Nitrophenol  

Non-Potable Water   4-Nitrotoluene 

Non-Potable Water   5-day BOD 

Non-Potable Water   5-Nitro-o-toluidine  

Non-Potable Water   7 12-Dimethylbenz(a) anthracene  

Non-Potable Water   a-a-Dimethylphenethylamine  

Non-Potable Water   Acenaphthene 

Non-Potable Water   Acenaphthylene  

Non-Potable Water   ACEPHATE 

Non-Potable Water   Acetochlor  

Non-Potable Water   Acetone  

Non-Potable Water   Acetonitrile  

Non-Potable Water   Acetophenone  

Non-Potable Water   A-CHLORDANE 

Non-Potable Water   Acidity as CaCO3  

Non-Potable Water   Acifluorfen  

Non-Potable Water   Acrolein (Propenal)  

Non-Potable Water   Acrylonitrile  

Non-Potable Water   Alachlor  

Non-Potable Water   ALDICARB 

Non-Potable Water   ALDICARB SULFONE 

Non-Potable Water   Aldicarb sulfoxide  

Non-Potable Water   Aldrin  

Non-Potable Water   Alkalinity as CaCO3  

Non-Potable Water   Allyl chloride (3-Chloropropene)  

Non-Potable Water   alpha-BHC (alpha-Hexachlorocyclohexane)  

Agenda Page 48



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

23 

 

Non-Potable Water   alpha-Chlordane  

Non-Potable Water   Aluminum  

Non-Potable Water   Amenable cyanide  

Non-Potable Water   AMETRYN 

Non-Potable Water   Ammonia as N  

Non-Potable Water   ANILAZINE 

Non-Potable Water   Aniline  

Non-Potable Water   Anthracene  

Non-Potable Water   Antimony  

Non-Potable Water   Aramite  

Non-Potable Water   Aroclor-1016 (PCB-1016)  

Non-Potable Water   Aroclor-1221 (PCB-1221)  

Non-Potable Water   Aroclor-1232 (PCB-1232)  

Non-Potable Water   Aroclor-1242 (PCB-1242)  

Non-Potable Water   Aroclor-1248 (PCB-1248)  

Non-Potable Water   Aroclor-1254 (PCB-1254)  

Non-Potable Water   Aroclor-1260 (PCB-1260)  

Non-Potable Water   Arsenic  

Non-Potable Water   Asbestos  

Non-Potable Water   Aspon  

Non-Potable Water   ATRATON 

Non-Potable Water   Atrazine  

Non-Potable Water   Atrazine  

Non-Potable Water   Azinphos-ethyl (Ethyl guthion)  

Non-Potable Water   Azinphos-methyl (Guthion)  

Non-Potable Water   Barium  

Non-Potable Water   Bentazon  

Non-Potable Water   Benzene  

Non-Potable Water   Benzidine  

Non-Potable Water   Benzo (g,h,i)perylene 

Non-Potable Water   Benzo(a)anthracene  

Non-Potable Water   Benzo(a)pyrene  

Non-Potable Water   Benzo(b)fluoranthene  

Non-Potable Water   Benzo(g h i)perylene  

Non-Potable Water   Benzo(k)fluoranthene  

Non-Potable Water   Benzoic acid  

Non-Potable Water   Benzyl alcohol  

Non-Potable Water   Benzyl butyl phthalate 

Non-Potable Water   Beryllium  

Non-Potable Water   beta-BHC (beta-Hexachlorocyclohexane)  

Non-Potable Water   beta-Naphthylamine  

Non-Potable Water   BIFENTHRIN 

Non-Potable Water   Biochemical oxygen demand  

Non-Potable Water   bis(2-Chloroethoxy)methane  

Non-Potable Water   bis(2-Chloroethyl) ether  

Non-Potable Water   bis(2-Chloroisopropyl) ether (2 2`-Oxybis(1-

Agenda Page 49



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

24 

 

chloropropane))  

Non-Potable Water   bis(2-Ethylhexyl) phthalate (DEHP)  

Non-Potable Water   Bolstar (Sulprofos)  

Non-Potable Water   Boron  

Non-Potable Water   BROMACIL  

Non-Potable Water   Bromate  

Non-Potable Water   Bromide  

Non-Potable Water   Bromoacetic acid  

Non-Potable Water   Bromobenzene  

Non-Potable Water   Bromochloroacetic acid  

Non-Potable Water   Bromochloroacetonitrile  

Non-Potable Water   Bromochloromethane  

Non-Potable Water   Bromodichloromethane  

Non-Potable Water   Bromoform  

Non-Potable Water   Bromomethane 

Non-Potable Water   BUTACHLOR  

Non-Potable Water   Butyl benzyl phthalate  

Non-Potable Water   BUTYLATE  

Non-Potable Water   Butylbenzylphthalate 

Non-Potable Water   C/T-1,3-DICHLOROPROPENE  

Non-Potable Water   C-1,2-DICHLOROETHYLENE  

Non-Potable Water   C-1,3-DICHLOROPROPYLENE  

Non-Potable Water   Cadmium  

Non-Potable Water   Calcium hardness as CaCO3  

Non-Potable Water   Calcium  

Non-Potable Water   Carbaryl (Sevin)  

Non-Potable Water   Carbazole  

Non-Potable Water   Carbazole  

Non-Potable Water   CARBOFURAN  

Non-Potable Water   Carbon disulfide  

Non-Potable Water   Carbon tetrachloride  

Non-Potable Water   Carbonaceous BOD (CBOD)  

Non-Potable Water   Carbophenothion  

Non-Potable Water   Carboxin  

Non-Potable Water   Chemical oxygen demand  

Non-Potable Water   Chloramben  

Non-Potable Water   Chlorate  

Non-Potable Water   Chlordane (tech.)  

Non-Potable Water   Chlordane (total) 

Non-Potable Water   Chlorfenvinphos  

Non-Potable Water   Chloride  

Non-Potable Water   Chlorite  

Non-Potable Water   Chloroacetic acid  

Non-Potable Water   Chloroacetonitrile  

Non-Potable Water   Chlorobenzene  

Non-Potable Water   Chlorobenzilate  

Agenda Page 50



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

25 

 

Non-Potable Water   Chlorobenzilate  

Non-Potable Water   Chlorodibromomethane 

Non-Potable Water   Chloroethane  

Non-Potable Water   Chloroform  

Non-Potable Water   Chloromethane 

Non-Potable Water   CHLORONEB  

Non-Potable Water   Chlorophylls  

Non-Potable Water   CHLOROPICRIN  

Non-Potable Water   Chloroprene  

Non-Potable Water   CHLOROTHALONIL  

Non-Potable Water   Chlorpropham  

Non-Potable Water   Chlorpyrifos methyl  

Non-Potable Water   Chlorpyrifos  

Non-Potable Water   Chromium VI  

Non-Potable Water   Chromium  

Non-Potable Water   Chrysene  

Non-Potable Water   cis-1 2-Dichloroethylene  

Non-Potable Water   cis-1 3-Dichloropropene  

Non-Potable Water   cis-1,2-Dichloroethene 

Non-Potable Water   cis-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene  

Non-Potable Water   CIS-PERMETHRIN  

Non-Potable Water   Cobalt  

Non-Potable Water   COD 

Non-Potable Water   Color  

Non-Potable Water   Conductivity  

Non-Potable Water   Copper  

Non-Potable Water   Corrosivity (langlier index)  

Non-Potable Water   Corrosivity (pH)  

Non-Potable Water   Coumaphos  

Non-Potable Water   Crotoxyphos  

Non-Potable Water   Cryptosporidium  

Non-Potable Water   CYANAZINE 

Non-Potable Water   Cyanide  

Non-Potable Water   CYCLOATE  

Non-Potable Water   CYFLUTHRIN 

Non-Potable Water   Dacthal (DCPA)  

Non-Potable Water   Dalapon  

Non-Potable Water   DCPA di acid degradate  

Non-Potable Water   DCPA mono-acid  

Non-Potable Water   delta-BHC  

Non-Potable Water   Demeton-o  

Non-Potable Water   Demeton-s  

Non-Potable Water   DI(2-ETHYLHEXYL)ADIPATE  

Non-Potable Water   DI(2-ETHYLHEXYL)PHTHALATE  

Non-Potable Water   Diallate  

Non-Potable Water   Diallate  

Agenda Page 51



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

26 

 

Non-Potable Water   Diazinon  

Non-Potable Water   Dibenz(a h) anthracene  

Non-Potable Water   Dibenz(a j) acridine  

Non-Potable Water   Dibenzofuran  

Non-Potable Water   Dibromoacetic acid  

Non-Potable Water   Dibromoacetonitrile  

Non-Potable Water   Dibromochloromethane  

Non-Potable Water   DIBROMOCHLOROPROPANE  

Non-Potable Water   Dibromomethane  

Non-Potable Water   Dicamba  

Non-Potable Water   Dichloroacetic acid  

Non-Potable Water   Dichloroacetonitrile  

Non-Potable Water   Dichlorodifluoromethane  

Non-Potable Water   Dichlorofenthion  

Non-Potable Water   DICHLOROMETHANE (MECL)  

Non-Potable Water   Dichloroprop (Dichlorprop)  

Non-Potable Water   Dichlorovos (DDVP Dichlorvos)  

Non-Potable Water   Dicrotophos  

Non-Potable Water   Dieldrin  

Non-Potable Water   Diesel range organics (DRO)  

Non-Potable Water   Diethyl ether  

Non-Potable Water   Diethyl phthalate  

Non-Potable Water   Di-isopropylether (DIPE)  

Non-Potable Water   Dimethoate  

Non-Potable Water   Dimethyl phthalate  

Non-Potable Water   Di-n-butyl phthalate  

Non-Potable Water   Di-n-octyl phthalate  

Non-Potable Water   Dinoseb (2-sec-butyl-4 6-dinitrophenol DNBP)  

Non-Potable Water   Dioxathion  

Non-Potable Water   DIPHENAMID  

Non-Potable Water   Diphenylamine  

Non-Potable Water   Diquat  

Non-Potable Water   DIRUON 

Non-Potable Water   Dissolved organic carbon (DOC)  

Non-Potable Water   DISULFOTON SULFONE 

Non-Potable Water   DISULFOTON SULFOXIDE 

Non-Potable Water   Disulfoton  

Non-Potable Water   Endosulfan I  

Non-Potable Water   Endosulfan II  

Non-Potable Water   Endosulfan sulfate  

Non-Potable Water   Endothall  

Non-Potable Water   Endrin aldehyde  

Non-Potable Water   Endrin ketone  

Non-Potable Water   Endrin  

Non-Potable Water   Enterococci  

Non-Potable Water   EPN  

Agenda Page 52



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

27 

 

Non-Potable Water   EPTC  

Non-Potable Water   Ethanol  

Non-Potable Water   Ethion  

Non-Potable Water   Ethoprop  

Non-Potable Water   Ethyl acetate  

Non-Potable Water   Ethyl methacrylate  

Non-Potable Water   Ethyl methanesulfonate  

Non-Potable Water   Ethylbenzene  

Non-Potable Water   ETHYLENE DIBROMIDE (EDB)  

Non-Potable Water   Ethylene glycol  

Non-Potable Water   ETHYLMETHACRYLATE  

Non-Potable Water   Ethyl-t-butylether (ETBE)  

Non-Potable Water   ETRIDIAZOLE  

Non-Potable Water   Famphur  

Non-Potable Water   Fecal coliforms  

Non-Potable Water   Fecal streptococci  

Non-Potable Water   FENAMIPHOS 

Non-Potable Water   FENARIMOL  

Non-Potable Water   Fenitrothion  

Non-Potable Water   Fensulfothion  

Non-Potable Water   Fenthion  

Non-Potable Water   FIPRONIL 

Non-Potable Water   Fluoranthene  

Non-Potable Water   Fluorene  

Non-Potable Water   Fluoride  

Non-Potable Water   FLURIDONE  

Non-Potable Water   Fonophos  

Non-Potable Water   
gamma-BHC (Lindane gamma-
Hexachlorocyclohexane)  

Non-Potable Water   gamma-Chlordane  

Non-Potable Water   Gasoline range organics (GRO)  

Non-Potable Water   G-CHLORDANE  

Non-Potable Water   Giardia  

Non-Potable Water   GLYPHOSATE 

Non-Potable Water   Gross-alpha  

Non-Potable Water   Gross-beta  

Non-Potable Water   HALOACETIC ACIDS (TOTAL)  

Non-Potable Water   Hardness (calc.)  

Non-Potable Water   Hardness  

Non-Potable Water   Heptachlor epoxide  

Non-Potable Water   Heptachlor  

Non-Potable Water   Heterotrophic plate count  

Non-Potable Water   Hexachlorobenzene  

Non-Potable Water   Hexachlorobutadiene  

Non-Potable Water   Hexachlorobutadiene  

Non-Potable Water   Hexachlorocyclopentadiene  

Agenda Page 53



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

28 

 

Non-Potable Water   Hexachloroethane  

Non-Potable Water   Hexachlorophene  

Non-Potable Water   Hexachloropropene  

Non-Potable Water   HEXAZINONE  

Non-Potable Water   
HMX (Octahydro-1,3,5,7-tetranitro-1,3,5,7-
tetrazocine) 

Non-Potable Water   Hydrogen sulfide un-ionized (calculation)  

Non-Potable Water   Ignitability  

Non-Potable Water   Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene  

Non-Potable Water   Iodomethane (Methyl iodide)  

Non-Potable Water   Iron  

Non-Potable Water   Isobutyl alcohol (2-Methyl-1-propanol)  

Non-Potable Water   Isobutyraldehyde  

Non-Potable Water   Isodrin  

Non-Potable Water   Isodrin  

Non-Potable Water   Isophorone  

Non-Potable Water   Isopropanol  

Non-Potable Water   Isopropyl acetate  

Non-Potable Water   Isopropyl alcohol (2-Propanol)  

Non-Potable Water   Isopropyl ether  

Non-Potable Water   Isopropylbenzene  

Non-Potable Water   Isosafrole  

Non-Potable Water   Kepone  

Non-Potable Water   Kjeldahl nitrogen - total  

Non-Potable Water   Lead  

Non-Potable Water   Leptophos  

Non-Potable Water   LINDANE (G-BHC)  

Non-Potable Water   Lithium  

Non-Potable Water   Magnesium  

Non-Potable Water   Malathion  

Non-Potable Water   MANCOZEB 

Non-Potable Water   Manganese  

Non-Potable Water   MCPA  

Non-Potable Water   MCPP  

Non-Potable Water   M-DICHLOROBENZENE  

Non-Potable Water   Mercury  

Non-Potable Water   Merphos  

Non-Potable Water   Methacrylonitrile  

Non-Potable Water   Methanol  

Non-Potable Water   Methapyrilene  

Non-Potable Water   METHIOCARB  

Non-Potable Water   Methomyl (Lannate)  

Non-Potable Water   Methoxychlor  

Non-Potable Water   Methyl acrylate  

Non-Potable Water   Methyl bromide (Bromomethane)  

Non-Potable Water   Methyl chloride (Chloromethane)  

Agenda Page 54



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

29 

 

Non-Potable Water   Methyl formate  

Non-Potable Water   Methyl methacrylate  

Non-Potable Water   Methyl methanesulfonate  

Non-Potable Water   METHYL PARAOXON 

Non-Potable Water   Methyl parathion (Parathion methyl)  

Non-Potable Water   Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE)  

Non-Potable Water   Methylene chloride  

Non-Potable Water   METHYLMETHACRYLATE  

Non-Potable Water   METHYL-TERT-BUTYL-ETHER  

Non-Potable Water   METOLACHLOR  

Non-Potable Water   METRIBUZIN  

Non-Potable Water   Mevinphos  

Non-Potable Water   MGK 264 

Non-Potable Water   Mirex  

Non-Potable Water   MOLINATE 

Non-Potable Water   Molybdenum  

Non-Potable Water   Monobromoacetic Acid 

Non-Potable Water   Monochloroacetic Acid 

Non-Potable Water   MONOCHLOROBENZENE  

Non-Potable Water   Monocrotophos  

Non-Potable Water   MONOSODIUMMETHANEARSONATE (MSMA) 

Non-Potable Water   Naled  

Non-Potable Water   n-Amyl acetate  

Non-Potable Water   Naphthalene  

Non-Potable Water   NAPROPAMIDE  

Non-Potable Water   n-Butyl alcohol  

Non-Potable Water   n-Butylbenzene  

Non-Potable Water   n-Decane  

Non-Potable Water   n-Heptane  

Non-Potable Water   n-Hexane  

Non-Potable Water   Nickel  

Non-Potable Water   Nitrate as N  

Non-Potable Water   Nitrate  

Non-Potable Water   Nitrate-nitrite  

Non-Potable Water   Nitrite as N  

Non-Potable Water   Nitrite  

Non-Potable Water   Nitrobenzene  

Non-Potable Water   Nitroquinoline-1-oxide  

Non-Potable Water   n-Nitrosodiethylamine  

Non-Potable Water   n-Nitrosodimethylamine  

Non-Potable Water   n-Nitroso-di-n-butylamine  

Non-Potable Water   n-Nitrosodi-n-propylamine  

Non-Potable Water   n-Nitrosodiphenylamine  

Non-Potable Water   n-Nitrosomethylethylamine  

Non-Potable Water   n-Nitrosomorpholine  

Non-Potable Water   n-Nitrosopiperidine  

Agenda Page 55



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

30 

 

Non-Potable Water   n-Nitrosopyrrolidine  

Non-Potable Water   n-Octadecane  

Non-Potable Water   n-Octadecane  

Non-Potable Water   Non-Filterable Residue 

Non-Potable Water   NORFLURAZON  

Non-Potable Water   n-Propanol  

Non-Potable Water   n-Propylbenzene  

Non-Potable Water   o o o-Triethyl phosphorothioate  

Non-Potable Water   o o o-Triethyl phosphorothioate  

Non-Potable Water   O-CHLOROTOLUENE  

Non-Potable Water   O-DICHLOROBENZENE  

Non-Potable Water   Oil & Grease  

Non-Potable Water   Organic nitrogen  

Non-Potable Water   Orthophosphate as P  

Non-Potable Water   o-Toluidine  

Non-Potable Water   OXADIAZON 

Non-Potable Water   OXAMYL  

Non-Potable Water   Oxygen dissolved  

Non-Potable Water   Paraquat 

Non-Potable Water   Parathion ethyl  

Non-Potable Water   Parathion methyl 

Non-Potable Water   PCB-AROCHLOR  

Non-Potable Water   PCBs  

Non-Potable Water   P-CHLOROTOLUENE  

Non-Potable Water   P-DICHLOROBENZENE  

Non-Potable Water   p-Dioxane  

Non-Potable Water   PEBULATE  

Non-Potable Water   Pentachlorobenzene  

Non-Potable Water   Pentachloroethane  

Non-Potable Water   Pentachloronitrobenzene  

Non-Potable Water   Pentachlorophenol  

Non-Potable Water   Pentachlorophenol  

Non-Potable Water   Perchlorate  

Non-Potable Water   pH  

Non-Potable Water   Phenacetin  

Non-Potable Water   Phenanthrene  

Non-Potable Water   Phenol  

Non-Potable Water   Phorate  

Non-Potable Water   Phosmet (Imidan)  

Non-Potable Water   Phosphamidon  

Non-Potable Water   Phosphorus total  

Non-Potable Water   Picloram  

Non-Potable Water   p-Isopropyltoluene  

Non-Potable Water   Potassium  

Non-Potable Water   Potassium  

Non-Potable Water   PRODIAMINE 

Agenda Page 56



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

31 

 

Non-Potable Water   PROMETON 

Non-Potable Water   PROMETRYN  

Non-Potable Water   Pronamide (Kerb)  

Non-Potable Water   PROPACHLOR  

Non-Potable Water   PROPAZINE  

Non-Potable Water   Propionitrile (Ethyl cyanide)  

Non-Potable Water   PROPOXUR (BAYGON)  

Non-Potable Water   Pyrene  

Non-Potable Water   Pyridine  

Non-Potable Water   Quinclorac  

Non-Potable Water   Radium-226  

Non-Potable Water   RDX (hexahydro-1,3,5-trinitro-1,3,5-triazine) 

Non-Potable Water   Residual free chlorine  

Non-Potable Water   Residue-filterable (TDS)  

Non-Potable Water   Residue-nonfilterable (TSS)  

Non-Potable Water   Residue-total  

Non-Potable Water   Residue-volatile  

Non-Potable Water   Ronnel  

Non-Potable Water   Safrole  

Non-Potable Water   Salinity  

Non-Potable Water   sec-Butylbenzene  

Non-Potable Water   Selenium  

Non-Potable Water   Settleable solids 

Non-Potable Water   Silica as SiO2 

Non-Potable Water   Silica-dissolved  

Non-Potable Water   Silicon  

Non-Potable Water   Silver  

Non-Potable Water   Silver  

Non-Potable Water   Silvex (2,4,5-TP)  

Non-Potable Water   Simazine  

Non-Potable Water   Simazine  

Non-Potable Water   SIMETRYN 

Non-Potable Water   Sodium  

Non-Potable Water   Spec. Cond. (25oC) 

Non-Potable Water   Stirofos  

Non-Potable Water   Strontium  

Non-Potable Water   Styrene  

Non-Potable Water   Sulfate  

Non-Potable Water   Sulfide  

Non-Potable Water   Sulfotepp  

Non-Potable Water   Surfactants - MBAS  

Non-Potable Water   T-1,2-DICHLOROETHYLENE  

Non-Potable Water   T-1,3-DICHLOROPROPYLENE  

Non-Potable Water   T-amylmethylether (TAME)  

Non-Potable Water   TEBUTHIURON  

Non-Potable Water   TERBACIL  

Agenda Page 57



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

32 

 

Non-Potable Water   Terbufos  

Non-Potable Water   TERBUTRYN  

Non-Potable Water   tert-Butyl alcohol  

Non-Potable Water   tert-Butylbenzene  

Non-Potable Water   Tetrachloroethene 

Non-Potable Water   Tetrachloroethylene (Perchloroethylene)  

Non-Potable Water   Tetraethyl pyrophosphate (TEPP)  

Non-Potable Water   Tetrahydrofuran (THF)  

Non-Potable Water   Tetryl (methyl-2,4,6-trinitrophenylnitramine) 

Non-Potable Water   Thallium  

Non-Potable Water   Thionazin (Zinophos)  

Non-Potable Water   Thionazin (Zinophos)  

Non-Potable Water   THIOPHANATE-METHYL 

Non-Potable Water   Tin  

Non-Potable Water   Titanium  

Non-Potable Water   TOC 

Non-Potable Water   Tokuthion (Prothiophos)  

Non-Potable Water   Toluene  

Non-Potable Water   Total  Phosphorus 

Non-Potable Water   Total coliforms  

Non-Potable Water   Total cyanide  

Non-Potable Water   Total Dissolved Solids at 180oC 

Non-Potable Water   Total fixed and volatile residue  

Non-Potable Water   Total haloacetic acids  

Non-Potable Water   Total hardness as CaCO3  

Non-Potable Water   Total Kjeldahl-Nitrogen 

Non-Potable Water   Total nitrate-nitrite  

Non-Potable Water   Total organic carbon  

Non-Potable Water   Total Organic Halides (TOX) 

Non-Potable Water   TOTAL PCBS  

Non-Potable Water   Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons (TPH)  

Non-Potable Water   Total phenolics  

Non-Potable Water   Total residual chlorine  

Non-Potable Water   Total Solids 

Non-Potable Water   Total trihalomethanes  

Non-Potable Water   Total Xylenes 

Non-Potable Water   Toxaphene (Chlorinated camphene)  

Non-Potable Water   trans-1,2-Dichloroethene 

Non-Potable Water   trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene  

Non-Potable Water   trans-1,3-Dichloropropene 

Non-Potable Water   trans-1,3-Dichloropropylene  

Non-Potable Water   trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene  

Non-Potable Water   TRANS-PERMETHRIN  

Non-Potable Water   TRIADEMEFON  

Non-Potable Water   Trichlorfon  

Non-Potable Water   Trichloroacetic acid  

Agenda Page 58



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

33 

 

Non-Potable Water   Trichloroacetonitrile  

Non-Potable Water   Trichloroethene (Trichloroethylene)  

Non-Potable Water   TRICHLOROETHYLENE  

Non-Potable Water   Trichlorofluoromethane  

Non-Potable Water   Trichloronate  

Non-Potable Water   Trichlorotrifluoroethane (Freon 113) 

Non-Potable Water   TRICYCLAZOLE 

Non-Potable Water   TRIFLURALIN  

Non-Potable Water   Tritium 

Non-Potable Water   Tungsten  

Non-Potable Water   Turbidity  

Non-Potable Water   Un-ionized Ammonia  

Non-Potable Water   Vanadium  

Non-Potable Water   VERNOLATE  

Non-Potable Water   Vinyl acetate  

Non-Potable Water   Vinyl chloride  

Non-Potable Water   Volatile solids 

Non-Potable Water   Xylene (total)  

Non-Potable Water   Zinc  

OIL Aroclor 1016 

OIL Aroclor 1242 

OIL Aroclor 1254 

OIL Aroclor 1260 

Solids   1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane 

Solids   1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane  

Solids   1,1,1-Trichloroethane 

Solids   1,1,1-Trichloroethane  

Solids   1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane 

Solids   1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane  

Solids   1,1,2-Trichloroethane 

Solids   1,1,2-Trichloroethane  

Solids   1,1-Dichloro-2-propanone  

Solids   1,1-Dichloroethane 

Solids   1,1-Dichloroethane  

Solids   1,1-Dichloroethene 

Solids   1,1-Dichloroethylene 

Solids   1,1-Dichloroethylene  

Solids   1,1-Dichloropropene 

Solids   1,1-Dichloropropene  

Solids   1,2 Dichlorobenzene 

Solids   1,2 Dichloroethane 

Solids   1,2 Dichloropropane 

Solids   1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene 

Solids   1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene  

Solids   1,2,3-Trichloropropane 

Solids   1,2,3-Trichloropropane  

Agenda Page 59



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

34 

 

Solids   1,2,3-Trichloropropane7 

Solids   1,2,4,5-Tetrachlorobenzene  

Solids   1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene 

Solids   1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene  

Solids   1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene 

Solids   1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene  

Solids   1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP) 

Solids   1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP)  

Solids   1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB Ethylene dibromide)  

Solids   1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) 

Solids   1,2-Dichlorobenzene 

Solids   1,2-Dichlorobenzene  

Solids   1,2-Dichloroethane 

Solids   1,2-Dichloroethane  

Solids   1,2-Dichloropropane 

Solids   1,2-Dichloropropane  

Solids   1,2-Dinitrobenzene  

Solids   1,2-Diphenylhydrazine  

Solids   1,3 Dichlorobenzene 

Solids   1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene  

Solids   1,3,5-Trinitrobenzene (1 3 5-TNB)  

Solids   1,3-Dichlorobenzene  

Solids   1,3-Dichloropropane 

Solids   1,3-Dichloropropane  

Solids   1,3-Dinitrobenzene 

Solids   1,3-Dinitrobenzene (1 3-DNB)  

Solids   1,4 Dichlorobenzene 

Solids   1,4-Dioxane (1 4-Diethyleneoxide)  

Solids   1,4-Naphthoquinone  

Solids   1,4-Phenylenediamine  

Solids   1-CHLOROBUTANE 

Solids   1-Chloronaphthalene  

Solids   1-Methylnaphthalene  

Solids   1-Naphthylamine  

Solids   2,2', 3', 4,6'-PENTACHLOROBIPHENYL 

Solids   2,2', 3,3', 4,4',6-HEPTACHLOROBIPHENYL 

Solids   2,2', 3,3', 4,5', 6,6'-OCTACHLOROBIPHENYL 

Solids   2,2', 4,4', 5,6'-HEXACHLOROBIPHENYL 

Solids   2,2', 4,4'-TETRACHLOROBYPHENYL 

Solids   2,2` 3,3` 4,5` 6,6`-Octachlorobiphenyl (BZ 201)  

Solids   2,2` 4,4`-Tetrachlorobiphenyl (BZ 47)  

Solids   2,2-Dichloropropane 

Solids   2,2-Dichloropropane  

Solids   2,3,4,6-Tetrachlorophenol  

Solids   2,3,7,8-Tetrachloro-dibenzodioxin 

Solids   2,3-Dichloroaniline  

Agenda Page 60



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

35 

 

Solids   2,3-Dichlorobiphenyl 

Solids   2,4,5-T 

Solids   2,4,5-TP (Silvex) 

Solids   2,4,5-TRICHLOROBIPHENYL 

Solids   2,4,5-Trichlorophenol 

Solids   2,4,6-Trichlorophenol  

Solids   2,4,6-Trinitrotoluene 

Solids   2,4-D  

Solids   2,4-DB  

Solids   2,4-Dichlorophenol  

Solids   2,4-Dimethylphenol 

Solids   2,4-Dinitrophenol  

Solids   2,4-Dinitrotoluene (2 4-DNT)  

Solids   2,6-Dichlorophenol  

Solids   2,6-Dinitrotoluene (2 6-DNT)  

Solids   2-Acetylaminofluorene  

Solids   2-Amino-4,6-dinitrotoluene 

Solids   2-Butanone (Methyl ethyl ketone MEK)  

Solids   2-CHLOROBIPHENYL 

Solids   2-Chloroethyl vinyl ether  

Solids   2-Chloronaphthalene  

Solids   2-Chlorophenol  

Solids   2-Chlorotoluene  

Solids   2-Hexanone  

Solids   2-Methyl-4 6-dinitrophenol  

Solids   2-Methylnaphthalene  

Solids   2-Methylphenol (o-Cresol)  

Solids   2-Nitroaniline  

Solids   2-Nitrophenol  

Solids   2-Nitropropane  

Solids   2-Nitrotoluene 

Solids   2-Picoline (2-Methylpyridine)  

Solids   3,3`-Dichlorobenzidine  

Solids   3,3`-Dimethylbenzidine  

Solids   3,3'-Dichlorobenzidine 

Solids   3,5-Dichlorobenzoic acid  

Solids   3/4-Methylphenols (m/p-Cresols)  

Solids   3-Hydroxycarbofuran  

Solids   3-Methylcholanthrene  

Solids   3-Methylphenol (m-Cresol)  

Solids   3-Nitroaniline  

Solids   3-Nitrotoluene 

Solids   4,4'-DDD 

Solids   4,4'-DDE 

Solids   4,4'-DDT 

Solids   4-Amino-2,6-dinitrotoluene 

Agenda Page 61



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

36 

 

Solids   4-Aminobiphenyl  

Solids   4-Bromophenyl phenyl ether  

Solids   4-Chloro-3-methylphenol  

Solids   4-Chloroaniline  

Solids   4-Chlorophenyl phenylether  

Solids   4-Chlorotoluene  

Solids   4-Dimethyl aminoazobenzene  

Solids   4-Isopropyltoluene  

Solids   4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK)  

Solids   4-Methylphenol (p-Cresol)  

Solids   4-Nitroaniline  

Solids   4-Nitrophenol  

Solids   4-Nitrotoluene 

Solids   5-Nitro-o-toluidine  

Solids   7 12-Dimethylbenz(a) anthracene  

Solids   a-a-Dimethylphenethylamine  

Solids   Acenaphthene 

Solids   Acenaphthylene  

Solids   ACEPHATE 

Solids   Acetochlor  

Solids   Acetone  

Solids   Acetonitrile  

Solids   Acetophenone  

Solids   A-CHLORDANE 

Solids   Acifluorfen  

Solids   Acrolein (Propenal)  

Solids   Acrylonitrile  

Solids   Alachlor  

Solids   ALDICARB 

Solids   ALDICARB SULFONE 

Solids   Aldicarb sulfoxide  

Solids   Aldrin  

Solids   Allyl chloride (3-Chloropropene)  

Solids   alpha-BHC (alpha-Hexachlorocyclohexane)  

Solids   alpha-Chlordane  

Solids   Aluminum  

Solids   AMETRYN 

Solids   Ammonia as N  

Solids   ANILAZINE 

Solids   Aniline  

Solids   Anthracene  

Solids   Antimony  

Solids   Aramite  

Solids   Aroclor-1016 (PCB-1016)  

Solids   Aroclor-1221 (PCB-1221)  

Solids   Aroclor-1232 (PCB-1232)  

Agenda Page 62



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

37 

 

Solids   Aroclor-1242 (PCB-1242)  

Solids   Aroclor-1248 (PCB-1248)  

Solids   Aroclor-1254 (PCB-1254)  

Solids   Aroclor-1260 (PCB-1260)  

Solids   Arsenic  

Solids   Asbestos  

Solids   Aspon  

Solids   ATRATON 

Solids   Atrazine  

Solids   Azinphos-ethyl (Ethyl guthion)  

Solids   Azinphos-methyl (Guthion)  

Solids   Barium  

Solids   Bentazon  

Solids   Benzene  

Solids   Benzidine  

Solids   Benzo (g,h,i)perylene 

Solids   Benzo(a)anthracene  

Solids   Benzo(a)pyrene  

Solids   Benzo(b)fluoranthene  

Solids   Benzo(g h i)perylene  

Solids   Benzo(k)fluoranthene  

Solids   Benzoic acid  

Solids   Benzyl alcohol  

Solids   Benzyl butyl phthalate 

Solids   Beryllium  

Solids   beta-BHC (beta-Hexachlorocyclohexane)  

Solids   beta-Naphthylamine  

Solids   BIFENTHRIN 

Solids   bis(2-Chloroethoxy)methane  

Solids   bis(2-Chloroethyl) ether  

Solids   
bis(2-Chloroisopropyl) ether (2 2`-Oxybis(1-
chloropropane))  

Solids   bis(2-Ethylhexyl) phthalate (DEHP)  

Solids   Bolstar (Sulprofos)  

Solids   Boron  

Solids   BROMACIL  

Solids   Bromate  

Solids   Bromide  

Solids   Bromoacetic acid  

Solids   Bromobenzene  

Solids   Bromochloroacetic acid  

Solids   Bromochloroacetonitrile  

Solids   Bromochloromethane  

Solids   Bromodichloromethane  

Solids   Bromoform  

Solids   Bromomethane 

Agenda Page 63



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

38 

 

Solids   BUTACHLOR  

Solids   Butyl benzyl phthalate  

Solids   BUTYLATE  

Solids   Butylbenzylphthalate 

Solids   C/T-1,3-DICHLOROPROPENE  

Solids   C-1,2-DICHLOROETHYLENE  

Solids   C-1,3-DICHLOROPROPYLENE  

Solids   Cadmium  

Solids   Calcium  

Solids   CARBARYL  

Solids   Carbazole  

Solids   CARBOFURAN  

Solids   Carbon disulfide  

Solids   Carbon tetrachloride  

Solids   Carbophenothion  

Solids   Carboxin  

Solids   Chloramben  

Solids   Chlordane (tech.)  

Solids   Chlorfenvinphos  

Solids   Chloride  

Solids   Chloroacetic acid  

Solids   Chloroacetonitrile  

Solids   Chlorobenzene  

Solids   Chlorobenzilate  

Solids   Chlorodibromomethane 

Solids   Chloroethane  

Solids   Chloroform  

Solids   Chloromethane 

Solids   CHLORONEB  

Solids   CHLOROPICRIN  

Solids   Chloroprene  

Solids   CHLOROTHALONIL  

Solids   CHLORPROPHAM  

Solids   Chlorpyrifos methyl  

Solids   Chlorpyrifos  

Solids   Chromium VI 

Solids   Chromium  

Solids   Chrysene  

Solids   cis-1 2-Dichloroethylene  

Solids   cis-1 3-Dichloropropene  

Solids   cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene  

Solids   cis-1,3-Dichloropropene  

Solids   cis-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene  

Solids   CIS-PERMETHRIN  

Solids   Cobalt  

Solids   Copper  

Agenda Page 64



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

39 

 

Solids   Corrosivity (pH) 

Solids   Coumaphos  

Solids   Crotoxyphos  

Solids   CYANAZINE 

Solids   Cyanide, total 

Solids   CYCLOATE  

Solids   CYFLUTHRIN 

Solids   Dacthal (DCPA)  

Solids   Dalapon  

Solids   DCPA di acid degradate  

Solids   DCPA mono-acid  

Solids   delta-BHC  

Solids   Demeton-o  

Solids   Demeton-s  

Solids   DI(2-ETHYLHEXYL)ADIPATE  

Solids   DI(2-ETHYLHEXYL)PHTHALATE  

Solids   Diallate  

Solids   Diazinon  

Solids   Dibenz(a h) anthracene  

Solids   Dibenz(a j) acridine  

Solids   Dibenzofuran  

Solids   Dibromoacetic acid  

Solids   Dibromoacetonitrile  

Solids   Dibromochloromethane  

Solids   DIBROMOCHLOROPROPANE  

Solids   Dibromomethane  

Solids   Dicamba  

Solids   Dichloroacetic acid  

Solids   Dichloroacetonitrile  

Solids   Dichlorodifluoromethane  

Solids   Dichlorofenthion  

Solids   Dichloromethane (Methylene chloride) 

Solids   Dichloroprop (Dichlorprop)  

Solids   Dichlorovos (DDVP Dichlorvos)  

Solids   Dicrotophos  

Solids   Dieldrin  

Solids   Diesel range organics (DRO)  

Solids   Diethyl ether  

Solids   Diethyl phthalate  

Solids   Di-isopropylether (DIPE)  

Solids   Dimethoate  

Solids   Dimethyl phthalate  

Solids   Di-n-butyl phthalate  

Solids   Di-n-octyl phthalate  

Solids   Dinoseb (2-sec-butyl-4,6-dinitrophenol DNBP)  

Solids   Dioxathion  

Agenda Page 65



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

40 

 

Solids   DIPHENAMID  

Solids   Diphenylamine  

Solids   Diquat  

Solids   DIRUON 

Solids   DISULFOTON SULFONE 

Solids   DISULFOTON SULFOXIDE 

Solids   Disulfoton  

Solids   Endosulfan I  

Solids   Endosulfan II  

Solids   Endosulfan sulfate  

Solids   Endothall  

Solids   Endrin aldehyde  

Solids   Endrin ketone  

Solids   Endrin  

Solids   EPN  

Solids   EPTC  

Solids   Ethanol  

Solids   Ethion  

Solids   Ethoprop  

Solids   Ethyl acetate  

Solids   Ethyl methacrylate  

Solids   Ethyl methanesulfonate  

Solids   Ethylbenzene  

Solids   ETHYLENE DIBROMIDE (EDB)  

Solids   Ethylene glycol  

Solids   ETHYLMETHACRYLATE  

Solids   Ethyl-t-butylether (ETBE)  

Solids   ETRIDIAZOLE  

Solids   Extractable organic halides (EOX)  

Solids   Famphur  

Solids   Fecal coliforms  

Solids   FENAMIPHOS 

Solids   FENARIMOL  

Solids   Fenitrothion  

Solids   Fensulfothion  

Solids   Fenthion  

Solids   FIPRONIL 

Solids   Fluoranthene  

Solids   Fluorene  

Solids   Fluoride  

Solids   FLURIDONE  

Solids   Fonophos  

Solids   
gamma-BHC (Lindane gamma-
Hexachlorocyclohexane)  

Solids   gamma-Chlordane  

Solids   Gasoline range organics (GRO)  

Agenda Page 66



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

41 

 

Solids   G-CHLORDANE  

Solids   GLYPHOSATE 

Solids   HALOACETIC ACIDS (TOTAL)  

Solids   Heptachlor epoxide  

Solids   Heptachlor  

Solids   Hexachlorobenzene  

Solids   Hexachlorobutadiene  

Solids   Hexachlorobutadiene  

Solids   Hexachlorocyclopentadiene  

Solids   Hexachlorocyclopentadiene  

Solids   Hexachloroethane  

Solids   Hexachloroethane  

Solids   Hexachlorophene  

Solids   Hexachloropropene  

Solids   HEXAZINONE  

Solids   
HMX (Octahydro-1,3,5,7-tetranitro-1,3,5,7-
tetrazocine) 

Solids   Ignitability  

Solids   Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene  

Solids   Iodomethane (Methyl iodide)  

Solids   Iron  

Solids   Isobutyl alcohol (2-Methyl-1-propanol)  

Solids   Isobutyraldehyde  

Solids   Isodrin  

Solids   Isophorone  

Solids   Isopropanol  

Solids   Isopropyl acetate  

Solids   Isopropyl alcohol (2-Propanol)  

Solids   Isopropyl ether  

Solids   Isopropylbenzene  

Solids   Isosafrole  

Solids   Kepone  

Solids   Kjeldahl nitrogen - total  

Solids   Lead  

Solids   Leptophos  

Solids   LINDANE (G-BHC)  

Solids   Lithium  

Solids   Magnesium  

Solids   Malathion  

Solids   MANCOZEB 

Solids   Manganese  

Solids   MCPA  

Solids   MCPP  

Solids   M-DICHLOROBENZENE  

Solids   Mercury  

Solids   Merphos  

Agenda Page 67



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

42 

 

Solids   Methacrylonitrile  

Solids   Methanol  

Solids   Methapyrilene  

Solids   METHIOCARB  

Solids   METHOMYL  

Solids   Methoxychlor  

Solids   Methyl acrylate  

Solids   Methyl bromide (Bromomethane)  

Solids   Methyl chloride (Chloromethane)  

Solids   Methyl formate  

Solids   Methyl methacrylate  

Solids   Methyl methanesulfonate  

Solids   METHYL PARAOXON 

Solids   Methyl parathion (Parathion methyl)  

Solids   Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE)  

Solids   Methylene chloride  

Solids   METHYLMETHACRYLATE  

Solids   METOLACHLOR  

Solids   METRIBUZIN  

Solids   Mevinphos  

Solids   MGK 264 

Solids   Mirex  

Solids   MOLINATE 

Solids   Molybdenum  

Solids   Molybdenum  

Solids   Monobromoacetic Acid 

Solids   Monochloroacetic Acid 

Solids   MONOCHLOROBENZENE  

Solids   Monocrotophos  

Solids   MONOSODIUMMETHANEARSONATE (MSMA) 

Solids   Naled  

Solids   n-Amyl acetate  

Solids   Naphthalene  

Solids   Naphthalene  

Solids   NAPROPAMIDE  

Solids   n-Butyl alcohol  

Solids   n-Butylbenzene  

Solids   n-Decane  

Solids   n-Heptane  

Solids   n-Hexane Extractable Material (O&G) 

Solids   Nickel  

Solids   Nitrate + Nitrite as N 

Solids   Nitrate as N  

Solids   Nitrate  

Solids   Nitrite as N  

Solids   Nitrite  

Agenda Page 68



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

43 

 

Solids   Nitrobenzene  

Solids   Nitroquinoline-1-oxide  

Solids   n-Nitrosodiethylamine  

Solids   n-Nitrosodimethylamine  

Solids   n-Nitroso-di-n-butylamine  

Solids   n-Nitrosodi-n-propylamine  

Solids   n-Nitrosodiphenylamine  

Solids   n-Nitrosomethylethylamine  

Solids   n-Nitrosomorpholine  

Solids   n-Nitrosopiperidine  

Solids   n-Nitrosopyrrolidine  

Solids   n-Octadecane  

Solids   non-Polar Extractable Material (TPH) 

Solids   NORFLURAZON  

Solids   n-Propanol  

Solids   n-Propylbenzene  

Solids   o o o-Triethyl phosphorothioate  

Solids   O-CHLOROTOLUENE  

Solids   O-DICHLOROBENZENE  

Solids   Oil & Grease  

Solids   Organic nitrogen  

Solids   Orthophosphate as P  

Solids   o-Toluidine  

Solids   OXADIAZON 

Solids   OXAMYL  

Solids   Paint Filter Liquids Test  

Solids   Paraquat 

Solids   Parathion ethyl  

Solids   Parathion methyl 

Solids   PCB-AROCHLOR  

Solids   PCBs  

Solids   P-CHLOROTOLUENE  

Solids   P-DICHLOROBENZENE  

Solids   p-Dioxane  

Solids   PEBULATE  

Solids   Pentachlorobenzene  

Solids   Pentachloroethane  

Solids   Pentachloronitrobenzene  

Solids   Pentachlorophenol  

Solids   Pentachlorophenol  

Solids   Perchlorate  

Solids   pH  

Solids   Phenacetin  

Solids   Phenanthrene  

Solids   Phenol  

Solids   Phorate  

Agenda Page 69



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

44 

 

Solids   Phorate  

Solids   Phosmet (Imidan)  

Solids   Phosphamidon  

Solids   Phosphorus total  

Solids   Picloram  

Solids   p-Isopropyltoluene  

Solids   Potassium  

Solids   PRODIAMINE 

Solids   PROMETON 

Solids   PROMETRYN  

Solids   PRONAMIDE  

Solids   PROPACHLOR  

Solids   PROPAZINE  

Solids   Propionitrile (Ethyl cyanide)  

Solids   PROPOXUR (BAYGON)  

Solids   Pyrene  

Solids   Pyridine  

Solids   Quinclorac  

Solids   RDX (hexahydro-1,3,5-trinitro-1,3,5-triazine) 

Solids   Reactive cyanide  

Solids   Reactive sulfide  

Solids   Residue-total  

Solids   Residue-volatile  

Solids   Ronnel  

Solids   Safrole  

Solids   sec-Butylbenzene  

Solids   Selenium  

Solids   Selenium  

Solids   Silica as SiO2  

Solids   Silicon  

Solids   Silver  

Solids   Silvex (2,4,5-TP)  

Solids   Simazine  

Solids   SIMETRYN 

Solids   Sodium  

Solids   Stirofos  

Solids   Stirophos (tetrachlorovinphos) 

Solids   Strontium  

Solids   Strontium  

Solids   Styrene  

Solids   Sulfate  

Solids   Sulfide  

Solids   Sulfotepp  

Solids   Surfactants - MBAS  

Solids   Synthetic Precipitation Leaching Procedure  

Solids   T-1,2-DICHLOROETHYLENE  

Agenda Page 70



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

45 

 

Solids   T-1,3-DICHLOROPROPYLENE  

Solids   T-amylmethylether (TAME)  

Solids   TEBUTHIURON  

Solids   TERBACIL  

Solids   Terbufos  

Solids   TERBUTRYN  

Solids   tert-Butyl alcohol  

Solids   tert-Butylbenzene  

Solids   Tetrachloroethene 

Solids   Tetrachloroethylene (Perchloroethylene)  

Solids   Tetraethyl pyrophosphate (TEPP)  

Solids   TETRAHYDROFURAN  

Solids   Tetryl (methyl-2,4,6-trinitrophenylnitramine) 

Solids   Thallium  

Solids   Thionazin (Zinophos)  

Solids   THIOPHANATE-METHYL 

Solids   Tin  

Solids   Titanium  

Solids   TOC 

Solids   Tokuthion (Prothiophos)  

Solids   Toluene  

Solids   Total  Phosphorus 

Solids   Total coliforms  

Solids   Total cyanide  

Solids   Total haloacetic acids  

Solids   Total Kjeldahl-Nitrogen 

Solids   Total nitrate-nitrite  

Solids   Total Organic Carbon (TOC) 

Solids   TOTAL PCBS  

Solids   Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons 

Solids   Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons (TPH)  

Solids   Total phenolics  

Solids   Total Phosphorus 

Solids   Total trihalomethanes  

Solids   Total Xylenes 

Solids   Toxaphene (Chlorinated camphene)  

Solids   Toxicity Characteristic Leaching Procedure  

Solids   trans-1,2-Dichloroethene 

Solids   trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene  

Solids   trans-1,3-Dichloropropene 

Solids   trans-1,3-Dichloropropylene  

Solids   trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene  

Solids   TRANS-PERMETHRIN  

Solids   TRIADEMEFON  

Solids   Trichlorfon  

Solids   Trichloroacetic acid  

Agenda Page 71



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

46 

 

Solids   Trichloroacetonitrile  

Solids   Trichloroethene (Trichloroethylene)  

Solids   TRICHLOROETHYLENE  

Solids   Trichlorofluoromethane  

Solids   Trichloronate  

Solids   Trichlorotrifluoroethane (Freon 113) 

Solids   TRICYCLAZOLE 

Solids   TRIFLURALIN  

Solids   Tritium 

Solids   Tungsten  

Solids   Vanadium  

Solids   VERNOLATE  

Solids   Vinyl acetate  

Solids   Vinyl chloride  

Solids   Xylene (total)  

Solids   Zinc  

SOLVENT Ignitability (Flashpoint) 

Tissues   4,4'-DDD 

Tissues   4,4'-DDE 

Tissues   4,4'-DDT 

Tissues   Aldrin  

Tissues   alpha-BHC (alpha-Hexachlorocyclohexane)  

Tissues   alpha-Chlordane  

Tissues   Aluminum  

Tissues   Antimony  

Tissues   Aroclor-1016 (PCB-1016)  

Tissues   Aroclor-1221 (PCB-1221)  

Tissues   Aroclor-1232 (PCB-1232)  

Tissues   Aroclor-1242 (PCB-1242)  

Tissues   Aroclor-1248 (PCB-1248)  

Tissues   Aroclor-1254 (PCB-1254)  

Tissues   Aroclor-1260 (PCB-1260)  

Tissues   Arsenic  

Tissues   Atrazine  

Tissues   Azinphos-ethyl (Ethyl guthion)  

Tissues   Azinphos-methyl (Guthion)  

Tissues   Barium  

Tissues   Beryllium  

Tissues   beta-BHC (beta-Hexachlorocyclohexane)  

Tissues   Bolstar (Sulprofos)  

Tissues   Boron  

Tissues   Cadmium  

Tissues   Calcium  

Tissues   Carbophenothion  

Tissues   Chlordane (tech.)  

Tissues   Chlorfenvinphos  

Agenda Page 72



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

47 

 

Tissues   Chlorpyrifos  

Tissues   Chromium  

Tissues   Cobalt  

Tissues   Copper  

Tissues   Coumaphos  

Tissues   delta-BHC  

Tissues   Demeton-o  

Tissues   Demeton-s  

Tissues   Diazinon  

Tissues   Dichlorovos (DDVP Dichlorvos)  

Tissues   Dieldrin  

Tissues   Dimethoate  

Tissues   Disulfoton  

Tissues   Endosulfan I  

Tissues   Endosulfan II  

Tissues   Endosulfan sulfate  

Tissues   Endrin aldehyde  

Tissues   Endrin ketone  

Tissues   Endrin  

Tissues   EPN  

Tissues   Ethion  

Tissues   Ethoprop  

Tissues   Famphur  

Tissues   Fensulfothion  

Tissues   Fenthion  

Tissues   
gamma-BHC (Lindane gamma-
Hexachlorocyclohexane)  

Tissues   gamma-Chlordane  

Tissues   Heptachlor epoxide  

Tissues   Heptachlor  

Tissues   Iron  

Tissues   Lead  

Tissues   Leptophos  

Tissues   Magnesium  

Tissues   Malathion  

Tissues   Manganese  

Tissues   Mercury  

Tissues   Merphos  

Tissues   Methoxychlor  

Tissues   Methyl parathion (Parathion methyl)  

Tissues   Mevinphos  

Tissues   Molybdenum  

Tissues   Monocrotophos  

Tissues   Naled  

Tissues   Nickel  

Tissues   Parathion ethyl  

Agenda Page 73



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

48 

 

Tissues   Phorate  

Tissues   Phosmet (Imidan)  

Tissues   Phosphamidon  

Tissues   Potassium  

Tissues   Ronnel  

Tissues   Selenium  

Tissues   Silver  

Tissues   Sodium  

Tissues   Stirofos  

Tissues   Strontium  

Tissues   Sulfotepp  

Tissues   Terbufos  

Tissues   Tetraethyl pyrophosphate (TEPP)  

Tissues   Thallium  

Tissues   Tin  

Tissues   Tokuthion (Prothiophos)  

Tissues   Toxaphene (Chlorinated camphene)  

Tissues   Trichloronate  

Tissues   Vanadium  

Tissues   Zinc  

  
Term of Contract 
 

The contract term, if an award(s) is/are made is intended to be for two (2) years with one (1) two 
(2) year renewal option. 
 
Prices shall remain firm for the initial term of this contract.  Requests for consideration of a price 
adjustment must be made on the contract anniversary date, in writing, to the Purchasing Director. 
Price adjustments are dependent upon the consumer price index (CPI) over the past twelve (12) 
months, budget availability and program manager approval. 
 
Surcharges will not be accepted in conjunction with this contract, and such charges should be 
incorporated into the pricing structure. 

 
Projected Solicitation Timetable  
  

The following projected timetable should be used as a working guide for planning purposes only. 
The County reserves the right to adjust this timetable as required during the course of the RFP 
process. 

 

Event Date 

Issue Solicitation Notice October 9th, 2013 

Last Date for Receipt of Written Questions October 21, 2013 

Addendum Issued Resulting from  Written Questions  October 25, 2013 

Solicitation Deadline Date and Time November, 7th, 2013, 3:00PM 

Anticipated Evaluation of Submittals November 18, 2013 

Anticipated Completion of Contract Negotiations  November 2013 

Anticipated Board of County Commissioner’s Contract Approval 
Date 

December 2013 

Agenda Page 74



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

49 

 

 
Response Format 
 

The Vendor understands and agrees to abide by all of the RFP specifications, provisions, terms 
and conditions of same, and all ordinances and policies of Collier County. The Vendor further 
agrees that if it is awarded a contract, the work will be performed in accordance with the 
provisions, terms and conditions of the contract. 

 
To facilitate the fair evaluation and comparison of proposals, all proposals must conform to the 
guidelines set forth in this RFP.  
 
Any portions of the proposal that do not comply with these guidelines must be so noted and 
explained in the Acceptance of Conditions section of the proposal. However, any proposal that 
contains such variances may be considered non-responsive. 
 
Proposals should be prepared simply and economically, providing a straightforward concise 
description of the Vendor’s approach and ability to meet the County’s needs, as stated in this 
RFP.   All proposals should be presented as described in this RFP in PDF or Microsoft Word 
format with Tabs clearly marked.   If outlined in this RFP, the utilization of recycled paper for 
proposal submission is strongly encouraged. 
 
The items listed below shall be submitted with each proposal and should be submitted in the order 
shown. Each section should be clearly labeled, with pages numbered and separated by tabs.  
Failure by a Vendor to include all listed items may result in the rejection of its proposal.  

 
1. Tab I, Cover Letter / Management Summary 

 
Provide a cover letter, signed by an authorized officer of the firm, indicating the underlying 
philosophy of the firm in providing the services stated herein. Include the name(s), telephone 
number(s), and email(s) of the authorized contact person(s) concerning proposal. Submission 
of a signed Proposal is Proposer's certification that the Proposer will accept any awards made 
to him as a result of said submission of the terms contained therein. 

 
2. Tab II, Business Plan (20 points) 
 

In this tab, include:  
 

 Description of the proposed contract team and the role to be played by each member 
of the proposed team. 

 Detailed plan of approach (including major tasks and sub-tasks). 

 Detailed time line for completion of the project. 

 Include with the Business Plan or as an attachment, a copy of a report as an example 
of work product. This should be for one of the projects listed as a reference. 

 
3. Tab III, Cost of Services to the County (20 points) 
 

In this tab, include: 
 
Provide the guaranteed maximum total cost and estimated calendar day duration (including 
projected hours) for which your firm will provide the work described in this RFP. Pricing 
proposal includes a current price list for all analytical capabilities at the time of proposal 
submittal.  This price list will be used to establish pricing for those parameters not included in 

Agenda Page 75



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

50 

 

Table I that may be requested for special projects. All additional charges associated with rush 
projects that require a shorter turnaround time than that stated in number 12 of the Scope of 
Work. 

 
4. Tab IV, Experience and Capacity of Firm (20 points) 
 

In this tab, include:  
 

Provide information that documents your firm and subcontractors’ qualifications to produce the 
required outcomes, including its ability, capacity, skill, and financial strength, and number of 
years of experience in providing the required services.  Also describe the various team 
members’ successful experience in working with one another on previous projects. 

 
5. Tab V, Specialized Expertise of Team Members (20 points) 
 

In this tab, include:  
 
Attach resumes of all managers, supervisors, and other contract team members who will be 
involved in the management of the total package of services, as well as the delivery of specific 
services.  The same should be done for any sub-consultants. If sub-consultants are being 
utilized, letters of intent from stated sub-consultants must be included with proposal 
submission. 

 
6. Tab VI, References (10 points) 
 

In order for the vendor to be awarded any points for this tab, the County requests that the 
vendor submits five (5) completed reference forms from clients whose projects are of a similar 
nature to this solicitation as a part of their proposal.  The County will only use the methodology 
calculations for the first five (5) references (only) submitted by the vendor in their proposal. 
 
Prior to the Selection Committee reviewing proposals, the following methodology will be 
applied to each vendor’s information provided in this area: 

 The County shall total each of the vendor’s five reference questionnaires and create a 
ranking from highest number of points to lowest number of points.  References marked 
with an N/A (or similar notation will be given the score of zero (0)).  Vendors who do not 
turn in reference forms will be counted as zero (0). 

 The greatest number of points allowed in this criterion will be awarded to the vendor who 
has the highest score. 

 The next highest vendor’s number of points will be divided by the highest vendor’s points 
which will then be multiplied by criteria points to determine the vendor’s points awarded.  
Each subsequent vendor’s point score will be calculated in the same manner. 

 Points awarded will be extended to the whole number per Microsoft Excel. 
 
For illustrative purposes only, see chart for an example of how these points would be 
distributed among the five proposers. 
 

Vendor Name 
Vendor Total Reference 

Score 
Points Awarded 

Vendor ABC 445 20 

Vendor DEF 435 19.6 

Vendor GHI 425 19.1 

Agenda Page 76



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

51 

 

Vendor JKL 385 17.3 

Vendor MNO 385 17.3 

Vendor PQR 250 11.2 
Note: Sample chart reflects a 20 point reference criterion. 

 
The points awarded by vendor will be distributed to the Selection Committee prior to their 
evaluation of the proposals.  The Selection Committee will review the vendor’s proposal to 
ensure consistency and completion of all tasks in the RFP, and review the Points Awarded per 
vendor.  The Selection Committee may, at their sole discretion, contact references, and/or 
modify the reference points assigned after a thorough review of the proposal and prior to final 
ranking by the final Selection Committee.  

 
7. Tab VIl, Acceptance of Conditions  
 

Indicate any exceptions to the general terms and conditions of the RFP, and to insurance 
requirements or any other requirements listed in this RFP. If no exceptions are indicated in this 
tabbed section, it will be understood that no exceptions to these documents will be considered 
after the award, or if applicable, during negotiations. Exceptions taken by a Vendor may result 
in evaluation point deduction(s) and/or exclusion of proposal for Selection Committee 
consideration, depending on the extent of the exception(s). Such determination shall be at the 
sole discretion of the County and Selection Committee.  

 
8. Tab VIIl, Required Form Submittals  

 

 Attachment 2: Vendor Check List 

 Attachment 3: Conflict of Interest Affidavit 

 Attachment 4: Vendor Declaration Statement 

 Attachment 5: Affidavit for Claiming Status as a Local Business 

 Attachment 6: Immigration Affidavit Certification 

 Attachment 7: Vendor Substitute W-9 

 Attachment 8: Insurance and Bonding Requirements 

 Attachment 9: Reference Questionnaire 
 

Agenda Page 77



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

52 

 

Exhibit II: General RFP Instructions 

 
 
1. Questions 
 

Direct questions related to this RFP to the Collier County Purchasing Department Online Bidding 
System website: www.colliergov.net/bid.  Vendors must clearly understand that the only official 
answer or position of the County will be the one stated on the Collier County Purchasing 
Department Online Bidding System website. For general questions, please call the referenced 
Procurement Strategist noted on the cover page.     

 
2. Pre-Proposal Conference 
 

The purpose of the pre-proposal conference is to allow an open forum for discussion and 
questioning with County staff regarding this RFP with all prospective Vendors having an equal 
opportunity to hear and participate. Oral questions will receive oral responses, neither of which will 
be official, nor become part of the RFP. Only written responses to written questions will be 
considered official, and will be included as part of this RFP as an addendum. 
 
All prospective Vendors are strongly encouraged to attend, as, this will usually be the only pre-
proposal conference for this solicitation. If this pre-proposal conference is denoted as “mandatory”, 
prospective Vendors must be present in order to submit a proposal response. 

 
3. Compliance with the RFP 
 

Proposals must be in strict compliance with this RFP. Failure to comply with all provisions of the 
RFP may result in disqualification. 

 
4. Ambiguity, Conflict, or Other Errors in the RFP 
 

It is the sole responsibility of the Vendor if the Vendor discovers any ambiguity, conflict, 
discrepancy, omission or other error in the RFP, to immediately notify the Procurement Strategist, 
noted herein, of such error in writing and request modification or clarification of the document prior 
to submitting the proposal. The Procurement Strategist will make modifications by issuing a written 
revision and will give written notice to all parties who have received this RFP from the Purchasing 
Department.  

 
5. Proposal, Presentation, and Protest Costs 
 

The County will not be liable in any way for any costs incurred by any Vendor in the preparation of 
its proposal in response to this RFP, nor for the presentation of its proposal and/or participation in 
any discussions, negotiations, or, if applicable, any protest procedures. 

 
6. Delivery of Proposals 
 

All proposals are to be delivered before 3:00 P.M., Naples local time, on or before November 7th, 
2013 to: 

Collier County Government 
Purchasing Department 
3327 Tamiami Trail E 
Naples FL 34112 
Attn: Evelyn Colón, Procurement Strategist 

Agenda Page 78

http://www.colliergov.net/bid


13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

53 

 

 
The County does not bear the responsibility for proposals delivered to the Purchasing 
Department past the stated date and/or time indicated, or to an incorrect address by 
Consultant’s personnel or by the Consultant’s outside carrier. However, the 
Purchasing/General Services Director, or designee, reserves the right to accept proposals 
received after the posted close time under the following conditions: 

 The tardy submission of the proposal is due to the following circumstances, which may 
include but not be limited to: late delivery by commercial carrier such as Fed Ex, UPS 
or courier where delivery was scheduled before the deadline.  

 The acceptance of said proposal does not afford any competing firm an unfair 
advantage in the selection process. 

 
Vendors must submit one (1) paper copy clearly labeled “Master,” and one (1) disk (CD’s/DVD’s) 
with one copy of the proposal on each disk in Word, Excel or PDF.  List the Solicitation Number 
and Title on the outside of the box or envelope.   

 
7. Validity of Proposals 
 

No proposal can be withdrawn after it is filed unless the Vendor makes their request in writing to 
the County prior to the time set for the closing of Proposals.  All proposals shall be valid for a 
period of one hundred eighty (180) days from the submission date to accommodate evaluation 
and selection process. 

 
8. Method of Source Selection 
 

The County is using the Competitive Sealed Proposals methodology of source selection for this 
procurement, as authorized by Ordinance Number 87-25, and Collier County Resolution Number 
2007-340 establishing and adopting the Collier County Purchasing Policy.   
 
The County may, as it deems necessary, conduct discussions with qualified Vendors determined 
to be in contention for being selected for award for the purpose of clarification to assure full 
understanding of, and responsiveness to solicitation requirements. 

 
9. Evaluation of Proposals  
 

The County’s procedure for selecting is as follows: 
          

1. The County Manager or designee shall appoint a Selection Committee to review all proposals 
submitted. 

2. Request for Proposals issued.         
3. Subsequent to the closing of proposals, the Procurement Strategist will review the proposals 

received and verify whether each proposal appears to be minimally responsive to the 
requirements of the published RFP.  

4. Meetings will be open to the public and the Procurement Strategist shall publicly post prior 
notice of such meeting in the lobby of the Purchasing Building.     

5. The committee members will review each Proposal individually and score each proposal 
based on the evaluation criteria stated herein.      

6. Prior to the first meeting of the selection committee, the Procurement Strategist will post a 
notice announcing the date, time and place of the first committee meeting.  Said notice shall 
be posted in the lobby of the Purchasing Building not less than three (3) working days prior to 
the meeting. The Procurement Strategist will also post prior notice of all subsequent 

Agenda Page 79



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

54 

 

committee meetings and shall endeavor to post such notices at least one (1) day in advance of 
all subsequent meetings.    

7. The committee will compile individual rankings, based on the evaluation criteria as stated 
herein, for each proposal to determine committee recommendations. The committee may at 
their discretion, schedule presentations or demonstrations from the top-ranked firm(s), make 
site visits, and obtain guidance from third party subject matter experts. The final 
recommendation will be decided based on review of scores and consensus of committee. 

 
The County reserves the right to withdraw this RFP at any time and for any reason, and to issue 
such clarifications, modifications, and/or amendments as it may deem appropriate. 
 
Receipt of a proposal by the County or a submission of a proposal to the County offers no rights 
upon the Vendor nor obligates the County in any manner. 
 
Acceptance of the proposal does not guarantee issuance of any other governmental approvals. 
Proposals which include provisions requiring the granting of zoning variances shall not be 
considered. 

 
10. References 
 

The County reserves the right to contact any and all references pertaining to this solicitation and 
related proposal. 

 
11. Proposal Selection Committee and Evaluation Factors 
 

The County Manager shall appoint a Selection Committee to review all proposals submitted.   The 
factors to be considered in the evaluation of proposal responses are listed below. 
 
Tab II, Business Plan 20 
Tab III, Cost of Services to the County 20 
Tab IV, Experience and Capacity of Firm 20 
Tab V, Specialized Expertise of Team Members 20 
Tab VI, References 10 
Local Vendor Preference 10 
TOTAL 100 
 
Tie Breaker: In the event of a tie, both in individual scoring and in final ranking, the firm with 
the lowest paid dollars by Collier County to the vendor (as obtained from the County’s financial 
system) within the last five (5) years will receive the higher individual ranking.  If there is a multiple 
firm tie in either individual scoring or final ranking, the firm with the lowest volume of work shall 
receive the higher ranking, the firm with the next lowest volume of work shall receive the next 
highest ranking and so on. 

 
12. Acceptance or Rejection of Proposals 
 

The right is reserved by the County to waive any irregularities in any proposal, to reject any or all 
proposals, to re-solicit for proposals, if desired, and upon recommendation and justification by 
Collier County to accept the proposal which in the judgment of the County is deemed the most 
advantageous for the public and the County of Collier. 
 
Any proposal which is incomplete, conditional, obscure or which contains irregularities of any kind, 
may be cause for rejection. In the event of default of the successful Vendor, or their refusal to 

Agenda Page 80



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

55 

 

enter into the Collier County contract, the County reserves the right to accept the proposal of any 
other Vendor or to re-advertise using the same or revised documentation, at its sole discretion. 

 

Agenda Page 81



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

56 

 

Exhibit III: Collier County Purchase Order Terms and Conditions 
 
 

1. Offer   
This offer is subject to cancellation by the 
COUNTY without notice if not accepted by 
VENDOR within fourteen (14) days of 
issuance. 

 
2. Acceptance and Confirmation 

This Purchase Order (including all 
documents attached to or referenced 
therein) constitutes the entire agreement 
between the parties, unless otherwise 
specifically noted by the COUNTY on the 
face of this Purchase Order.  Each delivery 
of goods and/or services received by the 
COUNTY from VENDOR shall be deemed to 
be upon the terms and conditions contained 
in this Purchase Order. 

 
No additional terms may be added and 
Purchase Order may not be changed except 
by written instrument executed by the 
COUNTY.  VENDOR is deemed to be on 
notice that the COUNTY objects to any 
additional or different terms and conditions 
contained in any acknowledgment, invoice 
or other communication from VENDOR, 
notwithstanding the COUNTY’S acceptance 
or payment for any delivery of goods and/or 
services, or any similar act by VENDOR. 

 
3. Inspection 

All goods and/or services delivered 
hereunder shall be received subject to the 
COUNTY’S inspection and approval and 
payment therefore shall not constitute 
acceptance.  All payments are subject to 
adjustment for shortage or rejection.  All 
defective or nonconforming goods will be 
returned pursuant to VENDOR'S instruction 
at VENDOR’S expense. 
 
To the extent that a purchase order requires 
a series of performances by VENDOR, the 
COUNTY prospectively reserves the right to 
cancel the entire remainder of the Purchase 
Order if goods and/or services provided 
early in the term of the Purchase Order are 
non-conforming or otherwise rejected by the 
COUNTY.   

4. Shipping and Invoices 
a) All goods are FOB destination and must 

be suitably packed and prepared to 
secure the lowest transportation rates 
and to comply with all carrier 

regulations.  Risk of loss of any goods 
sold hereunder shall transfer to the 
COUNTY at the time and place of 
delivery; provided that risk of loss prior 
to actual receipt of the goods by the 
COUNTY nonetheless remain with 
VENDOR. 

b) No charges will be paid by the COUNTY 
for packing, crating or cartage unless 
otherwise specifically stated in this 
Purchase Order.  Unless otherwise 
provided in Purchase Order, no invoices 
shall be issued nor payments made 
prior to delivery.  Unless freight and 
other charges are itemized, any 
discount will be taken on the full amount 
of invoice. 

c) All shipments of goods scheduled on the 
same day via the same route must be 
consolidated.  Each shipping container 
must be consecutively numbered and 
marked to show this Purchase Order 
number.  The container and Purchase 
Order numbers must be indicated on bill 
of lading.  Packing slips must show 
Purchase Order number and must be 
included on each package of less than 
container load (LCL) shipments and/or 
with each car load of equipment.  The 
COUNTY reserves the right to refuse or 
return any shipment or equipment at 
VENDOR’S expense that is not marked 
with Purchase Order numbers.   
VENDOR agrees to declare to the 
carrier the value of any shipment made 
under this Purchase Order and the full 
invoice value of such shipment. 

d) All invoices must contain the Purchase 
Order number and any other specific 
information as identified on the 
Purchase Order.  Discounts of prompt 
payment will be computed from the date 
of receipt of goods or from date of 
receipt of invoices, whichever is later.  
Payment will be made upon receipt of a 
proper invoice and in compliance with 
Chapter 218, Fla. Stats., otherwise 
known as the “Local Government 
Prompt Payment Act,” and, pursuant to 
the Board of County Commissioners 
Purchasing Policy.   

 
5. Time Is Of the Essence 

Agenda Page 82



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

57 

 

Time for delivery of goods or performance of 
services under this Purchase Order is of the 
essence.  Failure of VENDOR to meet 
delivery schedules or deliver within a 
reasonable time, as interpreted by the 
COUNTY in its sole judgment, shall entitle 
the COUNTY to seek all remedies available 
to it at law or in equity.  VENDOR agrees to 
reimburse the COUNTY for any expenses 
incurred in enforcing its rights.  VENDOR 
further agrees that undiscovered delivery of 
nonconforming goods and/or services is not 
a waiver of the COUNTY’S right to insist 
upon further compliance with all 
specifications. 

 
6. Changes 

The COUNTY may at any time and by 
written notice make changes to drawings 
and specifications, shipping instructions, 
quantities and delivery schedules within the 
general scope of this Purchase Order.  
Should any such change increase or 
decrease the cost of, or the time required for 
performance of the Purchase Order, an 
equitable adjustment in the price and/or 
delivery schedule will be negotiated by the 
COUNTY and VENDOR.  Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, VENDOR has an affirmative 
obligation to give notice if the changes will 
decrease costs.  Any claims for adjustment 
by VENDOR must be made within thirty (30) 
days from the date the change is ordered or 
within such additional period of time as may 
be agreed upon by the parties. 

 
7. Warranties 

VENDOR expressly warrants that the goods 
and/or services covered by this Purchase 
Order will conform to the specifications, 
drawings, samples or other descriptions 
furnished or specified by the COUNTY, and 
will be of satisfactory material and quality 
production, free from defects and sufficient 
for the purpose intended.  Goods shall be 
delivered free from any security interest or 
other lien, encumbrance or claim of any third 
party.  These warranties shall survive 
inspection, acceptance, passage of title and 
payment by the COUNTY. 

 
8. Statutory Conformity 

Goods and services provided pursuant to 
this Purchase Order, and their production 
and transportation shall conform to all 
applicable laws, including but not limited to 

the Occupational Health and Safety Act, the 
Federal Transportation Act and the Fair 
Labor Standards Act, as well as any law or 
regulation noted on the face of the Purchase 
Order. 

 
9. Advertising 

No VENDOR providing goods and services 
to the COUNTY shall advertise the fact that 
it has contracted with the COUNTY for 
goods and/or services, or appropriate or 
make use of the COUNTY’S name or other 
identifying marks or property without the 
prior written consent of the COUNTY’S 
Purchasing Department. 

 
 
10. Indemnification 

VENDOR shall indemnify and hold harmless 
the COUNTY from any and all claims, 
including claims of negligence, costs and 
expenses, including but not limited to 
attorneys' fees, arising from, caused by or 
related to the injury or death of any person 
(including but not limited to employees and 
agents of VENDOR in the performance of 
their duties or otherwise), or damage to 
property (including property of the COUNTY 
or other persons), which arise out of or are 
incident to the goods and/or services to be 
provided hereunder.   

 
11. Warranty of Non-Infringement 

VENDOR represents and warrants that all 
goods sold or services performed under this 
Purchase Order are: a) in compliance with 
applicable laws; b) do not infringe any 
patent, trademark, copyright or trade secret; 
and c) do not constitute unfair competition. 

 
VENDOR shall indemnify and hold harmless 
the COUNTY from and against any and all 
claims, including claims of negligence, costs 
and expense, including but not limited to 
attorneys' fees, which arise from any claim, 
suit or proceeding alleging that the 
COUNTY’S use of the goods and/or 
services provided under this Purchase Order 
are inconsistent with VENDOR'S 
representations and warranties in section 11 
(a).  
  
If any claim which arises from VENDOR'S 
breach of section 11 (a) has occurred, or is 
likely to occur, VENDOR may, at the 
COUNTY’S option, procure for the COUNTY 

Agenda Page 83



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

58 

 

the right to continue using the goods or 
services, or replace or modify the goods or 
services so that they become non-infringing, 
(without any material degradation in 
performance, quality, functionality or 
additional cost to the COUNTY).   

 
12. Insurance Requirements 

The VENDOR, at its sole expense, shall 
provide commercial insurance of such type 
and with such terms and limits as may be 
reasonably associated with the Purchase 
Order.  Providing and maintaining adequate 
insurance coverage is a material obligation 
of the VENDOR.  All insurance policies shall 
be executed through insurers authorized or 
eligible to write policies in the State of 
Florida. 
 

13. Compliance with Laws 
In fulfilling the terms of this Purchase Order, 
VENDOR agrees that it will comply with all 
federal, state, and local laws, rules, codes, 
and ordinances that are applicable to the 
conduct of its business.  By way of non-
exhaustive example, this shall include the 
American with Disabilities Act and all 
prohibitions against discrimination on the 
basis of race, religion, sex creed, national 
origin, handicap, marital status, or veterans’ 
status.  Further, VENDOR acknowledges 
and without exception or stipulation shall be 
fully responsible for complying with the 
provisions of the Immigration Reform and 
Control Act of 1986 as located at 8 U.S.C. 
1324, et seq. and regulations relating 
thereto, as either may be amended. Failure 
by the awarded firm(s) to comply with the 
laws referenced herein shall constitute a 
breach of the award agreement and the 
County shall have the discretion to 
unilaterally terminate said agreement 
immediately.  Any breach of this provision 
may be regarded by the COUNTY as a 
material and substantial breach of the 
contract arising from this Purchase Order. 

 
14. Force Majeure 

Neither the COUNTY nor VENDOR shall be 
responsible for any delay or failure in 
performance resulting from any cause 
beyond their control, including, but without 
limitation to war, strikes, civil disturbances 
and acts of nature.  When VENDOR has 
knowledge of any actual or potential force 
majeure or other conditions which will delay 

or threatens to delay timely performance of 
this Purchase Order, VENDOR shall 
immediately give notice thereof, including all 
relevant information with respects to what 
steps VENDOR is taking to complete 
delivery of the goods and/or services to the 
COUNTY. 
 

15. Assignment 
VENDOR may not assign this Purchase 
Order, nor any money due or to become due 
without the prior written consent of the 
COUNTY.  Any assignment made without 
such consent shall be deemed void. 
 

16. Taxes 
Goods and services procured subject to this 
Purchase Order are exempt from Florida 
sales and use tax on real property, transient 
rental property rented, tangible personal 
purchased or rented, or services purchased 
(Florida Statutes, Chapter 212), and from 
federal excise tax. 
 

17. Annual Appropriations 
The COUNTY’S performance and obligation 
to pay under this Purchase Order shall be 
contingent upon an annual appropriation of 
funds. 
   

18. Termination 
This Purchase Order may be terminated at 
any time by the COUNTY upon 30 days 
prior written notice to the VENDOR. This 
Purchase Order may be terminated 
immediately by the COUNTY for breach by 
VENDOR of the terms and conditions of this 
Purchase Order, provided that COUNTY has 
provided VENDOR with notice of such 
breach and VENDOR has failed to cure 
within 10 days of receipt of such notice. 

 
19. General 

a) This Purchase Order shall be governed 
by the laws of the State of Florida.  The 
venue for any action brought to 
specifically enforce any of the terms and 
conditions of this Purchase Order shall 
be the Twentieth Judicial Circuit in and 
for Collier County, Florida 

b) Failure of the COUNTY to act 
immediately in response to a breach of 
this Purchase Order by VENDOR shall 
not constitute a waiver of breach.  
Waiver of the COUNTY by any default 
by VENDOR hereunder shall not be 

Agenda Page 84



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

59 

 

deemed a waiver of any subsequent 
default by VENDOR. 

c) All notices under this Purchase Order 
shall be sent to the respective 
addresses on the face page by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, by 
overnight courier service, or by personal 
delivery and will be deemed effective 
upon receipt.  Postage, delivery and 
other charges shall be paid by the 
sender.  A party may change its address 
for notice by written notice complying 
with the requirements of this section. 

d) The Vendor agrees to reimbursement of 
any travel expenses that may be 
associated with this Purchase Order in 
accordance with Florida Statute Chapter 

112.061, Per Diem and Travel 
Expenses for Public Officers, employees 
and authorized persons. 

e) In the event of any conflict between or 
among the terms of any Contract 
Documents related to this Purchase 
Order, the terms of the Contract 
Documents shall take precedence over 
the terms of the Purchase Order.  To the 
extent any terms and /or conditions of 
this Purchase Order duplicate or overlap 
the Terms and Conditions of the 
Contract Documents, the provisions of 
the Terms and/or Conditions that are 
most favorable to the County and/or 
provide the greatest protection to the 
County shall govern. 

 

Agenda Page 85



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

60 

 

 
Exhibit IV: Additional Terms and Conditions for RFP 

 
1. Insurance Requirements  
 

The Vendor shall at its own expense, carry and maintain insurance coverage from responsible 
companies duly authorized to do business in the State of Florida as set forth in the Insurance and 
Bonding attachment of this solicitation.  The Vendor shall procure and maintain property insurance 
upon the entire project, if required, to the full insurable value of the scope of work.   
 
The County and the Vendor waive against each other and the County’s separate Vendors, 
Contractors, Design Consultant, Subcontractors agents and employees of each and all of them, all 
damages covered by property insurance provided herein, except such rights as they may have to the 
proceeds of such insurance.  The Vendor and County shall, where appropriate, require similar 
waivers of subrogation from the County’s separate Vendors, Design Consultants and Subcontractors 
and shall require each of them to include similar waivers in their contracts. 
 
Collier County shall be responsible for purchasing and maintaining, its own liability insurance. 
 
Certificates issued as a result of the award of this solicitation must identify “For any and all work 
performed on behalf of Collier County.”  
 
The General Liability Policy provided by Vendor to meet the requirements of this solicitation shall 
name Collier County, Florida, as an additional insured as to the operations of Vendor under this 
solicitation and shall contain a severability of interests provisions. 
 
Collier County Board of County Commissioners shall be named as the Certificate Holder.  The 
Certificates of Insurance must state the Contract Number, or Project Number, or specific Project 
description, or must read:  For any and all work performed on behalf of Collier County. The 
"Certificate Holder" should read as follows:   
 

Collier County 
Board of County Commissioners 
Naples, Florida 

 
The amounts and types of insurance coverage shall conform to the minimum requirements set forth 
in the Insurance and Bonding attachment, with the use of Insurance Services Office (ISO) forms and 
endorsements or their equivalents.  If Vendor has any self-insured retentions or deductibles under 
any of the below listed minimum required  coverage, Vendor must identify on the Certificate of 
Insurance the nature and amount of such self- insured retentions or deductibles and provide 
satisfactory evidence of financial responsibility for such obligations.  All self-insured retentions or 
deductibles will be Vendor’s sole responsibility. 
 
Coverage(s) shall be maintained without interruption from the date of commencement of the Work 
until the date of completion and acceptance of the scope of work by the County or as specified in this 
solicitation, whichever is longer. 
 
The Vendor and/or its insurance carrier shall provide 30 days written notice to the County of policy 
cancellation or non-renewal on the part of the insurance carrier or the Vendor.  The Vendor shall also 
notify the County, in a like manner, within twenty-four (24) hours after receipt, of any notices of 
expiration, cancellation, non-renewal or material change in coverage or limits received by Vendor 
from its insurer and nothing contained herein shall relieve Vendor of this requirement to provide 
notice. In the event of a reduction in the aggregate limit of any policy to be provided by Vendor 

Agenda Page 86



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

61 

 

hereunder, Vendor shall immediately take steps to have the aggregate limit reinstated to the full 
extent permitted under such policy. 
 
 Should at any time the Vendor not maintain the insurance coverage(s) required herein, the County 
may terminate the Agreement or at its sole discretion shall be authorized to purchase such 
coverage(s) and charge the Vendor for such coverage(s) purchased.  If Vendor fails to reimburse the 
County for such costs within thirty (30) days after demand, the County has the right to offset these 
costs from any amount due Vendor under this Agreement or any other agreement between the 
County and Vendor. The County shall be under no obligation to purchase such insurance, nor shall it 
be responsible for the coverage(s) purchased or the insurance company or companies used.  The 
decision of the County to purchase such insurance coverage(s) shall in no way be construed to be a 
waiver of any of its rights under the Contract Documents. 
 
If the initial or any subsequently issued Certificate of Insurance expires prior to the completion of the 
scope of work, the Vendor shall furnish to the County renewal or replacement Certificate(s) of 
Insurance not later than ten (10) calendar days after the expiration date on the certificate.  Failure of 
the Vendor to provide the County with such renewal certificate(s) shall be considered justification for 
the County to terminate any and all contracts. 

 
2. Offer Extended to Other Governmental Entities 
 

Collier County encourages and agrees to the successful vendor extending the pricing, terms and 
conditions of this solicitation or resultant contract to other governmental entities at the discretion of 
the successful vendor. 

 
3. Additional Items and/or Services 
 

Additional items and / or services may be added to the resultant contract, or purchase order, in 
compliance with the Purchasing Policy. 

 
4. Use of Subcontractors 
 

Bidders on any service related project, including construction, must be qualified and directly 
responsible for 81% or more of the solicitation amount for said work. 

 
5. County’s Right to Inspect 
 

The County or its authorized Agent shall have the right to inspect the Vendor’s facilities/project site 
during and after each work assignment the Vendor is performing. 

 
6. Additional Terms and Conditions of Contract  
 

Collier County has developed standard contracts/agreements, approved by the Board of County 
Commissioners (BCC). The selected Vendor shall be required to sign a standard Collier County 
contract within twenty one (21) days of Notice of Selection for Award. 
 
The County reserves the right to include in any contract document such terms and conditions, as it 
deems necessary for the proper protection of the rights of Collier County. A sample copy of this 
contract is available upon request. The County will not be obligated to sign any contracts, 
maintenance and/or service agreements or other documents provided by the Vendor. 

 
7. Payment Method 
 

Agenda Page 87



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

62 

 

Payments are made in accordance with the Local Government Prompt Payment Act, Chapter 218, 
Florida Statutes. Vendor’s invoices must include: 

 Purchase Order Number 

 Description and quantities of the goods or services provided per instructions on the County’s 
purchase order or contract. 
 

Invoices shall be sent to:  
 

Board of County Commissioners 
Clerk’s Finance Department 
ATTN: Accounts Payable 
3299 Tamiami Trail E Ste 700 
Naples FL 34112 
 
Or emailed to:  bccapclerk@collierclerk.com.   

 
Collier County, in its sole discretion, will determine the method of payment for goods and/or services 
as part of this agreement. 

 
Payment methods include: 

 Traditional – payment by check, wire transfer or other cash equivalent. 

 Standard – payment by purchasing card.  Collier County’s Purchasing Card Program is supported 
by standard bank credit suppliers (i.e. VISA and MasterCard), and as such, is cognizant of the 
Rules for VISA Merchants and MasterCard Merchant Rules. 

 
The County may not accept any additional surcharges (credit card transaction fees) as a result of 
using the County’s credit card for transactions relating to this solicitation.  The County will entertain 
bids clearly stating pricing for standard payment methods. An additional separate discounted price 
for traditional payments may be provided at the initial bid submittal if it is clearly marked as an 
“Additional Cash Discount.” 
 
Upon execution of the Contract and completion of each month’s work, payment requests may be 
submitted to the Project Manager on a monthly basis by the Contractor for services rendered for that 
prior month.  Services beyond sixty (60) days from current monthly invoice will not be considered for 
payment without prior approval from the Project manager.    All invoices should be submitted within 
the fiscal year the work was performed.  (County's fiscal year is October 1 - September 30.)  
Invoices submitted after the close of the fiscal year will not be accepted (or processed for payment) 
unless specifically authorized by the Project Manager. 

 
Payments will be made for articles and/or services furnished, delivered, and accepted, upon receipt 
and approval of invoices submitted on the date of services or within six (6) months after completion 
of contract. Any untimely submission of invoices beyond the specified deadline period is subject to 
non-payment under the legal doctrine of “laches” as untimely submitted. Time shall be deemed of 
the essence with respect to the timely submission of invoices under this agreement. 
 
In instances where the successful contractor may owe debts (including, but not limited to taxes or 
other fees) to Collier County and the contractor has not satisfied nor made arrangement to satisfy 
these debts, the County reserves the right to off-set the amount owed to the County by applying the 
amount owed to the vendor or contractor for services performed of for materials delivered in 
association with a contract. 
 
Invoices shall not reflect sales tax.  After review and approval, the invoice will be transmitted to the 
Finance Division for payment.  Payment will be made upon receipt of proper invoice and in 

Agenda Page 88

mailto:bccapclerk@collierclerk.com


13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

63 

 

compliance with Chapter 218 Florida Statutes, otherwise known as the “Local Government Prompt 
Payment Act.”  Collier County reserves the right to withhold and/or reduce an appropriate amount of 
any payment for work not performed or for unsatisfactory performance of Contractual requirements. 

 
8. Environmental Health and Safety 

 
All Vendors and Sub vendors performing service for Collier County are required and shall comply 
with all Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA), State and County Safety and 
Occupational Health Standards and any other applicable rules and regulations.  Vendors and Sub 
vendors shall be responsible for the safety of their employees and any unsafe acts or conditions that 
may cause injury or damage to any persons or property within and around the work site. All firewall 
penetrations must be protected in order to meet Fire Codes.  
 
Collier County Government has authorized OSHA representatives to enter any Collier County facility, 
property and/or right-of-way for the purpose of inspection of any Vendor’s work operations. This 
provision is non-negotiable by any department and/or Vendor. 
 
All new electrical installations shall incorporate NFPA 70E Short Circuit Protective Device 
Coordination and Arc Flash Studies where relevant as determined by the engineer. 
 
All electrical installations shall be labeled with appropriate NFPA 70E arch flash boundary and PPE 
Protective labels.  

 
9. Licenses  
 

The Vendor is required to possess the correct Business Tax Receipt, professional license, and any 
other authorizations necessary to carry out and perform the work required by the project pursuant to 
all applicable Federal, State and Local Law, Statute, Ordinances, and rules and regulations of any 
kind. Additionally, copies of the required licenses must be submitted with the proposal 
response indicating that the entity proposing, as well as the team assigned to the County 
account, is properly licensed to perform the activities or work included in the contract 
documents. Failure on the part of any Vendor to submit the required documentation may be 
grounds to deem Vendor non-responsive. A  Vendor, with an office within Collier County is also 
required to have an occupational license.  
 
All State Certified contractors who may need to pull Collier County permits or call in inspections must 
complete a Collier County Contractor License registration form and submit the required fee.  After 
registering the license/registration will need to be renewed thereafter to remain “active” in Collier 
County.   
 
If you have questions regarding professional licenses contact the Contractor Licensing, Community 
Development and Environmental Services at (239) 252-2431, 252-2432 or 252-2909. Questions 
regarding required occupational licenses, please contact the Tax Collector’s Office at (239) 252-
2477. 

 
10. Principals/Collusion 
 

By submission of this Proposal the undersigned, as Vendor, does declare that the only person or 
persons interested in this Proposal as principal or principals is/are named therein and that no person 
other than therein mentioned has any interest in this Proposal or in the contract to be entered into; 
that this Proposal is made without connection with any person, company or parties making a 
Proposal, and that it is in all respects fair and in good faith without collusion or fraud. 

 

Agenda Page 89



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

64 

 

11. Relation of County 
 

It is the intent of the parties hereto that the Vendor shall be legally considered an independent 
Vendor, and that neither the Vendor nor their employees shall, under any circumstances, be 
considered employees or agents of the County, and that the County shall be at no time legally 
responsible for any negligence on the part of said Vendor, their employees or agents, resulting in 
either bodily or personal injury or property damage to any individual, firm, or corporation. 
 

12. Termination 
 

Should the Vendor be found to have failed to perform his services in a manner satisfactory to the 
County, the County may terminate this Agreement immediately for cause; further the County may 
terminate this Agreement for convenience with a thirty (30) day written notice. The County shall be 
sole judge of non-performance. 

 
13. Lobbying 

 
All firms are hereby placed on NOTICE that the Board of County Commissioners does not wish to be 
lobbied, either individually or collectively about a project for which a firm has submitted a Proposal. 

 
Firms and their agents are not to contact members of the County Commission for such purposes as 
meeting or introduction, luncheons, dinners, etc.  During the process, from Proposal closing to 
final Board approval, no firm or their agent shall contact any other employee of Collier County in 
reference to this Proposal, with the exception of the Purchasing Director or his designee(s). Failure to 
abide by this provision may serve as grounds for disqualification for award of this contract to the firm. 

 
14. Public Records Compliance 
 

The Vendor/Contractor agrees to comply with the Florida Public Records Law Chapter 119 (including 
specifically those contractual requirements at F.S. § 119.0701(2) (a)-(d) and (3)), ordinances, codes, 
rules, regulations and requirements of any governmental agencies. 

 
15. Certificate of Authority to Conduct Business in the State of Florida (Florida Statute 607.1501) 

 
In order to be considered for award, firms must be registered with the Florida Department of State 
Divisions of Corporations in accordance with the requirements of Florida Statute 607.1501 and 
provide a certificate of authority (www.sunbiz.org/search.html) prior to execution of a contract.  A 
copy of the document may be submitted with the solicitation response and the document number 
shall be identified. Firms who do not provide the certificate of authority at the time of response shall 
be required to provide same within five (5) days upon notification of selection for award. If the firm 
cannot provide the document within the referenced timeframe, the County reserves the right to award 
to another firm. 

 
16. Single Proposal 
 

Each Vendor must submit, with their proposal, the required forms included in this RFP. Only one 
proposal from a legal entity as a primary will be considered. A legal entity that submits a proposal as 
a primary or as part of a partnership or joint venture submitting as primary may not then act as a sub-
consultant to any other firm submitting under the same RFP. If a legal entity is not submitting as a 
primary or as part of a partnership or joint venture as a primary, that legal entity may act as a sub-
consultant to any other firm or firms submitting under the same RFP. All submittals in violation of this 
requirement will be deemed non-responsive and rejected from further consideration.  
 

Agenda Page 90

http://www.sunbiz.org/search.html


13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

65 

 

17. Survivability  
 
Purchase Orders: The Consultant/Contractor/Vendor agrees that any Purchase Order that extends 
beyond the expiration date of the original Solicitation 13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services will 
survive and remain subject to the terms and conditions of that Agreement until the completion or 
termination of this Purchase Order. 

 
18. Protest Procedures 
 

Any actual or prospective Vendor to a Request for Proposal, who is aggrieved with respect to the 
former, shall file a written protest with the Purchasing Director prior to the due date for acceptance of 
proposals.  All such protests must be filed with the Purchasing Director no later than 11:00 a.m. 
Collier County time on the final published date for the acceptance of the Request for Proposals. 
 
The Board of County Commissioners will make award of contract in public session.  Award 
recommendations will be posted outside the offices of the Purchasing Department on Wednesdays 
and Thursdays. Any actual or prospective respondent who desires to formally protest the 
recommended contract award must file a notice of intent to protest with the Purchasing Director 
within two (2) calendar days (excluding weekends and County holidays) of the date that the 
recommended award is posted.   
 
Upon filing of said notice, the protesting party will have five (5) days to file a formal protest and will be 
given instructions as to the form and content requirements of the formal protest.  A copy of the 
"Protest Policy" is available at the office of the Purchasing Director. 

 
19. Public Entity Crime 
 

A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a 
public entity crime may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or 
services to a public entity; may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity 
for the construction or repair of a public building or public work; may not submit bids, proposals, or 
replies on leases of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a 
contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity; and may not 
transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in s. 287.017 for 
CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months following the date of being placed on the convicted 
vendor list. 

 
20. Security and Background Checks 
 

If required, Vendor / Contractor / Proposer shall be responsible for the costs of providing background 
checks by the Collier County Facilities Management Department, and drug testing for all employees 
that shall provide services to the County under this Agreement.  This may include, but not be limited 
to, checking federal, state and local law enforcement records, including a state and FBI fingerprint 
check, credit reports, education, residence and employment verifications and other related records.  
Contractor shall be required to maintain records on each employee and make them available to the 
County for at least four (4) years. 

 
21. Conflict of Interest 
 

Vendor shall complete the Conflict of Interest Affidavit included as an attachment to this RFP 
document.  Disclosure of any potential or actual conflict of interest is subject to County staff review 
and does not in and of itself disqualify a firm from consideration.   These disclosures are intended to 
identify and or preclude conflict of interest situations during contract selection and execution. 

Agenda Page 91



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

66 

 

 
22. Prohibition of Gifts to County Employees 
 

No organization or individual shall offer or give, either directly or indirectly, any favor, gift, loan, fee, 
service or other item of value to any County employee, as set forth in Chapter 112, Part III, Florida 
Statutes, the current Collier County Ethics Ordinance and County Administrative Procedure 5311.  
Violation of this provision may result in one or more of the following consequences: a. Prohibition by 
the individual, firm, and/or any employee of the firm from contact with County staff for a specified 
period of time; b. Prohibition by the individual and/or firm from doing business with the County for a 
specified period of time, including but not limited to: submitting bids, RFP, and/or quotes; and, c. 
immediate termination of any contract held by the individual and/or firm for cause. 

 
23. Immigration Affidavit Certification 
 

Statutes and executive orders require employers to abide by the immigration laws of the United 
States and to employ only individuals who are eligible to work in the United States.  
 
The Employment Eligibility Verification System (E-Verify) operated by the Department of Homeland 
Security (DHS) in partnership with the Social Security Administration (SSA), provides an Internet-
based means of verifying employment eligibility of workers in the United States; it is not a substitute 
for any other employment eligibility verification requirements.  The program will be used for Collier 
County formal Invitations to Bid (ITB) and Request for Proposals (RFP) including professional 
services and construction services.  
 
Exceptions to the program: 

 Commodity based procurement where no services are provided. 

 Where the requirement for the affidavit is waived by the Board of County Commissioners 
 
Vendors / Bidders are required to enroll in the E-Verify program, and provide acceptable evidence of 
their enrollment, at the time of the submission of the vendor’s/bidder’s proposal.  Acceptable 
evidence consists of a copy of the properly completed E-Verify Company Profile page or a copy of 
the fully executed E-Verify Memorandum of Understanding for the company.  Vendors are also 
required to provide the Collier County Purchasing Department an executed affidavit certifying they 
shall comply with the E-Verify Program.  The affidavit is attached to the solicitation documents.  If the 
Bidder/Vendor does not comply with providing both the acceptable E-Verify evidence and the 
executed affidavit the bidder’s / vendor’s proposal may be deemed non-responsive.   
 
Additionally, vendors shall require all subcontracted vendors to use the E-Verify system for all 
purchases not covered under the “Exceptions to the program” clause above.  
 
For additional information regarding the Employment Eligibility Verification System (E-Verify) program 
visit the following website: http://www.dhs.gov/E-Verify.  It shall be the vendor’s responsibility to 
familiarize themselves with all rules and regulations governing this program. 
 
Vendor acknowledges, and without exception or stipulation, any firm(s) receiving an award shall be 
fully responsible for complying with the provisions of the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 
as located at 8 U.S.C. 1324, et seq. and regulations relating thereto, as either may be amended and 
with the provisions contained within this affidavit.  Failure by the awarded firm(s) to comply with the 
laws referenced herein or the provisions of this affidavit shall constitute a breach of the award 
agreement and the County shall have the discretion to unilaterally terminate said agreement 
immediately. 

 
 

Agenda Page 92

http://www.dhs.gov/E-Verify


13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

67 

 

24. Collier County Local Preference Policy 
 

Collier County provides an incentive to local business to enhance the opportunities of local 
businesses in the award of County contracts. In the evaluation of proposals, the County rewards 
Vendors for being a local business by granting a ten (10) points incentive in the evaluation criterion 
points.  
 
A “local business” is defined as a business that has a valid occupational license issued by either 
Collier or Lee County for a minimum of one (1) year prior to a Collier County bid or proposal 
submission that authorizes the business to provide the commodities or services to be purchased, and 
a physical business address located within the limits of Collier or Lee Counties from which the vendor 
operates or performs business. Post Office Boxes are not verifiable and shall not be used for the 
purpose of establishing said physical address. In addition to the foregoing, a vendor shall not be 
considered a "local business" unless it contributes to the economic development and well-being of 
either Collier or Lee County in a verifiable and measurable way. This may include, but not be limited 
to, the retention and expansion of employment opportunities, the support and increase to either 
Collier or Lee County's tax base, and residency of employees and principals of the business within 
Collier or Lee County. Vendors shall affirm in writing their compliance with the foregoing at the time of 
submitting their bid or proposal to be eligible for consideration as a "local business" under this 
section.  
 
The vendor must complete and submit with their proposal response the Affidavit for Claiming Status 
as a Local Business which is included as part of this solicitation.  
 
Failure on the part of a vendor to submit this Affidavit with their proposal response will 
preclude said Vendor from being considered for local preference under this solicitation.  
 
A vendor who misrepresents the Local Preference status of its firm in a proposal or bid submitted to 
the County will lose the privilege to claim Local Preference status for a period of up to one year. 

 
 

Agenda Page 93



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

68 

 

 
 

Attachment 1: Vendor’s Non-Response Statement 
 

The sole intent of the Collier County Purchasing Department is to issue solicitations that are clear, 
concise and openly competitive. Therefore, we are interested in ascertaining reasons for prospective 
Vendors not wishing to respond to this solicitation.  If your firm is not responding to this RFP, please 
indicate the reason(s) by checking the item(s) listed below and return this form via email or fax, noted on 

the cover page, or mail to Collier County Government, Purchasing Department, 3327 Tamiami 
Trail E, Naples, FL 34112. 

 
We are not responding to Solicitation #13-6148, Analytical Laboratory Service for the following 
reason(s): 
 

 Services requested not available through our company. 
 

 Our firm could not meet specifications/scope of work. 
 

 Specifications/scope of work not clearly understood or applicable (too vague, rigid, etc.) 
 

 Project is too small. 
 

 Insufficient time allowed for preparation of response. 
 

 Incorrect address used.  Please correct mailing address: 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 
       

  Other reason(s):_____________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
Name of Firm: 
 

________________________________________________________ 

Address: 
 

________________________________________________________ 

City, State, Zip: 
 

________________________________________________________ 

Telephone: 
 

________________________________________________________ 

Email:  
 

________________________________________________________ 

Representative Signature: 
 

________________________________________________________ 

Representative Name: 
 

_______________________________________ Date ____________ 

Agenda Page 94



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

69 

 

 
 
 

Attachment 2: Vendor Check List 
 

IMPORTANT:  THIS SHEET MUST BE SIGNED.  Please read carefully, sign in the spaces 
indicated and return with your Proposal.  Vendor should check off each of the following items as the 
necessary action is completed: 
 

 The Proposal has been signed. 
 

 All applicable forms have been signed and included, along with licenses to complete the 
requirements of the project. 

 
 Any addenda have been signed and included.  

 
 The mailing envelope has been addressed to: 
  Collier County Government 

Purchasing Department 
3327 Tamiami Trail E 
Naples FL 34112 

  Attn: Evelyn Colón, Procurement Strategist 
 

 The mailing envelope must be sealed and marked with Solicitation #13-6148, Analytical 
Laboratory Services and November 7th, 2013. 

 
 The Proposal will be mailed or delivered in time to be received no later than the specified due date 

and time.  (Otherwise Proposal cannot be considered.) 
 

ALL COURIER-DELIVERED PROPOSALS MUST HAVE THE RFP NUMBER AND TITLE ON THE 
OUTSIDE OF THE COURIER PACKET. 

 
Name of Firm: 
 

Florida-Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc. 
________________________________________________________ 

Address: 
 

1460 W. McNab Road 
________________________________________________________ 

City, State, Zip: 
 

Ft. Lauderdale, Florida 33309 
________________________________________________________ 

Telephone: 
 

954-978-6400 
________________________________________________________ 

Email:  
 

kkutil@flenviro.com or lajohnson1@aol.com 
________________________________________________________ 

Representative Signature: 
 

________________________________________________________ 

Representative Name: 
 

Lyle A. Johnson 
_____________________________________ Date ______________ 

Agenda Page 95

mailto:kkutil@flenviro.com
mailto:lajohnson1@aol.com


13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

70 

 

 
 

Attachment 3: Conflict of Interest Affidavit 
 

 
By the signature below, the firm (employees, officers and/or agents) certifies, and hereby discloses, that, 
to the best of their knowledge and belief, all relevant facts concerning past, present, or currently planned 
interest or activity (financial, contractual, organizational, or otherwise) which relates to the proposed 
work; and bear on whether the firm (employees, officers and/or agents) has a possible conflict have been 
fully disclosed.  
 
Additionally, the firm (employees, officers and/or agents) agrees to immediately notify in writing the 
Purchasing/General Services Director, or designee, if any actual or potential conflict of interest arises 
during the contract and/or project duration. 
 
Firm: 
 

Florida-Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc. 
_____________________________________________________________ 

Signature and Date: 
 

_____________________________________________________________ 

Print Name 
 

Lyle A. Johnson 
_____________________________________________________________ 

Title of Signatory 
 

President 
_____________________________________________________________ 

 
 
State of 
 

Florida 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

County of 
 

Broward 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this ____________ day of __________________, 
20___________,  
by _______________________________________________, who is personally known to me to be the 
________________________________________ for the Firm, OR who produced the following 
identification ________________________________________. 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires ___________________________________________ 
 
 

Agenda Page 96



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

71 

 

  
 

Attachment 4: Vendor Declaration Statement 
 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
Collier County Government Complex 
Naples, Florida  34112 
 
 
RE:  Solicitation: #13-6148, Analytical Laboratory Services  
 
Dear Commissioners: 
 
The undersigned, as Vendor declares that this proposal is made without connection or arrangement with 
any other person and this proposal is in every respect fair and made in good faith, without collusion or 
fraud. 
 
 
The Vendor agrees, if this proposal is accepted, to execute a Collier County document for the purpose of 
establishing a formal contractual relationship between the firm and Collier County, for the performance of 
all requirements to which the proposal pertains.  The Vendor states that the proposal is based upon the 
proposal documents listed by Solicitation: #13-6148, Analytical Laboratory Services. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Proposal Continued on Next Page) 

Agenda Page 97



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

72 

 

PROPOSAL CONTINUED 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, WE have hereunto subscribed our names on this _____ day of _____________, 20      
in the County of _______________, in the State of _____________. 
 
Firm’s Legal Name: Florida-Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc. 

 
Address: 1460 W. McNab Road 

 
City, State, Zip Code: Ft. Lauderdale, Florida 33309 

 
Florida Certificate of 
Authority Document Number: 

E86006 (NELAP) / P05000164156 

Federal Tax Identification 
Number 

20-3973182 

CCR # or CAGE Code 4RUH7 

Telephone: 954-978-6400 

 
FAX: 954-978-2233 

 
Signature by: 
(Typed and written) 

Lyle A. Johnson 

 
Title: President 

 

Additional Contact Information 
Send payments to: 
(required if different from above) 

Same As Above 

Company name used as payee 
Contact name: Ruth Mckinley 

 
Title: A/R & Invoicing Supervisor 

 
Address: 1460 W. McNab Road 

 
City, State, ZIP Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33309 

 
Telephone: 954=978-6400 

 
FAX: 954-978-2233 

 
Email: r.mckinley@flenviro.com 

 
Office servicing Collier 
County to place orders 
(required if different from above) 

Same As Above 

 

Contact name: Katharine A. Kutil 

 
Title: Director of Sales & Marketing 

 
Address: 1460 W. McNab Road 

 
City, State, ZIP Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33309 

 
Telephone: 954-978-6400________________ 

 
Email _kkutil@flenviro.com_____________ 

 

Agenda Page 98



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

73 

 

 
 

Attachment 5: Affidavit for Claiming Status as a Local Business 
 
Solicitation: #13-6148, Analytical Laboratory Services (Check Appropriate Boxes Below) 
 
State of Florida (Select County if Vendor is described as a Local Business 

 Collier County 
 Lee County 

 
Vendor affirms that it is a local business as defined by the Purchasing Policy of the Collier County Board of County 
Commissioners and the Regulations Thereto.  As defined in Section XI of the Collier County Purchasing Policy; 
 
A “local business” is defined as a business that has a valid occupational license issued by either Collier or Lee 
County for a minimum of one (1) year prior to a Collier County bid or proposal submission that authorizes the 
business to provide the commodities or services to be purchased, and a physical business address located within 
the limits of Collier or Lee Counties from which the vendor operates or performs business. Post Office Boxes are 
not verifiable and shall not be used for the purpose of establishing said physical address. In addition to the 
foregoing, a vendor shall not be considered a "local business" unless it contributes to the economic development 
and well-being of either Collier or Lee County in a verifiable and measurable way. This may include, but not be 
limited to, the retention and expansion of employment opportunities, the support and increase to either Collier or 
Lee County's tax base, and residency of employees and principals of the business within Collier or Lee County. 
Vendors shall affirm in writing their compliance with the foregoing at the time of submitting their bid or proposal to 
be eligible for consideration as a "local business" under this section.  
 
Vendor must complete the following information: 
 
Year Business Established in Collier County or  Lee County: ________  
 
Number of Employees (Including Owner(s) or Corporate Officers):_________  
 
Number of Employees Living in  Collier County or  Lee (Including Owner(s) or Corporate Officers):_________  
 
If requested by the County, vendor will be required to provide documentation substantiating the information given in 
this affidavit. Failure to do so will result in vendor’s submission being deemed not applicable. 
 
Vendor Name: _________________________________________ 
 

Date: ________________________ 

Collier or Lee County Address: ___________________________________________________________ 
Signature: ____________________________________________ Title: ________________________ 

 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

 COLLIER COUNTY    LEE COUNTY  

Sworn to and Subscribed Before Me, a Notary Public, for the above State and County, on this __________ Day of 
______________, 20_____.  

_____________________________________________ 

                               Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: ________________________ 

(AFFIX OFFICIAL SEAL) 

Agenda Page 99



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

74 

 

 
 

Attachment 6: Immigration Affidavit Certification 
 

Solicitation: #13-6148, Analytical Laboratory Services 
  

This Affidavit is required and should be signed, notarized by an authorized principal of the firm and submitted with 

formal Invitations to Bid (ITB’s) and Request for Proposals (RFP) submittals.  Further, Vendors / Bidders are 
required to enroll in the E-Verify program, and provide acceptable evidence of their enrollment, at the 
time of the submission of the vendor’s/bidder’s proposal.  Acceptable evidence consists of a copy of the 
properly completed E-Verify Company Profile page or a copy of the fully executed E-Verify Memorandum 
of Understanding for the company.  Failure to include this Affidavit and acceptable evidence of enrollment 
in the E-Verify program, may deem the Vendor / Bidder’s proposal as non-responsive.  
Collier County will not intentionally award County contracts to any vendor who knowingly employs unauthorized 
alien workers, constituting a violation of the employment provision  contained in 8 U.S.C. Section 1324 a(e) Section 
274A(e) of the Immigration and Nationality Act (“INA”). 
 
Collier County may consider the employment by any vendor of unauthorized aliens a violation of Section 274A (e) 
of the INA.  Such Violation by the recipient of the Employment Provisions contained in Section 274A (e) of the INA 
shall be grounds for unilateral termination of the contract by Collier County. 
 
Vendor attests that they are fully compliant with all applicable immigration laws (specifically to the 1986 Immigration 
Act and subsequent Amendment(s)) and agrees to comply with the provisions of the Memorandum of 
Understanding with E-Verify and to provide proof of enrollment in The Employment Eligibility Verification System 
(E-Verify), operated by the Department of Homeland Security in partnership with the Social Security Administration 
at the time of submission of the Vendor’s / Bidder’s proposal.  
  

Company Name Florida-Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc. 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Print Name Lyle A. Johnson 

 

Title President 

Signature  

 

Date _______________________ 

 
State of ___________________ 
 
County of _________________ 
 
The foregoing instrument was signed and acknowledged before me this ______day of ________________, 
20___, by  
_______________________________ who has produced _____________________________ as identification. 
          (Print or Type Name)           (Type of Identification and Number)                                   
 
_____________________________________ 
Notary Public Signature 
_____________________________________ 
Printed Name of Notary Public 
_____________________________________ 
Notary Commission Number/Expiration                        
 
The signee of this Affidavit guarantees, as evidenced by the sworn affidavit required herein, the truth and accuracy 
of this affidavit to interrogatories hereinafter made. 

Agenda Page 100



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

75 

 

 

 
 

Attachment 7: Vendor Substitute W – 9 

Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification 
 

In accordance with the Internal Revenue Service regulations, Collier County is required to collect the following 
information for tax reporting purposes from individuals and companies who do business with the County (including 
social  security  numbers  if  used  by  the  individual  or  company  for  tax  reporting  purposes).  Florida Statute 
119.071(5) require that the county notify you in writing of the reason for collecting this information, which will be 
used for no other purpose than herein stated.  Please complete all information that applies to your business and 
return with your quote or proposal.   

  

1.   General Information (provide all information) 
 

Taxpayer Name ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
(as shown on income tax return) 
Business Name ___________________________________________________________________________________ 

(if different from taxpayer name) 

Address ____________________________________ City _______________________________________________ 
 

State ______________________________________ Zip ________________________________________________
 

Telephone __________________ FAX ______________________ Email __________________________________ 
 

 

Order Information  
 

Address ___________________________________ 

Remit / Payment Information  
 
Address ____________________________________________ 

 

City __________  
 

State ________   Zip ___________ 
 

City _____________
 

State _________ Zip ______________

FAX ______________________________________ 

 Email _____________________________________ 

FAX ______________________________________________ 

Email _____________________________________________
 
 

2.   Company Status (check only one) 
 

  Individual / Sole Proprietor   Corporation   Partnership 

  Tax Exempt (Federal income tax-exempt entity 
under Internal Revenue Service guidelines IRC 
501 (c) 3) 

   Limited Liability Company 

 
                 Enter the tax classification 

(D = Disregarded Entity, C = Corporation, P = Partnership) 
 
3.   Taxpayer Identification Number (for tax reporting purposes only) 

 
Federal Tax Identification Number (TIN) _______________________________________________________________ 

 

(Vendors who do not have a TIN, will be required to provide a social security number prior to an award of the contract.) 

 

4.   Sign and Date Form 
Certification: Under penalties of perjury, I certify that the information shown on this form is correct to my knowledge. 

 
Signature ___________________________________________________________ 

 

Date _________________________________ 

Title _______________________________________________________________ 

 

Phone Number ________________________ 

Agenda Page 101



 
 

Attachment 8: Insurance and Bonding Requirements 
 
Insurance / Bond Type Required Limits 
1.  Worker’s 

Compensation  
Statutory Limits of Florida Statutes, Chapter 440 and all Federal Government 
Statutory Limits and Requirements 
 

2.  Employer’s Liability  
 

$1,000,000 single limit per occurrence 
 

3.  Commercial General 
Liability (Occurrence Form) 
patterned after the current 
ISO form 

Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
 
$1,000,000 single limit per occurrence, $2,000,000 aggregate for Bodily Injury 
Liability and Property Damage Liability.  This shall include Premises and 
Operations; Independent Contractors; Products and Completed Operations 
and Contractual Liability  
 

4.  Indemnification  To the maximum extent permitted by Florida law, the 
Contractor/Vendor/Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless Collier 
County, its officers and employees from any and all liabilities, damages, 
losses and costs, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees and 
paralegals’ fees, to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness, or 
intentionally wrongful conduct of the Contractor/Vendor/Consultant or anyone 
employed or utilized by the Contractor/Vendor/Consultant in the performance 
of this Agreement.  This indemnification obligation shall not be construed to 
negate, abridge or reduce any other rights or remedies which otherwise may 
be available to an indemnified party or person described in this paragraph. 
This section does not pertain to any incident arising from the sole negligence 
of Collier County. 
 

4. X Automobile Liability $1,000,000 Each Occurrence; Bodily Injury & Property Damage, 
Owned/Non-owned/Hired; Automobile Included  
 

5.  Other insurance as 
noted: 

 
 
 

 Watercraft                                                      $ __________ Per Occurrence 
 

 United States Longshoreman's and Harborworker's Act coverage shall be 
maintained where applicable to the completion of the work.   
                                                                           $ __________ Per Occurrence 
 
  Maritime Coverage (Jones Act) shall be maintained where applicable to 
the completion of the work.  
                                                                           $ __________ Per Occurrence 
 

 Aircraft Liability coverage shall be carried in limits of not less than 
$5,000,000 each occurrence if applicable to the completion of the Services 
under this Agreement. 
                                                                           $ __________ Per Occurrence 
 

 Pollution                                                        $ __________ Per Occurrence  
     
XProfessional Liability                                      $1,000,000 Per Occurrence 

 $  500,000 each claim and in the aggregate 

 $1,000,000 each claim and in the aggregate 

 $2,000,000 each claim and in the aggregate 
 

 Professional Liability                                      $__________ per claim and in  

Agenda Page 102



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

77 

 

                                                                                                   the aggregate 

 $1,000,000 per claim and in the aggregate 

 $2,000,000 per claim and in the aggregate 
 
 

 Valuable Papers Insurance                            $__________ Per Occurrence 
 

6.  Bid bond  
 

Shall be submitted with proposal response in the form of certified funds, 
cashiers’ check or an irrevocable letter of credit, a cash bond posted with the 
County Clerk, or proposal bond in a sum equal to 5% of the cost proposal. All 
checks shall be made payable to the Collier County Board of County 
Commissioners on a bank or trust company located in the State of Florida and 
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

7.  Performance and 
Payment Bonds 

For projects in excess of $200,000, bonds shall be submitted with the 
executed contract by Proposers receiving award, and written for 100% of the 
Contract award amount, the cost borne by the Proposer receiving an award. 
The Performance and Payment Bonds shall be underwritten by a surety 
authorized to do business in the State of Florida and otherwise acceptable to 
Owner; provided, however, the surety shall be rated as “A-“ or better as to 
general policy holders rating and Class V or higher rating as to financial size 
category and the amount required shall not exceed 5% of the reported policy 
holders’ surplus, all as reported in the most current Best Key Rating Guide, 
published by A.M. Best Company, Inc. of 75 Fulton Street, New York, New 
York 10038.   

 
8.   Vendor shall ensure that all subcontractors comply with the same insurance requirements that he is 

required to meet.  The same Vendor shall provide County with certificates of insurance meeting the 
required insurance provisions. 

 
9.   Collier County must be named as "ADDITIONAL INSURED" on the Insurance Certificate for 

Commercial General Liability where required. 
 
10.   The Certificate Holder shall be named as Collier County Board of County Commissioners, OR, Board 

of County Commissioners in Collier County, OR Collier County Government, OR Collier County.  The 
Certificates of Insurance must state the Contract Number, or Project Number, or specific Project 
description, or must read:  For any and all work performed on behalf of Collier County. 

 
11.   Thirty (30) Days Cancellation Notice required. 
 

Vendor’s Insurance Statement 
 

We understand the insurance requirements of these specifications and that the evidence of insurability may be required 
within five (5) days of the award of this solicitation. 
 
Name of Firm 
 

Florida-Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc. Date ____________________________ 

Vendor Signature 
 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Print Name 
 

Lyle A. Johnson 

Insurance Agency 
 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Agent Name 
 

_______________________________________ Telephone Number _________________ 

 

Agenda Page 103



13-6148 Analytical Laboratory Services 

78 

 

 
Attachment 9: Reference Questionnaire 

 

Solicitation: #13-6148, Analytical Laboratory Services 
 

Reference Questionnaire for: 
Florida-Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc.    

     (Name of Company Requesting Reference Information) 
 Katharine A. Kutil ~ Director of Sales & Marketing 

     (Name of Individuals Requesting Reference Information) 
 

Name:  Adrian Mocanu 
           (Evaluator completing reference questionnaire) 
 

Company:  City of Deerfield Beach           
 (Evaluator’s Company completing reference) 
 

Email: a_mocanu1@yahoo.com FAX:  (954) 480-4348 Telephone:  (954) 480-4370 

 
Collier County is implementing a process that collects reference information on firms and their key personnel to be used 
in the selection of firms to perform this project.  The Name of the Company listed in the Subject above has listed you as 
a client for which they have previously performed work.  Please complete the survey. Please rate each criteria to the 
best of your knowledge on a scale of 1 to 10, with 10 representing that you were very satisifed (and would hire the 
firm/individual again) and 1 representing that you were very unsatisfied (and would never hire the firm/indivdiual again).  
If you do not have sufficient knowledge of past performance in a particular area, leave it blank and the item or form will 
be scored “0.” 
 
Project Description:  ___________________________ 
 

Completion Date: _____________________________ 

Project Budget: _______________________________ 
 

Project Number of Days: _______________________ 

Change Orders - Dollars Added : _________________ 
 

 Change Orders - Days Added: __________________ 

Item Citeria Score 

1 Ability to manage the project costs (minimize change orders to scope). 
 

      

2 Ability to maintain project schedule (complete on-time or early). 
 

      

3 Quality of work. 
 

      

4 Quality of consultative advice provided on the project. 
 

      

5 Professionalism and ability to manage personnel. 
 

      

6 Close out project process (final product turnover; invoices; manuals or going 
forward documentation, etc.) 
 

      

7 Ability to verbally communicate and document information clearly and succinctly. 
 

      

8 Abiltity to manage risks and unexpected project circumstances. 
 

      

9 Ability to follow County policies, procedures, rules, regulations, etc. 
 

      

10 Overall comfort level with hiring the company in the future (customer satisfaction). 
 

      

TOTAL SCORE OF ALL ITEMS  

 
Please FAX this completed survey to: _______________________________________  By ________________ 

Agenda Page 104



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fifth Order of Business 

  

Agenda Page 105



Agenda Page 106



Agenda Page 107



05/28/15

Purchase Order #
2015-00000243
Date:

City of Dania Beach
Purchasing Division

Phone: 954-924-6800
Tax Exempt # 85-8012740099C-9

Vendor 10459 FLORIDA TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS, LLC 
FLORIDA TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS, LLC
10327 TRIVERO TERRACE
BOYNTON BEACH, FL 33437

Deliver by
Jose Urtecho

1201 Stirling Rd.
DANIA BEACH, FL 33004

1201 Stirling Rd.
DANIA BEACH, FL 33004

Originated by

Ship toBill to

TERMS:  Freight - FOB Destination      Invoices - Paid within 30 days of receipt

jbarton@fltechinc.comEmail

Quantity U/M Description Unit Cost Total Cost

1.0000 EA Information Technology - General Consulting $2,500.0000 $2,500.00

GIS support for water sewer maps.Item Description

G/L Account Project Amount Percent
401-33-02-533-31-30 (Prof. Services Engineering) 100.00%

Total Purchase Amount $2,500.00

Special Instructions

Please reference Purchase Order Number on all invoices, statements, and correspondence
ALL PURCHASE ORDERS FOR SERVICES WILL EXPIRE ON SEPTEMBER 30th UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED

Authorized Signature:

Page 1 of 1
Agenda Page 108



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sixth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 109



Agenda Page 110



Agenda Page 111



Agenda Page 112



Agenda Page 113



Agenda Page 114



Agenda Page 115



Agenda Page 116



Agenda Page 117



Agenda Page 118



Agenda Page 119



Agenda Page 120



Agenda Page 121



Agenda Page 122



Agenda Page 123



Agenda Page 124



Agenda Page 125



Agenda Page 126



Agenda Page 127



Agenda Page 128



Agenda Page 129



Agenda Page 130



Agenda Page 131



Agenda Page 132



Agenda Page 133



Agenda Page 134



Agenda Page 135



Agenda Page 136



Agenda Page 137



Agenda Page 138



Agenda Page 139



Agenda Page 140



Agenda Page 141



Agenda Page 142



Agenda Page 143



Agenda Page 144



Agenda Page 145



Agenda Page 146



Agenda Page 147



Agenda Page 148



Agenda Page 149



Agenda Page 150



Agenda Page 151



Agenda Page 152



Agenda Page 153



Agenda Page 154



Agenda Page 155



Agenda Page 156



Agenda Page 157



Agenda Page 158



Agenda Page 159



Agenda Page 160



Agenda Page 161



Agenda Page 162



Agenda Page 163



Agenda Page 164



Agenda Page 165



Agenda Page 166



Agenda Page 167



Agenda Page 168



Agenda Page 169



Agenda Page 170



Agenda Page 171



Agenda Page 172



Agenda Page 173



Agenda Page 174



Agenda Page 175



Agenda Page 176



Agenda Page 177



Agenda Page 178



Agenda Page 179



Agenda Page 180



Agenda Page 181



Agenda Page 182



Agenda Page 183



Agenda Page 184



Agenda Page 185



Agenda Page 186



Agenda Page 187



Agenda Page 188



Agenda Page 189



Agenda Page 190



Agenda Page 191



Agenda Page 192



Agenda Page 193



Agenda Page 194



Agenda Page 195



Agenda Page 196



Agenda Page 197



Agenda Page 198



Agenda Page 199



Agenda Page 200



Agenda Page 201



Agenda Page 202



Agenda Page 203



Agenda Page 204



Agenda Page 205



Agenda Page 206



Agenda Page 207



Agenda Page 208



Agenda Page 209



Agenda Page 210



Agenda Page 211



Agenda Page 212



Agenda Page 213



Agenda Page 214



Agenda Page 215



Agenda Page 216



Agenda Page 217



Agenda Page 218



Agenda Page 219



Agenda Page 220



Agenda Page 221



Agenda Page 222



Agenda Page 223



Agenda Page 224



Agenda Page 225



Agenda Page 226



Agenda Page 227



Agenda Page 228



Agenda Page 229



Agenda Page 230



Agenda Page 231



Agenda Page 232



Agenda Page 233



Agenda Page 234



Agenda Page 235



Agenda Page 236



Agenda Page 237



Agenda Page 238



Agenda Page 239



Agenda Page 240



Agenda Page 241



Agenda Page 242



Agenda Page 243



Agenda Page 244



Agenda Page 245



Agenda Page 246



Agenda Page 247



Agenda Page 248



Agenda Page 249



Agenda Page 250



Agenda Page 251



Agenda Page 252



Agenda Page 253



Agenda Page 254



Agenda Page 255



Agenda Page 256



Agenda Page 257



Agenda Page 258



Agenda Page 259



Agenda Page 260



Agenda Page 261



Agenda Page 262



Agenda Page 263



Agenda Page 264



Agenda Page 265



Agenda Page 266



Agenda Page 267



Agenda Page 268



Agenda Page 269



Agenda Page 270



Agenda Page 271



Agenda Page 272



Agenda Page 273



Agenda Page 274



Agenda Page 275



Agenda Page 276



Agenda Page 277



Agenda Page 278



Agenda Page 279



Agenda Page 280



Agenda Page 281



Agenda Page 282



Agenda Page 283



Agenda Page 284



Agenda Page 285



Agenda Page 286



Agenda Page 287



Agenda Page 288



Agenda Page 289



Agenda Page 290



Agenda Page 291



Agenda Page 292



Agenda Page 293



Agenda Page 294



Agenda Page 295



Agenda Page 296



Agenda Page 297



Agenda Page 298



Agenda Page 299



Agenda Page 300



Agenda Page 301



Agenda Page 302



Agenda Page 303



Agenda Page 304



Agenda Page 305



Agenda Page 306



Agenda Page 307



Agenda Page 308



Agenda Page 309



Agenda Page 310



Agenda Page 311



Agenda Page 312



Agenda Page 313



Agenda Page 314



Agenda Page 315



Agenda Page 316



Agenda Page 317



Agenda Page 318



Agenda Page 319



Agenda Page 320



Agenda Page 321



Agenda Page 322



Agenda Page 323



Agenda Page 324



Agenda Page 325



Agenda Page 326



Agenda Page 327



Agenda Page 328



Agenda Page 329



Agenda Page 330



Agenda Page 331



Agenda Page 332



Agenda Page 333



Agenda Page 334



Agenda Page 335



Agenda Page 336



Agenda Page 337



Agenda Page 338



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Seventh Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 339



BID TITLE AQUATIC HERBICIDES OPEN BY RANDY FREDERICK

OPEN DATE Sept. 10, 2015 TABULATED BY SHAWN FRANKENHAUSER

OPEN TIME 10:00 AM VERIFIED BY RANDY FREDERICK

BUYER C.S.I.D.

Tabulation sheet indicates unit price per gallon or per pound

Chemicals 
Container 

Size

WINFIELD 

SOLUTIONS
HELENA RED RIVER UNIVAR

CROP PROD. 

SERVICES

Glyphosate 2.1/2 Gals.

Round Up 

Custom    

16.00

Round Up 

Custom     

16.95

Aqua Neat 

14.88

Rodeo        

20.88

Aqua Neat     

15.26

Diquat 2 1/2  Gals.
Tribune    

39.50

Tribune     

39.69

Diquat SP2 L 

44.48

Agency       

79.00

Diquat SP2 L 

39.58

Cutrine Plus 2 1/2 Gals. $22.00 $15.15
Cutrine FL 909  

15.65
No bid $14.98

Induce 2 1/2 Gals.
Activate Plus  

14.00

Inlet                 

13.08

Elite Platnum 

15.50
No bid

Activate 90 

14.92

Hydrothol 191 2 1/2 Gals. $63.74 63.28 No bid No bid $65.48 

Aquathol K 2 1/2 Gals. $63.00 60.98 No Bid No bid $63.04

Aquathol S K 20 lbs Bag $16.00 15.71 No Bid No bid $16.18

2, 4-D 2 1/2 Gals. $14.00
DMA 4 IVM 

14.00

Weed Destroy 

AM-40 13.48
No bid $13.60 

Winfield Solutions Helena Chemical Co. Red River Specialties Crop Prod. Services

1-407-884-0111   FAX FryeM@Helenachemical.com tina.bond@rrsi.com Paul.Mason@CPSGU.com

1-407-466-8360   TEL 1-352-567-2083Fax 1-407-808-2035 1-321-226-0213 Fax

Stephanie Walters 1-352-521-3538 Tina Bond 1-407-718-9154

swalters@landolakes.com Misti Frye 1-863-439-1569 Warehouse

139.3 includes 

1# acidifier per 

5# Clipper

Failure to file within the time prescribed in Section 120.57(3), 

Florida Statutes, shall consitute a wavier of proceedings 

under Chapter 120, Florida Statutes. All bids accepted by the 

District are subject to the District's terms and conditions. Any 

and all terms and conditions submitted by bidders will be 

rejected and shall have no force and/or effect.

Clipper 5 lbs Pail 139.3 139.3 139.3 No bid

Agenda Page 340

mailto:FryeM@Helenachemical.com
mailto:tina.bond@rrsi.com
mailto:Paul.Mason@CPSGU.com


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Eighth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 341



Agenda Page 342



Agenda Page 343



Agenda Page 344



Agenda Page 345



Agenda Page 346



Agenda Page 347



Agenda Page 348



Agenda Page 349



Agenda Page 350



Agenda Page 351



Agenda Page 352



Agenda Page 353



Agenda Page 354



Agenda Page 355



Agenda Page 356



Agenda Page 357



Agenda Page 358



Agenda Page 359



Agenda Page 360



Agenda Page 361



Agenda Page 362



Agenda Page 363



Agenda Page 364



Agenda Page 365



Agenda Page 366



RESOLUTION 2015-11 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ADOPTING THE 

WATER AND SEWER BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016 
 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 2004-469, Laws of Florida, recodifying Chapters 70-617 and 89-419, Laws of 

Florida, authorizes the Coral Springs Improvement District (“District”) to construct, maintain, and operate a 

water treatment and wastewater treatment and collection system to serve the residents of the Coral Springs 

Improvement District; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to said authority, the District has constructed a water and wastewater facility 

from the proceeds of a General Obligation, Water and Sewer Revenue Bond Issue; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of the Bond Resolution for said issue, the Board of 

Supervisors caused a budget to be prepared for the operation and maintenance of said system for Fiscal Year 

2016, which by reference is made a part hereof; and 

 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing concerning the proposed budget was duly published as required 

by law; and 

 WHEREAS, the District Board of Supervisors (“Board”) has conducted said public hearing in 

accordance with applicable law. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 
 

 Section 1.  The recitals above are true and correct and are hereby made a part of this Resolution. 

 Section 2.  The District Water and Sewer System Operating and Maintenance Budget (“Budget”), 

showing expected revenues of $ ; debt service requirement of $ ;expected 

operation and maintenance expenses of $ ; such that said Budget shows a surplus of $ 

 prior to subordinate lien debt expense of $   ; and the operation and maintenance 

thereof can continue through Fiscal Year 2016; said Budget is hereby adopted and certified by the Board of 

Supervisors of the Coral Springs Improvement District. 

 Section 3.  A verified copy of the Budget shall be attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A and shall 

be included as part of the District’s “Official Record of Proceedings.” 

  

 Section 4.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption.  
 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of the Coral Springs Improvement District, 

this 21st day of September, 2015. 

 

 

 
 

 

    

Kenneth Cassel  Martin Shank 

Assistant Secretary  President 

Agenda Page 367



Exhibit A 

 

FY 2016 Water and Sewer Budget 

 

Agenda Page 368



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ninth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 369



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9A. 
  

Agenda Page 370



RESOLUTION 2015-12 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 

THE CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

DESIGNATING A RECORDS MANAGEMENT LIAISON 

OFFICER ADOPTING A RECORDS RETENTION 

SCHEDULE 
 

WHEREAS, Florida Statutes 257.36 creates the Records and Information Management Program 
within the State Division of Library Services, which is responsible for records management; 
 

WHEREAS, the Coral Springs Improvement District is a local government agency subject to the 
requirement of Florida Statutes 257.36; 
 

WHEREAS, Florida Statutes 257.36 requires the Board of Supervisors to designate a Records 
Management Liaison Officer; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District desires for the Records Management Liaison Officer to be an employee 
of the District Manager; and  
 

WHEREAS, the District desires to authorize the District’s records custodian to appoint a 
Records Management Liaison Officer, which may or may not be the District’s records custodian; 
 

WHEREAS, Florida Statutes 257.36 requires the District to establish and maintain an active and 
continuing program for the economical and efficient management of records; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
1. The Board designates Severn Trent Services as the District’s Records Management 

Liaison Officer for the purposes of Florida Statutes 257.36. 
 
2. The Board adopts the State of Florida General Records Schedule GS1-SL, as amended 

from time to time, as its records retention schedule, to establish and maintain an active 
and continuing program for the economical and efficient management of records.  

 
3. This authorization shall be continuing in nature until revoked by the Coral Springs 

Improvement District. 
 

Adopted by the Board of Supervisors this 21st day of September, 2015. 

 
 
 
   
 Martin Shank  
 President  
Copy to: 
Division of Library and Information  
Services 
Florida Department of State    
R.A. Gray Building  Kenneth Cassel 
500 South Bronough Street Assistant Secretary  
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0250 
  

 

Agenda Page 371



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9B. 
  

Agenda Page 372



Globaltech, Inc. 

CSID Engineer’s Report 

September 12, 2015 

 

PROJECTS UNDER CONTRACT 

 

WA # 88 WWTP Influent Screen - In closeout   

 Screen installed and in operation.   

 

WA # 98 Storm Water Site Development Criteria – In progress 
 Incorporating revision accepted by Board from workshop.   

 
WA # 99 DIW Effluent Pumps 2 and 3 modifications – In progress 

 Parts for Pump P404 have been received by AME.  Pump has been assembled and is undergoing final 

balancing. As soon as AME is ready, motor will be pick up from CSID to be coupled with pump. 

 

WA #101 Well 4R and 7R Construction – In progress 

 Well 7R (new well).  FPL has installed meter and connected new wire.  Well has power. Fenced has been 

installed.  Bacteriological testing has begun.  Once testing results are available, clearance shall be 

submitted to Broward County Health Department.   

 Well 4R (new well).  Well concrete pad has been poured.  Well piping has been connected and control 

panel has been set.   

 Wells 4 and 7 (old well).  Demolition of well 7 is complete and area is being restored.  Well 4 abandonment 

and demolition to begin with completion of Well 7R.  

 
WA #102 Canal Bank Restoration Construction – In progress.   

 Sites1 and 2 completed.   

 Final cleanup and demobilization in progress.   

 Evaluating alternatives for Site 1A remediation.   

 
WA #105 – Wastewater Treatment Plant Effluent Pump Station Electrical – In progress 

 Study completed.  Report submitted to staff for review.   

 
WA #106 – Lime Plant Demolition Design – In progress 

 Design in progress. 

 
WA #107 – WTP Four-Log BCHD Submittal – In agency review 

 Submit application for Four-Log Virus Treatment on behalf of CSID to BCHD.  Awaiting response from 

BCHD.   

 
PROJECTS PENDING 

 WA #108 – HSPs 5 and 6 pump and motor installation.  (WA in preparation) 

 WA #109 – Degasifier cleaning pump (WA in preparation) 

Agenda Page 373



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9C. 
  

Agenda Page 374



Coral Springs Improvement District

Utility Billing Work Orders

2015 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec TOTAL

Customer Inquiry requiring work order 40 27 33 33 43 43 40 37 296

Mis-Reads 4 2 0 0 0 1 0 3 10

Meter Calibration Tests 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

2014 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec TOTAL

Customer Inquiry requiring work order 33 43 45 60 50 73 45 52 47 43 51 52 594

Mis-Reads 7 5 8 5 3 9 4 2 0 6 3 3 55

Meter Calibration Tests 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2013 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec TOTAL

Customer Inquiry requiring work order 98 54 44 63 43 48 45 42 67 42 41 52 639

Mis-Reads 11 6 6 5 6 6 6 7 6 10 3 7 79

Meter Calibration Tests 1 1 0 3 2 1 1 0 2 0 0 1 12

Agenda Page 375



CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

        BOARD MEETING NOTES--Sept. 21, 2015  MEETING

 WATER TREATMENT PLANT - 09/11/2015

► As previously stated last month (see below in red), we have gotten the 1st month results from

AMPS, and although we have no trending to go by yet, the results seem promising.  Using

well 5 as our measuring stick, because it has proven to be one of the more problematic in that

it loses specific capacity ( rate of flow per foot of drawdown) very quickly. This causes

cavitation which effects the water quality. (Oxygen introduced into raw water reacts with

hydrogen sulfide and converts to elemental sulfur which clogs sand strainers and cartridge

filters.) We see after the maintenance that there is improvement in GPM production and 

pumping water levels which translate into improved specific capacity. The results show a 10%

improvement over the previous month. Well 6, 8, and 11 also showed signs of improvement

similar to well 5. Well 10 stayed pretty much even. We have every reason to believe that

this maintenance program will prove successful.

     Amps has completed the 1st. round of the Well Maintenance Program we have contracted

     with them. The five wells we chose for this program are 5, 6, 8, 10,and 11. They have

     done the high pH chemical treatment, cooked for 48 hours, and collected the initial data.

     This will continue monthly and reports will be submitted to us by AMPS.

► Well 7R is operational and currently being sampled for final Bac-t clearance. Fence gate

has been installed. Final site restorations still have to be completed.

NW looking SE at Cypress Park

► Well 4R well head and discharge piping is completed with all monitoring equipment. One of

the elect. panels is completed. FPL and our electrical connections still need to be completed.

The old well 4 is still being utilized but is due to be shut down next week so the tie ins to 

the new well can be completed.

Agenda Page 376



 Coral Springs Improvement District 

Wastewater Department Report 

September 2015 Board Meeting 

 

 

Ongoing Projects  

 

Globaltech has notified the District that they are progressing with the following approved work 

authorizations (WA):  

 

WA# 88 - Replacement of Influent Bar Screen 

 

 New bar screen was put online on Tuesday August 25, 2015.  Training for the Operations 

and Maintenance was on Tuesday August 25, 2015 and completed on Wednesday August 

26, 2015.  No issues to report.   

 

WA# 99 – Deep Well Pumps 403 and 404 Modifications 

 

 Effluent Pump 403 was put back in operation on April 17, 2015.  There are no issues to 

report.    

 Effluent Pump 404 was disassembled on May 26th, 2015 for rebuild.  The new fabricated 

base and frame have been installed.  The new discharge valve has been installed.  

Awaiting Pump 404 return to reinstall.   

 

WA #105 – Wastewater Treatment Plant Effluent Pump Station Electrical Analysis 

 

 Final report was given to Coral Springs Improvement District on Monday August 24, 2015.  

A Deepwell Electrical Study Report meeting was held on September 8, 2015 between Coral 

Springs Improvement District and GlobalTech to discuss report.  Staff will further review 

the report and discuss which approach will be taken.  

 

 

Operations 

 

Blower 1 bearing was replaced on Tuesday September 8, 2015.  After startup of Blower 

1, the manufacture representative discovered imbalance in the unit itself.  Staff is in 

discussion with manufacture to discuss what to do to repair the unit.   

 

 

Agenda Page 377



Coral Springs Improvement District 

 Drainage Department Report 

September 21, 2015 Meeting 

 

 
 The bank erosion project at site #1 is completed and demobilization has 

begun 

 Chemical bids will be presented to the board for approval 

 Culvert inspections have been completed and are being reviewed by staff to 

determine which sites may require cleaning 

 Per request by Dr. Shank, the Bio Haven floating island has been ordered    

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 378



9-21-15   board meeting  

 

Water distribution/ wastewater collection department’s operations report 

 

 

* Linetec is repairing the broken hydrants that were identified at the end of our annual hydrant flushing  

   Program. 

* Trio is almost complete with phase 2 rehab to lift station 15.   

* We have continued again with installing RG3 meters.  

* We averaged 2 2/3 water breaks per work day for the month of August.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 379



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9D. 
  

Agenda Page 380



 

00552233-2  1 

RESOLUTION 2015-13 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 

THE CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

PROVIDING FOR THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN 

INSURANCE BENEFITS TO BOARD MEMBERS AND THE 

SPOUSES OF BOARD MEMBERS; PROVIDING FOR 

SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the Coral Springs Improvement District (the “District”) is a special purpose, 

local government created pursuant to Chapter 298, Florida Statutes, and special act of the 

Legislature; and 

 

WHEREAS, the District is governed by a Board of Supervisors; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Members of the Board of Supervisors (“Board Members”) are officers of 

the District; and  

 

WHEREAS, § 112.08, Florida Statutes, provides that special districts are authorized to 

provide and pay out of available funds for all or part of the premium for health and other types of 

insurance for officers and employees of the special district, and the spouses of such officers and 

employees; and 

 

WHEREAS, the District provides certain insurance benefits to the employees of the 

District, but has not historically provided insurance benefits to Board Members; and 

 

WHEREAS, the District desires to provide certain insurance benefits to the Board 

Members; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Supervisors of the District that the 

following policies regarding the extension of certain insurance coverages to Board Members are 

hereby adopted: 

 

Section 1. Incorporation.  The recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated herein as if 

fully set forth. 

 

Section 2. Extension of Benefits.  The District hereby extends heath insurance, dental 

insurance, and eyesight insurance (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Health Insurance 

Benefits”) to Board Members and the spouses of Board Members under the same terms and 

conditions as such benefits may be extended to other District employees. 

 

Agenda Page 381



 

00552233-2  2 

Section 3. Limitations.  This Resolution does not authorize the extension of any other type of 

insurance or benefits to Board Members or the spouses of Board Members except the Health 

Insurance Benefits expressly enumerated herein.  Unless otherwise expressly authorized, Board 

Members and their spouses are not eligible to receive other types of insurance benefits otherwise 

provided by the District to its employees, including, but not limited to, workers compensation, 

short term disability insurance, long term disability insurance, life insurance, retirement benefits 

or other benefits not specifically and expressly authorized by this Resolution.   

 

Section 4. Coverage Dates.  Health Insurance Benefits extended to a Board Member and/or 

the spouse of a Board Member under this Resolution shall commence within 30 days of the Board 

Member’s assumption of the office and shall terminate within 30 days of Board Member’s vacation 

of office.  Upon adoption of this Resolution, the District shall extend Health Insurance Benefits to 

current Board Members and their spouses who desire to receive the Health Insurance Benefits 

within 30 days.   

 

Section 4. Not Mandatory.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution, Board 

Members are not required to accept any Health Insurance Benefits offered under the terms of this 

Resolution.  

Section 5. Severability. In the event any section, paragraph, sub-paragraph, sentence, clause, 

phrase or word of this Resolution shall be declared invalid, illegal or unenforceable by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof. 

Section 6.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.   

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of the Coral Springs Improvement 

District this 21st day of September, 2015. 

 

 

________________________    ________________________ 

Duane Holland      Martin Shank 

Secretary       President 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 382



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FINANCIALS  

Agenda Page 383



Agenda Page 384



Agenda Page 385



Agenda Page 386



Agenda Page 387



Agenda Page 388



Agenda Page 389



Agenda Page 390



Agenda Page 391



Agenda Page 392



Agenda Page 393



Agenda Page 394



Agenda Page 395



Agenda Page 396



Agenda Page 397



Agenda Page 398



Agenda Page 399



Agenda Page 400



Agenda Page 401



Agenda Page 402



Agenda Page 403



Agenda Page 404



Agenda Page 405



Agenda Page 406



Agenda Page 407



Agenda Page 408



Agenda Page 409


	Agenda
	Minutes
	4 - Analytical Lab Services Piggyback
	5 - GIS Contract Piggyback
	6 - LMK Contract Piggyback
	7 - Aquatic Bids
	8 - W&S Budget
	8 - Resolution 2015-11
	9A - Resolution 2015-12
	9B - Engineer's Report
	9C - Work Orders
	9C - Water Report
	9C - Wastewater Report
	9C - Drainage Report 
	9C - Field Report
	9D - Resolution 2015-13
	Financials



